MEETING OF THE TRUST BOARD IN PUBLIC
FRIDAY 27 SEPTEMBER 2019
A meeting of the Trust Board in public will take place at 9.30am on Friday 27 September 2019 in
the Boardroom of the Norfolk and Norwich University Hospital
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REPORT TO THE TRUST BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Date

27 September 2019

Title

Experience of Care – Patient/Family Story – ‘Who’s Annie’

Author & Exec
lead
Purpose

Professor Nancy Fontaine, Chief Nurse
Sarah Higson, Lead for Patient Engagement & Experience
For Information/Discussion and reflection

1.
1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Background/Context
A patient story is where a patient or family member describes their experience of healthcare
in their own words. The idea is to gain an understanding of what it is like for them and or
their family/carers; what was positive; what was sub-optimal; and what would have made
the experience more positive.
Listening to patient stories gives us the opportunity to learn about the things that we do well
and consider where we can make improvements. It helps put patients at the heart of service
development and improvements.
Today’s story is called ‘Who’s Annie?’ and is presented by her daughter. It reflects on the
experience of care at the hospital for her mother, Annie, who had dementia and passed away
at the hospital and of the experience of care for them as the family as a whole. The Board
will be able to reflect on this experience and subsequent actions and learning, with a view to
understanding the impact and to support ongoing improvements in dementia care, palliative
and end of life care.
In attendance are also key members of staff related to the story who will share their
reflections.

2.
2.1

Key issues, risks and actions
The story is a highly positive one and provides an opportunity to learn from excellence. Key
learning:

the impact of kindness and compassion of staff – going the extra mile even when
extremely busy in ED;

exemplary use of ‘This Is Me’ documentation and the support of ward staff;

superb support from the dementia support team;

excellent coordination of care and communication between teams and family;

all combining to give Annie back her identity and dignity.

3.
3.1

Conclusions/Outcome/Next steps
This experience and story provide valuable insight and learning which the organisation will
use to drive forward improvements in both dementia and end of life care.

Recommendation:
The Board is recommended to:
 listen and reflect on the story presented, using that information to inform future strategies and
improvement plans.
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Patient Story – Board Meeting – 27 September 2019
1. Brief outline of the “story”
Who’s Annie?:
“She was a daughter, a wife, a grandmother, a friend, a highly skilled Theatre Nurse, a talented
dancer ……… and my wonderful mum. There is more to a person than the disease they have …….
everyone has the right to keep their identity through illness.”
Annie was admitted to A&E on the evening of Friday 5th January 2018. Extremely busy – winter
pressures. She had been six years in care with vascular dementia – this had not been a good
experience. Family were extremely anxious about her coming to the hospital.
Annie was seriously ill, the family had been told by the first Responder it was a critical situation and
the family realised she most probably would not be with them much longer.
A&E staff were amazing and ensured her dignity and comfort even though there would be a long
wait.
“They had so many other patients to care for but still showed empathy, understanding and kindness“.
On the ward the care was outstanding and Annie’s identify and dignity were restored through a
combination of respectful consideration, caring, insights into dementia of ward staff and the
exemplary support of the dementia support team. There were many examples of ‘small things
making a big difference’ which enabled the family to build trust in the staff and to feel that Annie
was safe, understood and well looked after.
“From the moment mum was admitted she got her identity back and was Annie again. Everyone saw
past the illness she had and just saw her”.
Annie died on the ward and the end of life care for her and the whole family was exceptional.
2. What “point” it is trying to convey
The story highlights many ways in which ‘small things make a big difference’ and how the actions
and attitudes of staff, as epitomised by the Trust’s values, can make a huge impact on a patient’s
care and that of their family.
The story provides an opportunity to really drill down into what makes an experience exceptional or
excellent from a patient/family perspective – what really matters to them - and to consider how
those elements can be replicated and embedded as ‘the norm’ throughout the organisation.
3. Who will be “speaking”
Family member
Nicola & Andy King – daughter and son-in-law of Annie
Staff

Liz Yaxley, Dementia Services Manager

4. Time allocation for each element
Family member
10/15 mins
Staff
5 mins
Questions
5 mins
5. Any Other Pertinent Information
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Who’s Annie?

She was a daughter, a wife, a grandmother, a friend, a
highly skilled Theatre Nurse, a talented dancer ………
and my wonderful mum.
There is more to a person than the disease they have
……. everyone has the right to keep their identity
through illness.

Together we will beat Dementia.
4

MINUTES OF TRUST BOARD MEETING IN PUBLIC
HELD ON 26 JULY 2019

Present:

Mr D White
Mr C Cobb
Prof E Denton
Prof N Fontaine
Mr J Foster
Mr J Hennessey
Mr T How
Mr M Jeffries
Mr P Jones
Dr G O’Sullivan

- Chairman
- Chief Operating Officer
- Medical Director
- Chief Nurse
- Non Executive Director
- Chief Finance Officer
- Non-Executive Director
- Non-Executive Director
- Chief People Officer
- Non-Executive Director

In attendance:

Ms F Devine
Mr J P Garside
Mr S Hackwell
Mr A Lundrigan
Ms V Rant

- Director of Communications
- Board Secretary
- Director of Strategy
- Chief Information Officer
- Assistant to Board Secretary

19/035

APOLOGIES AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Apologies were received from Mr Davies, Professor Richardson and Mrs Robson. No
conflicts of Interest were declared in relation to matters for consideration by the Board.

19/036

REFLECTIONS ON THE VISITS
(a) Breast Imaging
Mr Jeffries and Mr Hackwell visited the Breast Imaging Unit. Staff were positive and
grateful to Mr Hackwell for his help to address some issues within the department
recently. There are some ongoing challenges around space and work is underway to
reconfigure the current space.
There is some concern about the impact of absorbing work from James Paget
University Hospital. Professor Denton indicated that the Trust does not currently have
the capacity to be able to absorb the breast screening workload from JPUH but we are
providing support in order to maintain patient safety and lessen the risk to those
patients who are waiting.
It is not possible currently to share images between the hospitals in Norfolk and
enabling this would improve the overall service for patients across the region.
(b) Acute Medical Unit (AMU)
Mr Foster, Mr Hennessey and Professor Fontaine visited the AMU. Mr Foster reported
that the team were positive and working well together. The Unit has been successful
in attracting newly qualified nurses to work in the department. The biggest issue for
the Unit is flow of patients but the team are optimistic that the new ward block will
remove some of this pressure. There is a need to introduce metrics to enable
monitoring of performance within the unit in the way that we do for ED. Mr Hennessey

_____________________________________________________________________________________________
Unconfirmed minutes of the Trust Board Meeting held in public on 26 July 2019

Page 1 of 11

5

reported that the unit is expected to reach full staffing establishment from September
2019.
(c) Sir Thomas Browne Library
Mr How, Mr Jones and Professor Denton visited the Library. Mr How reported how the
Library staff were actively reaching out to staff across the Trust to engage and share
their resources. The Trust’s historical archive is housed in the Library and the County
Archive and this information will be useful in the Trust’s 250th anniversary celebrations
in 2021/22.
The team indicated that the Library’s budget had been reduced significantly and this
had impacted on their ability to acquire more books. Professor Denton had been
impressed by the team and the support that they provide to junior doctors is very good.
Mr Jones highlighted the value of their work in interviewing staff leaving the Trust in
order to prevent loss of knowledge from the organisation.
(d) Discharge Liaison Team
Dr O’Sullivan and Mr Cobb visited the Discharge Liaison Team. This incorporates a
series of individual teams - the Continuing Care Team, Community Liaison Team,
Discharge Team and Social Services who work to provide safe and timely discharge
for our patients. The team are active on the wards, attending ward rounds to identify
patients to facilitate discharge but this is quite a complex mix of areas and functions.
Dr O’Sullivan noted that the area occupied is very crowded. Mr Cobb reported that
discussions are ongoing with NCC but it is possible that the team will be integrated,
facilitating closer working and with an aim to ensuring adequate space for all.
(e) Loddon Ward
Mr White, Mr Lundrigan and Mr Garside met with Sister Sharon Wrath on Loddon
Ward. Sister Wrath was very knowledgeable and the ward appears well run. There
was good evidence of a team based approach with MDT ward rounds taking place with
staff given an opportunity to have their say.
Mr Lundrigan noted a strong MDT ethos on the ward and good communication for
families and patients. The team indicated that more work is needed to maintain the
flow of patients using the ERS transport service and to improve community support for
the discharge of patients over the weekends.
Mr White also visited nursing staff in the VTE clinic and discussed the arrangements
for responding to GP referrals within 24hours.
(f) Other Matters
Mr White was pleased to note the wide visibility of Board members across the Trust
which has been facilitated through the monthly clinical visits. This process ensures
regular managed exposure across a broad range of areas in the Trust.
There is a need to ensure that the observations of the visits are followed-up and acted
upon and for our staff to receive feedback on the actions taken. Mr White indicted that
he has spoken to Mrs Devine about reporting to staff following each Board meeting.
This provides an opportunity to reflect on the visits and thank staff for what they are
doing.
Mr White indicated that he is very pleased to join the Trust’s leadership team and is
focused on ensuring that the Trust’s governance processes and systems are patient
centred and targeted towards improving patient experience. The Trust will need to
implement the right climate and expectations in order to ensure a high calibre of
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leadership to give our staff the right support, encouragement and tools to be able to
perform and deliver high quality care for our patients.
If staff feel supported and valued, it is anticipated that they will provide better care to
patients. The foundations are in place on which to build this patient centred approach.
The Trust will play an integral role in supporting colleagues across the health and
social care community in work to redefine patient pathways and experience across the
STP.
Mr White highlighted that the Trust needs to continue to build upon its partnerships
with institutions and research within the hospital and the research park will be critical to
this.
19/037

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON FRIDAY 31 MAY 2019
The minutes of the meeting held on Friday 31 May 2019 were agreed as a true record
and signed by the Chairman.

19/038

ACTIONS AND MATTERS ARISING
The Board reviewed the Action Points arising from its meeting held on 31 May 2019 as
follows:
19/029 A report on medical staffing has been prepared and was reviewed by the
Quality and Safety Committee. It has been included as an attachment to the CEO
report and will form a regular part of reporting to Board and Committees. Action
closed.

19/039

CHIEF EXECUTIVE REPORT
The Board received a report from Mr Davies in relation to recent activity in the Trust
since the last Board meeting and not covered elsewhere in the papers.
In Mr Davies’ absence, Mr White asked the Board for their observations and
highlighted that the Viewpoint slides provided a useful update for staff on issues
across the organisation.
Mr Lundrigan reported that the contract for the Electronic Document Management
System (EDMS) has been concluded and the infrastructure is now being put in place.
Mr Foster asked about the timescale for implementation of the EDMS. Mr Lundrigan
explained that the infrastructure is expected to be implemented in around 4 months
and the target for ‘go live’ is April 2020.
Dr O’Sullivan asked if the funding for the EPR project is now in place. Mr Lundrigan
explained that funding for the EPR is not yet confirmed but the STP is working to
prepare the business case that will support the STP’s bid for national funding if and
when it becomes available.
Mr How congratulated Dr Edward Morris (Consultant Obstetrician and Gynaecologist)
on his election as President of the Royal College of Obstetricians and Gynaecologists.
Professor Denton highlighted the election of Professor Amanda Howe (Professor of
Primary Care at Norwich Medical School) as President of the Royal College of General
Practitioners.

19/040

INFECTION PREVENTION AND CONTROL ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
The Board received a report from Ms Sarah Morter (Senior Nurse for Infection
Prevention and Control) concerning the Infection Prevention and Control Annual
Report for 2018/19.
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Ms Morter informed the Board that Professor Fontaine took on the role of Director of
Infection Prevention and Control following her appointment in August 2018.
In 2018/19, the Trust reported 31 cases of C Difficile infections which was within the
ceiling target of 48 cases. One MRSA bacteraemia was reported in the year against
the zero target. Following investigation, this was identified as a contaminant rather
than a true bacteraemia.
The electronic system (ICNet) used by the team is no longer supported by the
company and has been decommissioned due to the age of the system. The system
currently stores 13 years of historical data and allows electronic surveillance of alert
organisms across the Trust. A Business Case is under development to commission a
new system that will replace ICNet. Mr Lundrigan explained that we are in discussion
with the other two Norfolk acute hospitals to commission a joint solution.
Professor Fontaine asked about the Trust’s performance compared with other Trusts
in the region. Ms Morter explained that we are performing well on many indicators.
Our rates of C Difficile are very low by comparison to others. Our target for this year is
35 whereas others locally have a ceiling of 96 and 107.
Work continues to increase surgical site surveillance. The One Together Assessment
toolkit was developed collaboratively by a number of external organisations to support
and promote best practice in this area and NNUH is now being used as the exemplar
site to support regional colleagues with this initiative.
The Board asked about compliance levels for infection prevention and control training.
Ms Morter reported that the level of compliance has increased significantly and is now
almost 90%. There is more work to do in order to reach 100% and we continue to look
for creative ways to reach all staff.
Infection prevention and control awareness campaigns take place regularly across the
organisation and the Global Hand Hygiene Awareness day in May 2018 promoted
good hand hygiene for patients and provided an opportunity for staff, patients and
visitors to talk about hand care and glove use.
Mr White asked about the content of the report. Ms Morter explained that the report is
publicly available and it has been designed to raise awareness and to be educational
to help people learn about infection prevention and control issues.
Mr White asked if there were any particular areas where the level of compliance/buy-in
was less and required additional input. Ms Morter explained that increased support is
provided for those areas with lower levels of compliance. During 2018/19, increased
support was provided to the Decontamination and Water Safety Groups in order to
strengthen these areas.
Considerable work was undertaken during 2018/19 to ensure ventilation duct cleaning,
water and decontamination issues throughout the organisation are being addressed.
Ms Morter informed the Board that the Infection Prevention and Control Team provide
support and advice for staff. The team also work to keep staff motivated and aware of
infection issues during times of peak pressure. A significant number of staff within the
team have changed within the last year and it has taken some time to train new staff
who have joined the team.
The Board approved the 2018/19 Infection Prevention and Control Annual Report.
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Business cases will need to be developed in the coming year in order to support any
bids for additional resources above the budgeted levels for 2019/20.
19/041

REPORTS FROM BOARD COMMITTEES
(a) Quality Programme Board
The Board received reports concerning the Quality Programme Board meetings held
on 11 June and 9 July 2019.
Professor Fontaine reminded the Board that the Quality Programme Board was
established to oversee progress and implementation of the Quality Improvement Plan
to achieve compliance against regulatory requirements. The evidence group is multidisciplinary and meets to review evidence of actions taken across the Trust and to
challenge ratings as appropriate. Progress on actions taken to address any further
recommendations from CQC inspections will be overseen by the Quality Programme
Board. The Oversight Assurance Group met on 9 July to review the deep dive review
into Critical Care.
Mr White indicated that he had been impressed by the rigorous and thorough
approach of the Quality Programme Board. Mr Jeffries suggested that it would be
useful in future to have a summary position of the QPB actions, to give the Board an
overview of progress.
Action: Professor Fontaine
(b) Quality and Safety Committee
The Board received a report from Dr O’Sullivan with regard to the work of the Quality
and Safety Committee.
Dr O’Sullivan reported that the Committee met on 6 June 2019 at the Cromer & District
Hospital. The Committee visited clinical areas in the Hospital and also the site for
refurbishment of the Davison Unit. The plans in conjunction with Macmillan look
exciting and offer significant enhancement in capacity and quality of patient
experience.
The Committee received a report on equipment and the developing equipment
replacement programme, reflecting the risks highlighted on the Risk Register. The
Committee was assured that Mr Hackwell is overseeing a process that is rigorous in
auditing the status of equipment and this will inform our equipment replacement
programme.
The Committee received reports on vacancy ‘hot spots’. There are key areas with high
levels of medical vacancies (gastroenterology and ED). The Committee had also
considered the governance arrangements around the Acute Services Integration.
As agreed by the Board, research has been added to the remit of the Committee and
an initial discussion has been held about scrutiny of R&D governance arrangements
and strategy going forwards. Mr White welcomed this as an opportunity to develop the
Boards conversations on research.
Dr O’Sullivan reported that the Committee considered the draft Quality Strategy and
recommended this for approval by the Board.

19/042

QUALITY STRATEGY
The Board received the draft Quality Improvement Strategy for 2019-2023. This has
been reviewed by the Council of Governors, Management Board and Quality and
Safety Committee. Professor Fontaine reported that the five year strategy sets out
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priorities to improve patient safety, clinical effectiveness and the experience of our
service users.
We have adopted the framework of the Institute for Healthcare Improvement as the
methodology for driving our quality improvement. Plans for a Quality Service
Improvement and Redesign Teaching Faculty are in development in order to provide
staff with the skills to develop, lead and implement improvement projects across the
organisation.
Mr How asked about the measures by which progress towards achieving the Quality
Priorities will be monitored and asked about the anticipated timescale for
implementation. Professor Fontaine explained that improvement will be incremental
but the aim is to achieve all targets by year five (2023). There will be an
Implementation Plan for the Strategy. Professor Denton indicated that measures
under each of the Quality Priorities had been carefully selected as relevant and
reflecting both high and low priority areas for improving quality. They are all areas in
which we can collect data to monitor progress.
Professor Fontaine indicated that the intention is for the Quality Improvement Strategy
to be launched at a QI Conference in October. Mr White described the Strategy as
clear and concise. The Strategy gives us the building blocks for improving quality
within our organisation and recognised that it will take time for the Strategy to be
embedded. An organisational development programme and implementation plan will
be key for getting the Quality Improvement Strategy implanted at the heart of our
organisation.
The Trust has invested significantly to improve staffing levels which has delivered
quality improvements but there is also a need to consider affordability and resourcing
for future quality improvement plans during times of financial restraint.
The Board approved its Quality Improvement Strategy for 2019-2023.
19/043

INTEGRATED PERFORMANCE REPORT
The Board received and discussed the Integrated Performance Report (IPR) from the
Executive Directors.
(a) Quality, Safety and Effectiveness
Professor Denton reported that the Trust’s mortality rate continues to improve.
Mortality at the weekend is higher than that on weekdays but this reflects the number
of patients seeking hospital treatment at the weekend. Every death is reviewed as part
of our mortality review process, overseen by the Mortality Committee.
An action plan has been put in place to meet our requirements to provide seven day
services and we are making good progress to achieving this.
The HSMR is the second best in the region and continues to improve. The SHMI is
within the expected range but there is a lag as we wait for this data to be released.
The number of incidents reported was above 2,000 in June 2019 with 96% being low
or no harm incidents. This is a positive indication of a good safety culture of reporting
in both clinical and non-clinical areas.
(b) Caring and Patient Experience
Professor Fontaine informed the Board that we continue to perform well against
national surveillance of health care associated infections. The ceiling target for C
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Difficile in 2019/20 is 35 cases and the Trust has reported 3 in the year to date. Work
continues in focus on all infection prevention and control and antibiotic stewardship.
Performance in prevention of hospital acquired pressure ulcers continues to be strong.
The majority of pressure ulcers continue to be patients who have been admitted with
existing pressure ulcers.
One Never Event was reported in June relating to IV infusion of epidural medication.
The patient did not suffer harm from this incident and clinical processes have been
revised.
Mr White asked about the reporting of learning and improvement to practices following
incidents and Dr O’Sullivan confirmed that this is reported through the Quality and
Safety Committee.
Mr White noted increased reporting of incidents which would indicate a sense of buy-in
from staff but Divisional performance would seem to indicate that further work needs to
be undertaken. Professor Denton explained that the new governance processes were
implemented in September 2018 and it will take time for these processes to embed
within the organisation. The Serious Incident Group meetings take place daily at 1pm
and Professor Denton indicated that Mr White would be welcome to attend and
observe this process.
Professor Fontaine informed the Board that the metrics to measure patient experience
are being expanded and compliments are now being reported through the Meridian
system. Introduction of the expanded patient experience metrics will help to raise this
profile across the organisation.
Staffing in the Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS) is now at 1.8 WTE staff. The
PALS service is being refreshed with an ‘open door’ policy and increased input from
volunteers is being put in place to assist the service. Complaints reflect a high level of
pressure on operational performance with a number of complaints concerning
appointment times and delays. Enhanced reporting of timelines for complaints is in
development.
Mr How asked why the Maternity Dashboard had not been included in the IPR this
month. Professor Fontaine explained that the new formatted Dashboard is still under
development but this work is nearly complete. Mr How highlighted that there should
be some indication within the IPR to ensure the NEDs are given oversight of issues.
Mr White added that this would form part of the Board’s ongoing consideration of
reporting channels and the process for the Board to obtain assurance from its
Committees on organisational performance/issues. It would seem appropriate for the
Board’s assurance committees to undertake regular deep dives and investigations, to
draw the Board’s attention to any particular issues it needs to consider.
Mr White indicated the need for the Board to consider what data it should receive and
to ensure that the information is appropriately directed for debate and discussion
through the Management Board and the Board’s committees.
Mr How highlighted that the data provided through the old format of the IPR had been
carefully selected by the Board in order to provide oversight and assurance in a
number of areas. Following introduction of the new electronic IPR, it would not be
appropriate to lose this data.
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Professor Fontaine reported that the Trust’s perinatal mortality rates are half the
national average rate. Our birth:midwife ratio is 1:27 against the national average of
1:29. 1:1 births are above 97% and the caesarean section rate is in line with the
national average rate. There are no midwife vacancies which is a very good position
to be in.
(d) Performance and Productivity
Mr Cobb informed the Board that performance against the 4 hour A&E standard was
80% in June compared with 87% performance during May. Dialogue with system
partners indicates that there has been a 10% reduction in the number of people
attending the walk-in centre and there has been an equivalent increase in patients
attending A&E. The loss of positive data from the Walk-in Centre (WIC) is reflected in
our reduced performance.
A system-wide recovery plan has been put in place with three priority areas:
- paediatric minors;
- staffing in ED; and
- patients with a length of stay of more than 21 days.
The number of minors has increased from an average of 167 per day to 233. Pressure
within the minors area has also been affected by a reduction in the number of GPs
working in the unit.
To address staffing shortages within the ED, we have been working with a recruitment
expert to review Clinical Fellow and Consultant posts. A review of rotas and demand
changes within the ED is also underway.
During June there were 12 breaches of the 12 hour standard in A&E which was
caused by waits for external mental health unit beds. Demand for mental health beds
is exceeding capacity and we have lost ring-fencing of capacity in the Mental Health
Trust.
Mr White reflected on concerns raised by the regional director about ED performance.
The regulators are keen for the Trust to drive focus on improving performance but our
efforts are impacted by the diversion of patients from the Walk-In Centre. There is
more work to do to understand if these patients need to be seen at the hospital or if
they can be seen elsewhere. Mr Cobb explained that NHSI has recognised that this is
a system wide issue and have challenged system organisations to reduce the number
of attendances to A&E by 50 within the next month.
Mr White acknowledged that the clinical teams are working to reduce waits for patients
and recognised that lengthy waits for patients will contribute to a poor experience.
Mr Cobb explained that the flow of patients out of the hospital has been negatively
impacted by the closure of care homes and it is hoped that the system wide review will
look to address the issues affecting the flow of patients out of hospital.
Regarding RTT, Mr Cobb reported that over the last six months, no patients have
waited over 52 weeks for elective treatment. Professor Denton added that this had
taken a lot of effort by the teams and the waiting list had been managed patient by
patient. Around 30% of Trusts have been unable to maintain this performance
following introduction of the target deadline of 31 March 2019. We are continually
being challenged by the lack of capacity and the Divisions are having to continually
look at ways to address workforce and capacity gaps at times of peak pressure.
There was a high number of diagnostic breaches in June mainly due to the increased
numbers of GP referrals for MRI scans and 121 hours of MRI equipment failure in
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June. The Management Board will be reviewing a business case for outsourcing and
insourcing additional capacity.
Performance against the two week wait cancer standard has declined due to the
impact of increased referrals in dermatology and gastroenterology. Mr Hackwell
highlighted that it is becoming increasingly difficult to continue to manage demand in
response to doubling growth in activity every year. We will need additional capacity.
Mr Cobb reported that performance towards the 62 day cancer standard reduced in
June mainly caused by delays for diagnostic services but performance is forecast to
recover in line with the trajectory in Q2 and Q3.
Stroke performance has been struggling but has shown improvement in June to 76 (B
rating). Previous gaps in the consultant rota are now covered and service delivery is
therefore more robust. All three cardiology standards were delivered (NSTEMI, Call to
Balloon and Door to Balloon).
Mr White indicated that the IPR was helpfully structured and formed a firm foundation
for informing the Board Assurance Committees.
(e) Workforce
Mr Jones reported that the Trust has added a significant number of new posts to its
establishment over the last year. Controls on temporary staff spending have been put
in place and Mr Hennessey confirmed that the number of approvers within each
Directorate has been limited to four. Mr Jeffries expressed concern that a temporary
staffing policy had not been in place previously. Mr Jones explained that practices
were in place but a formal policy had not been established.
Mr Jones informed the Board that work is underway to optimise and improve the Staff
Bank. Additional staff are being recruited to ensure that there are adequate numbers
and staff with a variety of skill sets for each of the specialties. We have not yet
introduced automatic enrolment to the Bank and this is taking some weeks currently.
In order to improve staff wellbeing and reduce absence rates, the capacity and number
of rest spaces available for staff is under review.
We are close to achieving the 90% mandatory training target with compliance at 89%
in June. Improvement in reporting is now providing greater visibility of issues and staff
who are non-compliant.
Dr O’Sullivan noted that the vacancy rate had increased despite the increase in the
staffing establishment. Mr White indicated that it would seem appropriate for the
People and Culture Committee to oversee reviews of staffing to understand the
connections and interdependencies in order to provide the Board with the assurance it
needs. He is currently reviewing how the Board assurance committees meet and the
flow of information to and from these committees.
(f) Finance
Mr Hennessey informed the Board that the Trust ‘s financial performance was on plan
in Q1. In the year to date there is an overspend on pay of £1.6m. The main driver for
overspending is temporary staffing costs. Mr Hennessey highlighted the increase in
substantive staff over the last twelve months but new posts created at the beginning of
April has increased the vacancy rate.
Income is in line with the Plan, due to agreement of a ‘block contract’ with Specialised
Commissioners. Mr Foster asked about the term of the block contract. Mr Hennessey
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confirmed that the term was for 2019/20. More organisations are moving to block
contract arrangements and we are being encouraged by the STP to move in this
direction – to help the CCGs with their budgeting.
Dr O’Sullivan reflected that income has been a driver of financial underperformance.
In the short term, agreeing to the block contract has brought an improvement in the
financial position but would there be a risk in the long term as it will not respond to
increases in demand/activity. Mr Hennessey explained that it will be important to
ensure proper planning of realistic levels of activity.
Professor Denton explained that in order to drive this forward, a significant cultural
change will be needed and the Divisions are being encouraged to move away from
activity based CIPs. We are looking at how we can do things more efficiently and
economically. Mr White indicated that partnership working across health and social
care systems will be key in transformation of services across the STP.
Mr Hennessey highlighted that around £9-10m of NHS activity is undertaken through
Spire every year and this activity is overspent by £500k as there is insufficient elective
capacity within the NNUH. This is income that is currently being diverted away from
NNUH.
Mr Foster asked if staff are opting to undertake locum or premium pay work due to
enhanced pay rates. Professor Denton indicated there is no indication that staff are
leaving shortage specialities to take up locum positions. There has been an issue
were regular locums have delayed agreeing to sessions until rates have been
increased.
19/044

FEEDBACK FROM THE COUNCIL OF GOVERNORS
A meeting of the Council of Governors was held on 24 July 2019. Mr White noted that
there is good attendance from the governors, who project a sense of close association
with the organisation and are keen, knowledgeable and take their responsibilities
seriously.
Mr White explained that he is reviewing mechanisms for disseminating information to
the Governors in order to ease pressures on time at the meetings. The regular access
to Chair and CEO is good.
Dr Rees was asked to comment and indicated that a recent training session had been
helpful in highlighting development opportunities for governors. Mr White indicated
that a number of key points were raised by Governors which will be addressed in
development of the future work programme.

19/045

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
Mr Garside informed the Board that the Trust is due to submit the CNST Maternity
Incentive Scheme (Year 2) report on 15 August 2019. The document requires Board
‘sign-off’ and the Board confirmed delegated authority to the Quality and Safety
Committee to approve the document on behalf of the Board.

19/046

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
The next meeting of the Trust Board in public will be at 9.30am on Friday
27 September 2019 in the Boardroom of the Norfolk and Norwich University Hospital.

Signed by the Chairman: ………….….…………………………

Date: ……………………………

_____________________________________________________________________________________________
Unconfirmed minutes of the Trust Board Meeting held in public on 26 July 2019
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Action Points Arising:

19/041(a)

Action
Mr White indicated that he had been impressed by the rigorous and thorough
approach of the Quality Programme Board. Mr Jeffries suggested that it would
be useful in future to have a summary position of the QPB actions, to give the
Board an overview of progress in each area.
Action: Professor Fontaine

_____________________________________________________________________________________________
Unconfirmed minutes of the Trust Board Meeting held in public on 26 July 2019
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Action Points Arising from Trust Board meeting (public) – 26.07.19
Item
19/041(a)
Reporting
from QPB

Action
Mr Jeffries suggested that it would be
useful in future to have a summary
position of the QPB actions, to give the
Board an overview of progress in each
area.
Action: Professor Fontaine

Update - Sept 2019
Revised reporting included in meeting
papers - 27.9.19

JPG 20.09.19
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REPORT TO THE TRUST BOARD (in public)
Date
Title

27 September 2019
Chief Executive’s Report

Purpose

To update the Board on matters relating to the Trust that are not covered elsewhere
in the papers.

Reports elsewhere in the papers address key issues of:
- Quality improvement
- Operational and financial performance &
- Staff experience.
The intention of this report is to briefly update on matters that are not addressed elsewhere in the papers.
There are a few particular items of note:
i)
ii)
iii)
iv)
v)

The role of team work in high quality clinical services
Viewpoint slides and the NHS Capital Announcement
CCG Merger Proposals
Queen Elizabeth Hospital – Executive appointments
AGM

Recommendation:
The Board is recommended to receive this report for information.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT TO TRUST BOARD 27 September 2019 (Public)
This report is intended to update the Board on matters relating to the Trust that are not covered
elsewhere in the papers.
1

FOCUS ON QUALITY AND SAFETY

1.1

External Assessments:
These reports to the Board regularly reference the outcomes of external assessments of the
quality of Trust services and this month there are two further striking examples.
i)
Quadram Intitute Endoscopy Unit Accreditation
JAG accreditation is the standard that Endoscopy Units in the UK have to achieve. The
scheme is overseen by the Royal College of Physicians and is a key quality marker – assessed
by independent external teams. Our service in the QI building was assessed in May and we
have received the final report. The associated press release (16.9.19) is attached.
The covering letter to the report was highly complementary, with comments including those
as below:


“Evidence was shown ……. to demonstrate that all endoscopists are working to the
highest performance standards.”



“The new endoscopy environment is a modern state of the art facility”.



“The careful design supports not only an exceptional patient experience but is also a
unique and exceptional place for staff to work in”.



“It’s a centre to be very proud of and the endoscopy leadership team is congratulated on
not just the design but the hard work put into considering every aspect of the processes”.



“The decontamination environment is exceptional with state of the art equipment and
processes”.

This outcome is testament to the dedication of the multi-disciplinary gastroenterology team
and all the staff who, behind the scenes, worked so hard to establish the Quadram Institute as
a “centre to be proud of”.
ii)
National Audit of Percutaneous Coronary Interventions
This week we have received notification of our assessment as part of the national audit of PCI
services (1st April 2015 to 31st March 2018). We have been contacted as the Trust is an
‘outlier’ – 2 standard deviations better than the average and in the best performing 2.3% of all
trusts in the UK.
This is a huge accolade for our Cardiology Department – all the more so because PCI involves
co-ordination across the multi-disciplinary team.
2

SERVICE DEVELOPMENTS
A repeated theme of these reports concerns the operational pressure faced by the Trust, due
to the mismatch between demand and capacity. This is evidenced elsewhere in the papers
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and attached is a copy of the slides used in the August Viewpoint open session for staff which
focussed on our Estates Plans.
These plans reflect the news that we are to receive £40 million funding for our new Diagnostic
Assessment Centre (DAC) to support earlier cancer diagnosis and to improve patient
experience through earlier treatment. This is another big step forward for our patients and
staff as we continue to build the additional capacity necessary to ensure our hospital is the
right size.
2
2.1

PARTNERSHIP AND SYSTEM WORKING
CCG Merger Proposal
The five CCGs in Norfolk have announced that they are exploring a proposal to merge, with the
intention of becoming NHS Norfolk and Waveney CCG by April 2020. All five Governing Bodies
will receive a recommendation at their meetings in public next week to support a merger and
instruct officers to make the formal application to NHS England. This follows a formal vote by
GP Practices in Norfolk and Waveney in which 79 votes were cast and 72 voted in favour
(91%).
If Governing Bodies support an application to merge, NHS England would be expected to
scrutinise the application and indicate their response by the end of October.

2.2

Queen Elizabeth Hospital
The Queen Elizabeth Hospital in Kings Lynn has announced that Caroline Shaw has been
appointed as Chief Executive and Dr Frankie Swords as Medical Director.

3

AGM
By the time of the Board meeting we will have held our Annual General Meeting, which
provides an opportunity for us to reflect with our members and the wider community on the
work of the Trust, which plays such an important role in the lives of the people of Norfolk and
North Suffolk.
This year the AGM will also provide an opportunity to remember Nick Brighouse OBE who
sadly died this month. Nick was previously a Non-Executive member of the Board at James
Paget University Hospital and subsequently served as a member of our Council of Governors,
ever since the Foundation Trust was established in 2008.
Nick was a stalwart advocate of the interests of patients but also provided support and
counsel to successive chief executives and chairs of the Trust. He will be sadly missed and
fondly remembered.

4

RECOMMENDATION
The Board is asked to:
note the contents of this report for information.
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Latest News
16/09/2019

New endoscopy unit praised for “exceptional
patient experience”
The Norfolk and Norwich University Hospital’s endoscopy service has been
described as the best in the country following an inspection.
Assessors from the Joint Advisory Group (JAG) on Gastrointestinal
Endoscopy, which is hosted by the Royal College of Physicians, visited the
new unit at the Quadram Institute to ensure the Trust is meeting all regulatory
requirements.
The service, which moved into the state-of-the-art building in December,
received high praise from assessors who were impressed by the design and found all endoscopists
working to the “highest performance standards.”
The lead assessor said: “The new endoscopy environment is a modern state-of-the-art facility that is
perhaps the best I have seen to date. The careful design supports not only an exceptional patient
experience but is also a unique and exceptional place for staff to work in.
It’s a centre to be very proud of and the endoscopy leadership team is congratulated on not just the
design but the hard work put into considering every aspect of the process.”
The NNUH Gastroenterology department at the Quadram Institute, which has ten procedure rooms, has
the capacity to conduct at least 40,000 procedures a year, making it one of the largest endoscopy
centres in Europe.
Richard Tighe, NNUH Consultant Gastroenterologist, said: “We are delighted to receive our JAG
accreditation for our new endoscopy unit and to receive such high commendations for the services we
provide at the Quadram Institute.
We are proud of the new unit, which puts us at the forefront of endoscopy services and has enables
patients to receive quicker access to endoscopic diagnostics for patients and rapid access for the
diagnosis or exclusion of gastrointestinal cancer.”
The Quadram Institute is a unique institution by bringing together a busy NHS department with scientists
and researchers in a groundbreaking collaboration.
The Quadram Institute’s mission is to develop solutions to worldwide challenges in human health, food
and disease. It has been created by four founding partners – the NNUH, University of East Anglia,
Quadram Institute Bioscience and the Biotechnology and Biological Sciences Research
Council (BBSRC) - to work across four research themes: the gut, healthy ageing, food innovation and
food safety.

<< Back
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Estates plans
Simon Hackwell
Director of Strategy
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Major schemes planned
• IRU and Cardiology expansion
• PET CT
• Cromer expansion
• Theatres 2 & 3 upgrade

•
•
•
•
•
•

Theatres 9 & 10 upgrade
Cardiology Procedure Room
Nuclear medicine
New ward block
New Diagnostic and Assessment Centre
New breast care unit
22

IR and Cardiology
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Cromer Hospital expansion
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New ward block
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Diagnostic & Assessment Centre
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Diagnostic & Assessment Centre
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Estates strategy
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Update on a proposal to merge the five NHS
Clinical Commissioning Groups
in Norfolk and Waveney

September 20, 2019

Dear colleague,

As you know the Governing Bodies and Member Practices of the five NHS Clinical
Commissioning Groups in Norfolk and Waveney have been asked if they wish to merge and
create one single CCG on April 1 2020.
We are pleased to inform you that all five Governing Bodies will receive a recommendation
at their meetings in public next week to support a merger and instruct officers to make the
formal application to NHS England. This follows a formal vote by GP Practices in Norfolk and
Waveney in which 79 votes were cast and 72 voted in favour (91%) and also follows
feedback received from partners and members of the public. More details will be published
in our Governing Body papers on CCG websites shortly. The CCG Governing Body
meetings will take place on Tuesday (Norwich, North Norfolk and South Norfolk) and
Thursday (West Norfolk and Great Yarmouth and Waveney).
If Governing Bodies support an application to merge we would expect NHS England to
scrutinise the application and indicate their response by the end of October. Again,
assuming a positive response we would enter a period of six months where we want to work
very closely with partners to ensure that local relationships, local focus and strong clinical
leadership are at the heart of a new CCG.
Yours sincerely,

Dr Paul Williams, Dr Liam Stevens, Dr Hilary Byrne, Dr Anoop Dhesi, Tracy Williams
The Chairs of the NHS Clinical Commissioning Groups in Norfolk and Waveney
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REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Date

4th September 2019

Title

NNUH CQC Preparedness

Sponsoring
Exec Director
Author(s)

Professor Nancy Fontaine, Chief Nurse

Purpose

The Trust received the Routine Provider Information Return (RPIR) from the Care Quality
Commission (CQC) on Monday 9th September 2019 with a return date of 30th September
2019, this indicates a further CQC review in the next six months.
The paper sets out our progress in relation to the CQC inspection and preparedness in
three sections.
1. History
2. Monitoring Performance
3. Self-assessment Grids

Action
Required

The Board of Directors are asked to receive the paper and:
 Acknowledge the progress to date and review the outstanding red & amber actions.
 Note that the Executive Team will undertake a challenge of the Trust’s self-assessment
(Quality Statement), associated ratings, and review the RPIR on 23rd and 24th
September 2019, before submission of the RPIR to the CQC on 30th September 2019.
 Note that the Divisions and Executive review of the RPIR will take place during the
week commencing 23rd September with submission before the deadline of 30th
September 2019
 Note that the recent updates to the CQC ‘Well-Led framework’ and our NHSi
Improvement Director will review and challenge this with our teams in
October/November 2019 in the lead up to the next “Well Led” CQC visit.

Rosemary Raeburn-Smith, Programme Director for Quality Improvement
Gemma Lynch, Governance Compliance Manager, Risk and Patient Safety
Jane Robey, Head of the Improvement Team

Our Values: People-focused Respect Integrity Dedication Excellence
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1.

History of Inspection

1.1

May 2019 report

The Trust underwent a full inspection by the Care Quality Commission (CQC) between 10th October 2017
and 22nd March 2018, with a follow up unannounced visit on 22 – 27th February 2019. The report was
received in May 2019, and showed improvement since the previous inspection in the overall Trust Rating
from ‘Inadequate’ to ‘Requires Improvement’, retaining ‘Good’ in the Caring domain.

Our Values: People-focused Respect Integrity Dedication Excellence
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The two inspections – in addition to separate ED inspections in relation to a Section 29a notice – gave rise to a total
of 157 ‘must do’ and ‘should do’ recommendations, which have been aggregated into one overarching
improvement plan.
1.2

Section 29a

A Section 29a improvement notice was given to Trust following the November 2017 inspection due to the
following factors






Unsuitable environment
Concerns around caring for patients with Mental Health Needs
Inaccurate Healthcare records
Lack of MCA and DoLS knowledge
Inadequate IP&C processes

A follow-up inspection in March 2019, highlighted further concerns resulting in second section 29a:






1.3

Ineffective escalation procedures
Long wait to be seen
RATS risks
MH rooms usage
Lack of staff (Including Children’s ED)

Improvements made since the two inspections
















Appointed a Mental Health Matron and two Deputy Matrons
Redeveloped the Mental Health risk screen
Embedded partnership working
Implemented Perfect Ward audits
Introduced a new police handover process
Embedded risk screening within the electronic system
Introduced ED training days
Implemented Paediatric Mental Health risk screening
Embedded Enhanced Observation and Support documents
Embedded regular safety “huddles”
Implemented and embedded a four hour wait escalation SOP
Introduced a process whereby ambulance delays are escalated to strategic on-call at 45
minutes
Embedded the ED Patient Safety and Quality Pathway Audit Group
Reconfigured nursing allocations
Increased non-clinical support and leadership

Our Values: People-focused Respect Integrity Dedication Excellence
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2.

Current Status of Action Plan and assurance
Assurance Ratings September 2019

12%
33%

12%

30%

13%

Red

Number of
recommendations
September 19 154
August 19
153
July 19
157
June 19
157
May 19
82
April 19
81
March 19
76
February 19
75
January 19
67
December 18 65
November 18 65
October 18
65
September 18 64

Amber

Green

Blue

Black

Red

Amber

Green

Blue

Black

12%
13%
15%
11%
23%
22%
24%
16%
12%
15%
9%
6%
40%

12%
15%
10%
6%
13%
12%
12%
21%
16%
19%
32%
46%
33%

30%
32%
39%
47%
11%
15%
9%
19%
33%
37%
45%
40%
27%

13%
10%
10%
10%
45%
49%
55%
44%
39%
29%
14%
8%
0%

33%
31%
26%
25%
7%
1%
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2.1

Assurance in respect of remaining Red Recommendations

Ref.
Recommendation
RED recommendations
CC8.1
The provider should consider evaluating the
friends and family test (FFT) regularly in
critical care and introducing a child-friendly
feedback system for children and young
people who use the service.
CYP5.1

The trust must ensure that children and
young people having their surgeries
cancelled are rebooked in a timely manner.

CYP6.1

The trust must ensure that referral to
treatment times for children are in line with
national recommendations.

Med2.1 Med2.1 - The trust must ensure nursing and
and
medical staff complete mental capacity
Med3.1 assessments in line with trust policy.
Med3.1 - The trust must ensure deprivation
of liberty safeguard (DoLS) orders are

completed appropriately in line with the
Mental Capacity Act 2005.



Med4.1 The trust must ensure fridges where

medicines are stored, have their
temperatures monitored and recorded on a
daily basis


Med5.1 The trust should continue to recruit medical
and nursing staff to trust establishment
Med6.1 The trust should continue to improve staff
annual appraisal rates in line with trust
target.

Assurance
Friends and Family Test (FFT) scores are collected and
prominently displayed at the entrance to the department,
and a child-friendly feedback system is in place to gather
feedback from children and young people who use the
service. Other methods of feedback are being reviewed by
the Critical Care Matron, and feedback is provided to staff.
Monthly meetings are in place with the COO. However,
concerns have been raised by Surgery about lack of capacity
to re-book within 28 days. Summit Meeting arranged with all
parties.
Evidence is scheduled for review at the Evidence Group on
3/10/19
Monthly meetings are in place with the COO to review and
monitor the action plan. However, one of the solutions to
the delivery of the 18 week RTT is the additional paediatric
theatre slot, for which concerns have been raised by Surgery.
Evidence is scheduled for review at the Evidence Group on
3/10/19
At the end of July 2019 the Division surpassed the 90%
compliance target, reaching 90.2% for all staff in Medicine.
Internal MCA audits are still ongoing through RSM TENON
and actions to be discussed following results.
Nursing staff - Areas below 90% are identified via Nursing
dashboard data. The MCA Lead will work with low compliant
areas to improve via targeted training sessions. The MCA
Lead is investigating the introduction of an MCA toolkit to
share with areas; she is also in the process of creating a new
MCA link resource to make MCA/DoLS easier for staff to
understand and follow.
Medical staff - Targeted emails are being sent to individuals
and no further study leave is being granted until above 90%
compliant with the support of the Medical Director. The
AMU/OPM Chief of Service met with the Safeguarding Lead
and MCA Lead to discuss the possible introduction of a traffic
light system to monitor MCA compliance.
Perfect Ward data sessions have taken place to enable staff
to generate their own reports to monitor such things as
fridge temperatures. Staff are now able to generate reports
and focus on the areas for improvement.
IP&C Audits during June and July 2019 highlighted where the
hot spots for poor compliance are within the Division. The
next step is to create the required action plans.
Recruitment trajectories will be monitored through monthly
PRMs. A successful trip to recruit nurses from India has just
been undertaken.
Appraisal compliance at the end of July 2019 for Nursing staff
was at 78.5%
Work continues to address the low compliant hotspots
including a new warning alert system for non-compliant staff
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Ref.

Recommendation

Assurance
Appraisal compliance for Medical staff at the end of June
2019 was at 98.3%. Only 6/243 appraisals for Medical
Division medical staff are outstanding.
O7.1
The trust should ensure that equipment is
Any piece of medical equipment that has passed its due date
maintained and fit for use.
is added to a monthly report, sent by email from EME to the
area where the device was last located, asking for them to
locate the equipment and suggest a date / time to undertake
the servicing work.
Evidence is scheduled for review at the Evidence Group on
7/11/19
S12.1
The trust should improve response times to The RED RAG status is due to lack of visibility of recent
complaints.
reports and lack of engagement.
TW1.1 The trust must ensure that mandatory
Significant improvements to ESR make it more accessible to
training attendance improves to ensure that staff; improvements include eLearning drop-in sessions and a
all staff are aware of current practices.
blended approach to Mandatory Skills training. Further
support is available to staff through ESR mentors, the Library
and L&D teams. An average of 35,000-40,000 units of
eLearning are completed each year with an average of only
3% of staff not following the guidance correctly.
Evidence is scheduled for review at the Evidence Group on
30/10/19
TW3.1 The Trust must ensure that staff annual
Each Operational Manager (OM) and Governance lead has a
appraisal completion improves
list of staff nearing and overdue for appraisal. Each OM is
held to account in the Directorate Performance Review
meeting and required to provide a plan to ensure staff are
training now and in the future
Evidence is scheduled for review at the Evidence Group on
30/10/19
TW7.1 The trust must improve the relationship and Work is ongoing, and is regularly discussed at Evidence
culture between the site management team Group.
and the Senior Nursing and Clinical teams to Progress will next be reviewed by the Evidence Group on
ensure open dialogue where patient safety is 26/09/2019 and is expected to remain RED.
equally weighted to operational pressure to
reduce risks to patients and staff.
TW18.1 The trust must ensure that computers are
New screensavers and safer practice notices are in place; the
locked and that patient healthcare records
screensaver automatically deploys after 5 minutes of
are stored securely.
inactivity. Healthcare records are now included in Perfect
Ward Daily Safety Checks. A new auto-screen locking policy
was rolled out from 31st October 2018.
Evidence is scheduled for review at the Evidence Group on
7/11/19
TW29.1 Ensure complaints are responded to in line
with the complaints policy deadline of 25
working days.

Complaints response time within 25 days are reported
through the monthly complaints report, received by the
Caring and Patient Experience Sub Board. Compliant
response times are under review by Chief Nurse.
Arrangements are being put in place to transfer the
management of formal complaints to the Patient Experience
Team.
Evidence is scheduled for review at the Evidence Group on
7/11/19
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Ref.
U14.1

Recommendation
Assurance
The trust should ensure that sepsis training is Ad hoc training sessions are ongoing. Should be completed
available to all staff providing urgent and
by end of September.
emergency care.
Will next be reviewed by the Evidence Group on 26/09/2019
and is expected to turn BLUE

U16.1

The trust must review and monitor the use
of the Clinical Decisions Unit for patients
who present with mental health
requirements, to ensure that patients are
protected from potential harm

U17.1

U28.1

U29.1

The CDU SOP and CDU Deliberate Self Harm Protocol have
been revised to ensure that the circumstances under which
patients can be transferred is made explicit.
Regular audit programme in place.
Will next be reviewed by the Evidence Group on 26/09/2019
and is expected to turn BLUE
The trust should continue to monitor and
The ED Mental Health SOP has been approved by ED Clinical
actively recruit to ensure that there is an
Governance, Mental Health Operational board and Mental
adequate number of nursing and medical
Health Board. All required evidence has now been collected.
staff with the appropriate skill mix to care for Will next be reviewed by the Evidence Group on 26/09/2019,
patients in urgent and emergency services
where it is expected to be turned BLUE.
The trust must ensure it employs enough
Staffing has been mapped, ECIST have been involved and
medical staff with the right qualifications,
interviews are taking place. Work is ongoing to improve
skills, training and experience to keep
recruitment and retention.
patients safe from avoidable harm and to
Will next be reviewed by the Evidence Group on 26/09/2019
provide the right care and treatment.
and is expected to remain RED
Incorporating U4.1 The trust must review its
nursing and medical staffing numbers for the
urgent and emergency services and plan
staffing acuity accordingly
The trust must ensure that all managers
The department has divided into Nursing teams; each team
appraise staff’s work performance and held
has been asked to allocate appraisal dates in September for
supervision meetings to monitor and
all non-appraised staff.
improve staff performance.
Will next be reviewed by the Evidence Group on 26/09/2019
and is expected to turn BLUE
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3.

Monitoring of performance
3.1

Oversight and Assurance Group (OAG)

The Oversight and Assurance Group provides external assurance and oversight to the quality programme
for Trusts in Special Measures. Meetings of the OAG are chaired by a representative from NHSE/NHSi.
Other organisations represented on the OAG include Norfolk CCGs, Healthwatch Norfolk and Health
Education England.
The OAG’s principal aim is to support and challenge continued quality improvement in the Trust and
provide the system with a collective oversight and assurance of progress, thus ensuring sustained
progression towards safer patient care.
These meetings were originally held monthly; however, since the publication of the last CQC Report in May
2019, they are now being held two monthly.

3.2

Quality Programme Board (QPB)

Quality Programme Board is a formal sub-group of the Hospital Management Board. The QPB is chaired by
the CEO and meets monthly. It is responsible for:






3.3

obtaining assurance on behalf of the Board of Directors with regard to implementation of the Quality
Improvement Plan (QIP) and relevant action plans that fall within the remit of the Board.
making regular reports to the Board of Directors and Management Board concerning progress and
risks to successful implementation of relevant action plans and any areas that require further action;
overseeing transfer of items discharged from the Action Plan process to the Trust’s ‘business as usual’
management and governance structure to ensure that associated improvements and learning are
embedded and support the ongoing development and improvement of the Trust on a longstanding
and sustainable basis.
Reviewing all External Reviews including CQC, NHSi, NHSE, Royal College Reviews

Evidence Group

The Evidence Group was established as a sub-committee of the QPB. The group meets at least monthly
(often bi-monthly), with the Chief Nurse or Medical Director in the chair. Its primary purpose is to:






review the evidence submitted by the Senior Responsible Officer (SRO) in respect of addressing the
CQC and other External Review recommendations, ensuring that evidence of progress/completion is
documented, fit for purpose, complete and transparent, and that the CQC recommendations are
achieved and having the desired impact.
assess the evidence and if it is considered to be complete, the recommendation will then be turned
“BLUE” (complete and evidenced) or “BLACK” (complete and evidenced with no further review
required).
carry out further review if it is felt necessary to ensure that the changes that have been implemented
have been sustained. It will be indicated how frequently these reviews will take place with quarterly,
biannual or annual being the likely frequency.
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4.

CQC Preparedness

4.1

Provider Information Request (PIR)

The Trust has now received the Provider Information Request; this data file will be submitted by 30th
September 2019 in preparation for a possible CQC visit in December 2019. This data set includes the
following;






4.2















4.3

A self-assessment by Trust and Division
An Evidence data file
A Quality Statement
Statements of Progress
Performance Data

CQC Preparation
Implementation of a 12 Week Preparation Plan, including a Communications Plan
Weekly DND focus Group Meetings
Peer Group Audits
Quality Conference and Improvement Poster display 17th October 2019
Review of Perfect Ward Data
Divisions are being asked to look at their data as CQC Core Services and Domains
Review Communication materials being used across the Trust and use the Posters being developed for
the Quality Conference
Enable east Review undertaken week commencing 2nd September 2019
NHSi and NHSE Improvement Director will undertake a review of Division Risk and Governance
NHSi and NHSE Improvement Director will undertake preparation interviews for Well Led assessment
3 MCA DoLs Conferences arranged for Clinical Staff, 5th,6th, 7th November
Risk and Innovation Challenges for Wards and Departments
Launch of Professional Standards, Uniform Policy, Nursing and AHP Strategy and Norfolk Quality
Improvement Strategy.
Review the Environment and ensure small works requests are completed

Quality Assurance Audit (QAA)

Over the last 12 months we have undertaken 32 formal reviews of Clinical Departments and Wards. During
July and August 2019 we reviewed best practice and reviewed our QAA Tool. This Tool is now being
“tested” by the Divisions and we will be re-launching our QAA process on the “Perfect Ward” platform in
October 2019. This will be a Peer Review, with Divisions providing teams to review another Division’s
Wards/ Departments. The Patient voice will be included in this review; we will be collecting patient
feedback at each review. Divisions will be expected to include AHPs and nurses from all grades in their
review teams.
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4.4

Enable East Peer Review

During the week commencing 2nd September 2019 the Trust invited Enable East to conduct an external
peer review. The team was led by a previous NHS Director, and all the team have experience as CQC
Inspectors or Trust Improvement Leads.
Enable East were on site for five days and visited the hospital during normal working hours and in the early
morning and late evening. They visited the Emergency Department, Women and Children’s Division, Critical
Care, Medical Wards.
Their overall impression was that this hospital has experienced a positive change; staff are much more
receptive and eager to showcase the improvements to visitors. The interactions with staff were, on the
whole, positive and the inspection team particularly commended the Emergency Department for team
work. However, there is still lots more improvement required. Enable East has prepared their assessment
based on their observations of CQC ratings; these are contained in their report below. Feedback was given
to the Divisions, Departments, Wards and Enable East
This was the second Enable East peer review of the Trust; the first review took place in December 2018.

QPB Enableeast
feedback 10 Sept.ppt

5.

CQC RPIR and Preparing for the next CQC visit

5.1

RPIR - Trust and Divisions Self-Assessment Grid

At the time of writing this Report the CQC Self-Assessments are being reviewed by the Executive and the
Hospital Management Board and will be included in the RPIR return to the CQC on 30th September 2019.
A verbal update regarding the RPIR will be given to the Board on Friday 27th September 2019.

5.2

Use of Resources

NHSI anticipate that the ‘Use of Resources’ assessment will occur in the weeks before a well-led inspection,
but preferably not at the same time as a core services inspection.
Once a Trust has had a ‘Use of Resources’ assessment, they will not undergo another ‘Use of Resources’
assessment until CQC has restarted its next round of inspection activity.
Although NHSi are indicating at present that they do not have plans to undertake a Use of Resources
assessment during our next CQC Inspection period, we will be preparing for this, as it is the usual plan.

Our Values: People-focused Respect Integrity Dedication Excellence
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6.

Conclusion

The Trust has made progress since the last CQC visit in January and February 2019. We recently engaged an
external company - Enable East - to undertake a review against the outcomes of the report published in
June 2019. The outcome of this report still identified areas for the Trust to progress, but overall the
inspection team could see that significant progress had been made since their last assessment in December
2018.
In addition to understanding and addressing the recent CQC inspection feedback from June 2019, the Trust
has been continually progressing existing work plans for improvement, and assessing performance against
the CQC standards via a variety of assessment methods, including:





Reviewing evidence at the Evidence Committee
Implementing “Perfect Ward” which now provides robust audit and assurance data
Rigorous Quality Assurance Audits (QAA) across the organisation with external and internal member
Carrying out external Peer Review.

The Trust Board of Directors are requested to note:
1. Acknowledge the progress to date and review the outstanding red & amber actions.
2. To note that the Executive Team will undertake a challenge of the Trust’s self-assessment (Quality
Statement), associated ratings, and review the RPIR on 23rd and 24th September 2019, before
submission of the RPIR to the CQC on 30th September 2019.
3. To note that the Divisions and Executive review of the RPIR will take place during the week
commencing 23rd September with submission before the deadline of 30th September 2019
4. To note the plan following the recent updates to the CQC ‘Well-Led framework’ and our NHSEI
Improvement Director will review and challenge this with our teams in October/November 2019 in the
lead up to the next “Well Led” CQC visit.

Our Values: People-focused Respect Integrity Dedication Excellence
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REPORT TO THE TRUST BOARD
Date

27 September 2019

Title

Audit Committee meeting on 11.09.19

Lead

Mrs Angela Robson (Chair of Audit Committee and Non-Executive Director)

Purpose

For Information and Approval as indicated

1 Background/Context
The Audit Committee met on 11 September 2019 and discussed matters in accordance with its Terms of
Reference. The Agenda for the meeting is attached. Papers for the meeting have been circulated to all
Board members for information in the usual way.
2 Key Issues/Risks/Actions
Items of note considered at the meeting included:
Issues considered
Outcomes/decisions/actions
1 Audit of N&N
The Committee reviewed the Charitable Funds Annual Report and Accounts
Hospitals Charity
for 2018/19 and, having heard from KPMG as External Auditors, agreed to
Annual Report and recommend these to the Board in its capacity as Corporate Trustee.
Accounts
KMPG reported that:
(2018/19)
- there have been no issues with the quality of accounting;
- there have been no misstatements requiring correction; and
- they intend to issue an unqualified audit opinion.
KPMG have produced a standard Letter of Representation. There is one
additional paragraph, relating to the treatment of a legacy. The approach
taken is in accordance with the Charity SORP and the paragraph was
considered reasonable by the Committee. The Committee agreed to
recommend the Letter of Representation to the Board for approval.
[Approvals are subject of a separate Agenda item]
2 Implementation of
Internal Audit
recommendations

3 Internal Audit
Progress Report

4 Local Counter
Fraud Service
update

The Committee was updated with regard to implementation of Internal
Audit recommendations.
- improved reporting provides good visibility of recommendations that
have been implemented but shows lack of progress in some cases;
- agreement of the Risk Management Strategy will complete the 2017/18
recommendations;
- a dashboard regarding PFI performance is in development which will
increase visibility and enhance Board scrutiny.
The Committee was updated on progress with the Internal Audit Plan.
Additional audits on procedures regarding premium pay and staff promotion
have been added to the Internal Audit Plan.
There are delays in the finalisation of some IA reports and it may be helpful
to invite audit sponsors to future Committee meetings to report on audits
that are proving difficult to finalise.
The Committee was updated on progress in implementing the LCFS Annual
Plan.
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There is a need to enhance reporting on declarations of interest by ‘decision
makers’ and the LCFS will be reconciling the public ABPI data on gifts and
hospitality with the declarations that have been made by Trust staff.

5 Use of Single
Tender Waivers of
SFIs

The previous recommendation, to strengthen procurement processes in
cases involving N&N Charity funding, has been implemented. The new
system, utilising a specific charity cost code, has been introduced and will be
tested by LCFS when properly embedded.
An update report was provided with regard to circumstances in which we
depart from the tender procedure specified in SFIs. The new procedure
strengthens the previous arrangements and regular reporting to the
Committee will enable enhanced scrutiny and oversight.

6 Review of Financial
Framework and
Accounting
Policies:
- Update to SFIs
- Update to
Scheme of
Delegation

The Committee reviewed and approved updating amendments to Standing
Financial instructions (SFIs), to reflect the revised processes regarding Single
Tender Waivers. The Committee also reviewed consequential updates to the
Scheme of Delegation (as attached) and recommends these to the Board for
approval.

7 Risk Management
Strategy and
Structures

The Committee provided feedback on the draft Risk Management Strategy.
This is due to be reviewed by the HMB and the Board will need to review its
Risk Appetite as part of approving the Strategy.
The Committee requested that reference should be added in the CRR to the
Board Committee relevant to oversight of each risk.

3 Conclusions/Outcome/Next steps
The Committee is scheduled to meet again on 11 December 2019, at which meeting the Committee is
due to consider items in accordance with its agreed Work Programme including:
Review of policies and procedures relating to fraud and corruption:
Risk Management Update
Code of Governance Review
Emergency Preparedness and Business Continuity
Consolidation/Non-Consolidation of Charitable Funds
Recommendation:
The Board is recommended to:
- note the work of its Audit Committee; and
- approve the updates to the Scheme of Delegation as recommended.
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MEETING OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
11 SEPTEMBER 2019
A meeting of the Audit Committee will take place at 9am on 11 September 2019 in the Brancaster
Room of the Norfolk and Norwich University Hospital
AGENDA
Item
1

Apologies and Declarations of Interest

2

Minutes of meeting held on 29 May 2019

3

Matters arising

Lead

Purpose

Page No

Approval

2
9

4 Charitable Funds
4.1

Review of audited N&N Hospitals Charity Annual Report, financial
statements and commentary

JPG/JH

Approval

11

4.2

Report to Management / ISA 260 Report

KPMG

Information

51

4.3

Review of Letter of Representation – charitable funds

JH

Approval

63

JH

Information

66

RSM

Information

70

RSM

Information

111

JH

Information

123

JH

Approval

132

5 Internal Audit
5.1

Implementation of Internal Audit recommendations

5.2

Internal Audit Progress Report

6 Local Counter Fraud Service
6.1

LCFS Progress Report

7 Risk Management & Governance
7.1

Use of Single Tender Waivers of SFIs
Review of Financial Framework and Accounting Policies:

7.2

- Update to SFIs
- Update to Scheme of Delegation

7.3

Use of the Trust Seal

JPG

Information

184

7.4

Board Assurance Framework – quarterly review

JPG

Discussion

185

7.5

Risk Management Strategy and Structures

NF

Agreement

215

JPG

Agreement

247

8 External Audit
8.1

No reports scheduled this month

9 Committee Business
9.1

Agenda for next meeting

9.2

Any other business

Date and Time of next meeting
The next meeting of the Audit Committee will be at 9am on 11 December 2019 in the Brancaster
Room of the Norfolk and Norwich University Hospital
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Schedule of Matters Reserved for the Board and Scheme of Delegation
Post Holder Responsible for Policy:

CFO and Board Secretary

Directorate Responsible for Policy:

Finance and Legal Services

Contact Details:

3475

Date Revised:

December 2018September 2019

Approved By:

Audit Committee and Trust Board

Date Approved:

26 January 2018 11 September 2019 and 27 September 201930
November 2018

Next Due for Review:

December 2019

For use in:

Trust-wide

For use by:

All staff

Version Information
Version No.

Updated By

Updated On

Description of Changes

4

JPG

December 2018

Schedule of Matters Reserved revised by Board of Directors on 26.01.18 as part of Board
Terms of Reference.
Revision of Section 6 - Charitable Funds – Revised by Charitable Funds Committee on
30.11.18.

5

JPG

September 2019

Updating Section 5 (Procurement and Ordering) to reflect changes to SFIs, previous
deletion of Annex A from Standing Orders and revised arrangements around SFI Tender
Waivers.
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Section 5 – Procurement and Ordering
DELEGATED M ATTER

AUTHORITY DELEGATED TO

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS
SFIs Sections 209; SOs Annex A

5.1 Quotation, Tendering & Contract Procedures
a) Waiving of quotations & Tenders subject to SFIs

CFO or Nominated Deputy

b) Designate an officer responsible for receipt and custody of tenders
before opening.

CFO or Nominated Deputy

SFI Annex BSO Annex A (2.3)

c) Open tenders and quotations.

Two Nominated Senior Officers

SFI Annex B(ii)SO Annex A (3.1)

d) Decide whether any late tenders should be considered.

CE

SFI Annex B(iv)SO Annex A (4.1)

CFO

SFI 9.2 and 12 and 20

5.2 Responsible for systems of controls over requisition and receipt of
goods.

Section 6 - Charitable Funds
DELEGATED M ATTER

AUTHORITY DELEGATED TO

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS

6.1 Expenditure on Charitable Funds
i) Up to £2,000 per request

Fund Adviser (subject to Guidance for Fund
Advisers)

ii) Up to £10,000 per request

Executive Lead for Charitable Funds

iii) >£10,000 per request to an upper limit of £100,000

Charitable Funds Committee

iv) >£10,000 per request

Trust Board (Corporate Trustee) – unless
otherwise approved by Charitable Funds
Committee within its delegated authority

v) Interim Approval for requests >£10,000 (such Interim Approval is
only to be granted where delay until the next scheduled meeting of
the Corporate Trustee will be detrimental to the interests of the
Charity and it is subject to an upper limit of £50,000)

CFO or Executive Lead for Charitable Funds
and CEO

6.2 Investment of Charitable & Endowment Funds

Charitable Funds Committee

SFIs Section 16
Guidance for Fund Advisers

SFIs Sections 16. Charitable
Funds Committee Terms of
Reference
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REPORT TO THE TRUST BOARD
Date
Title

27 September 2019
Finance and Investments Committee meeting on 16.09.19

Lead

Mr Tim How (Chair of Committee and Non-Executive Director)

Purpose

For Information

1 Background/Context
The Finance and Investments Committee met on 16 September 2019 and discussed matters in
accordance with its Terms of Reference and agreed Work Programme. The Agenda for the meeting is
attached for information. Papers for the meeting have been circulated to all Board members for
information in the usual way.
2 Key Issues/Risks/Actions
The meeting was preceded by a visit to the Aylsham Discharge Suite. Items of note considered at the
meeting included:
Issues considered
Outcomes/decisions/actions
1
The Committee was updated on the capital position and progress in the
various capital development projects (DAC, IRU, PET-CT, new ward block). At
its meeting in October the Board will be reviewing the next phase in
Capital programme
developing the Estates Strategy. We expect to have received approval for
and major projects
our loan application by the end of September and the Board will be updated
update
at its meeting. If we have still not received a decision by the end of the
month, it will be necessary to consider further risk assessment and
contingency plans.
2 Activity
and  The Committee was updated by the COO on the challenges facing the
achievement
of
Trust in relation to key access standards. In accordance with the
contractual
priorities arising from discussions with the national regulatory team,
standards
there is particular focus on ED performance in minors, paediatrics and
ambulance turnaround.
 The RTT position remains very difficult. It was noted that the dayprocedure element of the Aylsham Unit appears to be working better
than the discharge suite element.
 The Committee considered BAF 1.2 & 1.3 in light of the ongoing gap
between demand and capacity. Although capacity is being built, the
demand challenge remains acute in relation to both emergency and
elective activity. In the circumstances it was agreed that the assurance
ratings for both ST 1.2 and 1.3 should be revised to ‘red’ – as attached
3 Digital
Strategy The Committee was updated by the CIO on progress in implementing the
implementation – Digital Strategy.
update
 we are progressing with the project to strengthen our IT infrastructure,
as agreed by the Board, to enhance resilience;
 the EDMS project is progressing to pilot stage – there is a need to be
cognisant of the risk on timing in relation to the break clause in the
Francis Centre lease in November 2021;
 potential suppliers for the STP-wide EPR have been engaged in ‘road
show’ events with staff across the 3 acute hospitals;
 steps are underway to establish a single STP Digital Health Team;
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 staff frustration with end user devices is well documented and features
significantly in staff experience surveys. Following support from the
Board we are looking at a managed service approach.
The Committee agreed to up-dating the indicators of success in BAF 3.1 to
reflect the revised digital ambitions established since 2017.
4 IRU/Cath
Lab The Committee received a summary of the IRU/cath lab contracting process.
Contract award
The recently issued technical specification for cerebral thrombectomy
(stroke) services requires ‘bi-plane’ scanning equipment and we are looking
for a suitable location to accommodate this in the hospital. At its meeting in
October, the Board is due to receive an update on implementation of our
Neurosciences Strategy.
5
The Committee reviewed the financial position as detailed in the IPR.
Financial
Updates to the Financial Recovery Plan are being prepared to reflect the
Performance YTD
latest position.
6
The Trust’s CIP challenge is £26.6m. Schemes to a value of £24.7m have
been approved through Gateway 2 and in the YTD £6.1m has been delivered.
The PMO RAG adjusted forecast is £17.3m indicating a significant risk to
CIP plans and
delivery. Risk of non-delivery of financial plan is rated 20 on CRR and the
progress
Committee was updated on the steps being taken to progress the CIP
programme.
7 Workforce
The Committee received a report from the CPO on possible workforceopportunities
related efficiencies and financial savings. There are 10 work-streams being
(BAF1.7)
supported by the PMO, including in the areas of temporary staffing, staff
rostering and enhancing the staff-bank. Whilst this falls within the remit of
the P&C Committee, F&IC will be updated at its next meeting due to the
financial implications.
8 Processes
for The Committee received a report with regard to Service Line analysis, which
Service
Line was due to be considered by the Management Board. The speciality
Reporting
generating the greatest deficit in 2018/19 was ED (£13.6m).
9 Update on UoR and The Committee was updated on the analysis of medical costs as highlighted
the NHSI review of by Model Hospital. There may be some overlap with the job planning audit.
financial
An action plan is to be established and the Committee will be updated at its
next meeting.
governance
1 Relevant Risks from
0 the Corporate Risk
Register

The Committee received the Corporate Risk Register and requested an
addition to the CRR highlighting the risks that are particularly pertinent to
the remit of the Committee.

3 Conclusions/Outcome/Next steps
The Committee is scheduled to meet again on 12 December 2019, at which meeting the Committee is
due to consider:
Capital programme and major projects update
Plans for Pharmacy Refurbishment
Activity and achievement of contractual standards
PFI contract monitoring
Financial Performance YTD
Procurement Review
Operational and Financial Planning and budget setting process 2020/21
The Committee stands ready to meet again in the meantime as events require, notably in relation to
revisions to the Financial Recovery Plan and to improve the financing of the Aylsham Suite.
Recommendation:
The Board is recommended to note the work of its Finance and Investments Committee.
48
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MEETING OF THE FINANCE AND INVESTMENTS COMMITTEE
16 SEPTEMBER 2019
A meeting of the Finance and Investments Committee will take place from 9.30am to 11.30am on
16 September 2019 in the Chief Executive’s Office of the Norfolk and Norwich University Hospital

AGENDA
Item
1

Apologies and Declarations of Interest

2

Minutes of meeting held on 17 July 2019
Update on actions

Lead

Purpose

All

Approval

Page

2
9

Activity, Estates and Capital Planning (BAF 1.2 (elective activity), 1.3 (emergency activity), 2.3
(provision of specialist services and facilities))
3

Capital programme and major projects update (BAF 2.3)

SH

Discussion

10

4

Proposed PFI land ‘carve out’

SH

Agreement

15

5

Activity and achievement of contractual standards (BAF 1.2 & 1.3)
-

IPR &

- Divisional Performance & Accountability Framework position

CC

6

PFI contract monitoring & management (inc preparation for
Soft FM services market testing)

SH

7

Digital Strategy implementation – update (BAF 3.1)

8

IRU/Cath Lab Contract award

17

Information

27

Information

31

AL

Information

Verbal

SH

Information

36

Financial Performance and Governance (BAF 1.4 (financial sustainability), 1.5 (capital),1.7
(premium pay) & 4.3 (cost effectiveness))
9

Financial Performance YTD (BAF 1.4)

JH

Information

40

10

2019/20 Fixed Outturn Position

JH

Discussion

53

11

CIP plans and progress

JH

Information

57

Discussion

67

12

Workforce opportunities (BAF1.7)
(Paul Jones available to join meeting from 10.30)

PJ

13

Processes for Service Line Reporting (BAF 4.3)

JH

Information

85

14

STP financial position

JH

Information

97

15

Update on UoR and the NHSI review of financial governance

JH

Information

112

All

Information

115

JPG

Agreement

123

All

Discussion

Committee Business
16

Relevant Risks from the Corporate Risk Register

17

Draft Agenda for next meeting

18

Any other business and reflections on the meeting

Date and Time of next meeting:
The next meeting will be from 1pm to 3.30pm on 12 December 2019 at the Norfolk and Norwich
University Hospital
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Strategic Objective: 1: We will be a provider of high quality health and care services to our local population
Threat 1.2

Elective demand continues to outstrip capacity and limits our ability to provide timely access to elective care

Desired outcome or deliverable:
Plans are established to expand elective capacity and, in the meantime, use of existing capacity is optimised such that RTT and cancer access
target trajectories can be achieved.
Associated indicators or measures of success
Review Process and Dates:
1. RTT trajectory compliance
Board of Directors 22.02.19, 26.4.19 & 28.06.19
2. Cancer access targets compliance
Finance & Investments Committee 11.02.19, 20.3.19 & 16.09.19
3. IPR productivity metrics
Quality & Safety Cmttee: 29.11.18, 16.01.19 & 12.03.19
4. Agreed plans for elective programme during Winter 2019/20
Audit Cmttee: 12.12.18, 13.03.19 & 11.09.19
5. Limited cancelled operations
Management Board: 5.3.19
Key controls, inputs & actions
(policies / procedures / structures etc)











Oversight of Divisional Performance Committee
Expansion of HDU capacity on Gissing (Dec ’17)
TB approval of 8 Point Winter Plan (July ’18)
NHSI approval of IRU loan (August ’18)
Aylsham discharge suite opened (Dec ’18)
Offsite renal dialysis plan approved (F&I - Feb
’19)
Strategic Case for Diagnostic Capacity agreed by
HMB (Mar ’19) & TB (April ’19)
MOU agreed with JPUH for Lead Provider
programme – to aid load balancing (Jan ’19)
TB review of draft Estates Strategy (June ’19)

Any additional actions planned or required:
1. Development of Estates Master Plan
2. Elective Care Strategy to be developed

Board Assurance Framework (Sept 2019)

Sources of assurance (+ve)
(i.e. evidence that the controls are effective – e.g.
reports from assurance committees, surveys,
internal or external audits and reports)








Monthly reports to MB, TB and public through
Performance, Productivity & Finance IPR
Cromer Expansion plan approved by TB Sept
2018
Services in Quadram Institute open – Dec 18
‘Deep Dive’ review of 62-day target
performance reviewed by Board – Nov ‘18
TB review of progress in Theatre Productivity
Action Plan (Feb ’19) & F&IC (May’19)
F&IC review of RTT and Cancer Recovery
Strategy (May ’19)
JAG review of QI Endoscopy facilities describes
them as ‘best in the UK’ (Sept ’19)
Timescale
Oct ‘19
Oct ’19

Lead
SH
SH/CC

How assured is
the Board that
controls are
adequate &
effective?
R
↘

Gaps in control/assurance (-ve)
(concerns or evidence that existing controls are not
wholly effective)
 NHSE figures show relatively low provision of
beds/population in central Norfolk (Feb ’18)
 IA Theatre Productivity review identifies opportunities
for improved efficiency (Sept ’18)
 RTT position under pressure with some patients waiting
>52weeks and waiting lists >45,000 patients (Jan ’19)
 STP-wide review of demand and capacity indicates
ongoing and growing shortfall in acute sector capacity –
need for 200 more beds (Jan ’19)
 High levels of demand and operational pressure
reflected in OPEL 4 status (June ’19)
 Risk of failure to achieve operational performance
targets rated 20 on CRR (Aug ’19)

Update
Scheduled for HMB & TB Strategy sessions – Sept & Oct ‘19
Needs further consideration on back of Estates Strategy

5
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Strategic Objective: 1: We will be a provider of high quality health and care services to our local population
Threat 1.3

How assured is
the Board that
controls are
adequate &
effective?

High level and unpredictability of emergency demand creates circumstances that threaten quality of service

Desired outcome or deliverable:
We can avoid those operational circumstances that result in unacceptable deterioration in quality
Associated indicators or measures of success
1. Minimised ambulance handover delays or 4hr breaches in ED
2. Minimised use of escalation areas
3. Rate of bed moves & boarders
4. Minimise cancelled ops and disruption to elective surgical programme
5. Quality indicators maintained - F&FT, QAA, IP&C, incidents, safety thermometer
Key controls, inputs & actions
(policies / procedures / structures etc)












Monthly reporting through IPR
Mortality Reduction Strategy approved (Sept 17). Key
Deliverables for 19/20 sets HSMR target <90 for 12
months to April ’20 & <85 for 12 months to April ‘21
Creation of OPED and Paediatric ED (Dec ’17)
Expansion of HDU capacity (Dec ’17)
TB approval of 8 Point Winter Plan (July ’18)
Revised Escalation Policy approved by HMB (Nov ’18)
Discharge Facility opened as part of winter plan (Dec ’18)
Establishment of Emergency & Urgent Care Board –
reporting to HMB (‘Apr ’19)
Agreement to relocate chronic dialysis off-site to release
space within the hospital (Apr ’19)
TB approves creation of new ward block to reflect BCG
recommendations that we increase bed numbers at
NNUH (June ’19)

Any additional actions planned or required:
1.
Board Assurance Framework (Sept 2019)

Review Process and Dates:
Board of Directors 30.11.18, 26.4.19 & 28.06.19
Quality & Safety Committee 16.01.19 & 12.03.19
Audit Cmttee: 12.12.18, 13.03.19 & 11.09.19
Management Board: 20.11.18 & 5.3.19
Finance & Investments Committee 16.09.19

Sources of assurance (+ve)
(i.e. evidence that the controls are effective – e.g. reports
from assurance committees, surveys, internal or external
audits and reports)









Repeat Internal Audit review of 4-hr target data
collection (“reasonable assurance”) (Sept ‘18)
HSMR ‘lower than expected’ – 84.7 (May ‘19)
Update report to Q&S Cmtee regarding monitoring of
non-clinical bed moves (Sept ’18)
Board approval of Winter expansion plans (Sept ’18)
Emergency Preparedness - compliance with EPRRBC
standards confirmed by self-assessment and regional
peer review (Sept 18)
NHSI/NHSE review of Winter Plans provides positive
feedback on preparedness (Nov ’18)
F&FT scores remain positive (95.1%) – July ‘19
Achievement of flu vaccination target (Nov ’18)

Timescale

Lead

R
↘

Gaps in control/assurance (-ve)
(concerns or evidence that existing
controls are not wholly effective)






Multiple episodes of whistleblowing
to CQC concerning use of escalation
areas (Mar ’18)
CQC concern over incidence of nonclinical bed moves (March ’18)
Ward refurbishment programme
suspended (Sept ’18)
Risks associated with 4-hr wait, RTT
and ambulance handover rated 20
on CRR (Aug ’19)
High levels of demand and
operational pressure reflected in
OPEL 4 status, even outside
‘traditional’ pressured periods (July
’19)

Update

6
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Strategic Objective: 1: We will be a provider of high quality health and care services to our local population
Threat 1.7

How assured is
the Board that
controls are
adequate &
effective?

Staff vacancies and/or demand outstripping supply has potential quality impact and may result in premium pay costs

Desired outcome or deliverable:
Timely recruitment and cost controls limits expenditure whilst the impact of unfilled shifts is mitigated
Associated indicators or measures of success
1. ‘Time to hire’ statistics
2. Unfilled shifts data
3. Premium pay spend
4. Long-term vacancies
5. Promotion of NNUH and Norwich/Norfolk brands as places to live & work

Key controls, inputs & actions
(policies / procedures / structures etc)











2 x daily review by Operations Team – to assess and reallocate staff
to areas of greatest need.
Recruitment metrics added to IPR (October 2017)
Workforce & Education Strategy approved by TB (Dec ‘17)
Nursing & Midwifery Strategy approved by TB (Dec ‘17)
Safe Staffing reporting established through Workforce Sub-Board
(May ’18) & Q&SC (June ’18)
Creation of People & Culture Committee (Dec ’18)
Recruitment video launched (Dec ’18)
Vacancy hotspot reporting reintroduced to TB CEO reports and
reviewed by Q&SC (July ‘19)
P&C Committee reviews divisional workforce position and
recruitment plans (May ’19)

Any additional actions planned or required:
1. Focus on workforce CIP opportunities for review at HMB & F&IC
Board Assurance Framework (Sept 2019)

Review Process and Dates:
Board of Directors 28.9.2018
Quality & Safety Cmttee: 16.01.19, 12.03.19 & 19.06.19
Audit Cmttee: 12.12.18, 13.03.19 & 11.09.19
People & Culture Cmttee:19.12.18, 12.02.19 & 14.5.19
Management Board: 5.3.19
Finance and Investments Committee 16.09.19

Sources of assurance (+ve)
(i.e. evidence that the controls are effective – e.g. reports
from assurance committees, surveys, internal or external
audits and reports)
 Monthly Workforce IPR metrics
 Weekly reporting of expenditure on temporary staffing
 Feedback from NHSI Use of Resources inspection –
especially complimentary of management of workforce
metrics (Oct 17)
 Regular reporting of nursing shift ‘fill rates’ as part of
IPR (Jan ’18)
 Q&SC direct observation of daily safe staffing processes
(Jan ’19)
 National Staff Survey 2018 shows improvement in
recommendation of NNUH as a place to work.
 Improved time to hire metrics reported to P&C Cmttee
(May ’19)
Timescale
Sept ‘19

Lead
PJ

A
↔

Gaps in control/assurance (ve)
(concerns or evidence that
existing controls are not
wholly effective)
 Vacancy levels in certain
clinical staff groups
 Continued use of agency
staff and premium-cost
staff above budget (July ’19)
 IA review of safe staffing
processes provides only
‘partial assurance’ (Jan ’18)
 IA review of consultant job
planning provides only
‘Partial Assurance’ (May
’19)

Update

10
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REPORT TO THE TRUST BOARD
Date

27 September 2019

Title

People and Culture Committee meeting 17.09.19

Lead

Professor David Richardson (Chair of the Committee and Non-Executive Director)

Purpose

For Information

1 Background/Context
The People and Culture Committee met on 17 September 2019 and discussed matters in accordance
with its Terms of Reference. The Agenda for the meeting is attached for information. Papers for the
meeting have been circulated to all Board members for information in the usual way.
2 Key Issues/Risks/Actions
Items of note considered at the meeting included:
Issues considered Outcomes/decisions/actions
1 Integrated
The Committee reviewed the workforce metrics in the IPR notably regarding:
- vacancies and recruitment. The associated policies and procedures
Performance
should be overseen by the Workforce & Education Governance SubReport –
Board and the Committee asked for an update to its next meeting;
workforce
- sickness absence (4.2%), in excess of the rolling average target of 3.9%
metrics
2 Mandatory
Training
improvement
actions (BAF 3.5 –
mandatory
training)

Following achievement of the 90% overall target rate in July, the Committee
received an update on further actions to maintain and improve the position
with regard to Mandatory Training compliance, notably:
- an open access reporting process for mandatory training compliance is to
be introduced, which will ensure openness and transparency, correction
of any errors and enable self-policing across the organisation;
- annual incremental pay progression will be conditional on achieving upto-date mandatory training compliance.
It was noted that the target rate of compliance for Information Governance
training is 95% and this needs further work.
The Committee reviewed the relevant assurance rating in the Board Assurance
Framework, as attached and agreed that the appropriate rating is improved to
‘amber’ – reflecting the progress that has been made particularly with regard
to mandatory training.
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3 Update
on
unconscious bias
training

4 Staff
Survey
‘temperature
test’
(inc
preparations for
2019
Staff
Survey)

5 Update
Freedom
Speak-up

on
to

6 Corporate
Register

Risk

 Following review of WRES data in February, the Committee requested
introduction of unconscious bias training for all staff who lead recruitment
panels. The Committee was informed that this has now been initiated.
 The Management Board has undertaken this training and the Committee
requested that this should be built into a future development meeting for
the Trust Board.
 The learning will be incorporated into a revised Values Based Recruitment
course. This will ensure the training is delivered on a business as usual
basis.
 The Committee discussed issues relating to diversity and inclusion and
common challenges and opportunities between the Trust and UEA.
Following a previous review of staff experience, the Committee encouraged
use of a ‘temperature check’ process, to monitor the position and guide
actions between the annual Staff Surveys.
The Committee received the output from a survey conducted during July/Aug.
Staff were asked to identify key actions to improve their work experience and
a summary is attached. The most common area of suggestion concerned
improvement to facilities and technology.
The Committee reviewed BAF 1.6 (staff motivation & engagement) and agreed
that the assurance rating remains at Red-Amber (as attached).
The Committee received an update from the Lead FTSU Guardian:
- the number of contacts (c.30 per quarter) is now equivalent to the total
number of cases that were reported under the system before a full-time
guardian was appointed. It is positive that staff are using our system,
rather than feeling the need to approach external agencies.
- October is National Speak Up Month and the team will be promoting the
‘Work In Confidence’ anonymous system for staff to raise concerns if they
do not feel able to discuss these with their line manager.
The Committee reviewed BAF 4.2 and agreed that whilst progress is being
made in enhancing staff and public engagement there is still work to do and
the rating remains Amber (as attached).
The Committee received the Corporate Risk Register and requested a
summarised version – indicating which risks apply particularly to the remit of
the Committee.

3 Conclusions/Outcome/Next steps
At its next meeting the Committee is scheduled to consider items including:
- arrangements for education governance
- arrangements for development of ‘middle managers’
- overview of cultural change initiatives
Recommendation:
The Board is recommended to note the work of its People and Culture Committee
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MEETING OF THE PEOPLE AND CULTURE COMMITTEE
17 SEPTEMBER 2019

A meeting of the People and Culture Committee will take place at 1pm on 17 September
2019 in Room 8 of the Bob Champion Research and Education Building

AGENDA
Item

Lead

Purpose

Page
No

Chair

Approval

2

1

Apologies and Declarations of Interest

2

Minutes of meeting held on 14 May 2019

3

Matters arising & update on actions

All

Discussion

9

4

Integrated Performance Report – workforce metrics

PJ

Discussion

11

5

Mandatory Training improvement actions (BAF 3.5 –

PJ

Discussion

15

mandatory training)

6

Update on unconscious bias training

PJ

Information

23

7

Freedom to Speak-up update (BAF 4.2 – PRIDE values)

FD

Discussion

24

8

Staff Survey ‘temperature test’ (inc preparations for 2019
Staff Survey) (BAF 1.6 staff motivation & engagement)

PJ

Discussion

27

9

Consultant Job Planning Internal Audit Report

PJ/ED

Discussion

38

10

Relevant risks from the Corporate Risk Register

All

Information

62
70

Committee Business
11

Date and Agenda for next meeting

JPG

Agreement

12

Any other business

Chair

Discussion

13

Reflections on the meeting

All

Discussion

Date and time of next meeting:
The next meeting of the People and Culture Committee will take place on xx November at xpm in
the [location]
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Staff Temperature Check Survey

People & Culture Committee
17th September 2019
57

Survey Methodology
Key Dimensions

Purpose

Provide a high level understanding of staff

Invitation

Survey was open to all employees, nonattributable

Survey Period

Open for a three week period ending August
2019. This represents the first FFT feedback from
employees since 2017

Participation Rate

mood, in advance of the annual NHS survey

452 responses received (historically less than 50)

2
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If the Trust could do one thing to improve your experience of working here,
what would it be?
Facilities and Technology
Management and Leadership

20%

24%

Morale
Recruitment and Retention
Health and Wellbeing
11%

5%

Safe Environment Bullying and Harassment
EDI
Staff Engagement

7%

1%
10%
15%

4%

Other
Training and Development
No Reason Given

1%

Theme

2%

Common Improvement Suggestion

Facilities and Technology

Better facilities, such as rest areas for staff and increased amount of departmental space for desks
etc.

Staff Engagement

Improved lines of communication between departments and hospital sites - listening to staff
needs.

Management and Leadership

Stronger sense of leadership, more visibility in the department and a better understanding of the
long term plans and wishes of the Trust.

Recruitment and Retention

Increase staffing levels 9and find out the reason staff are leaving.
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Proposed Next Steps

Step

Date

Executive Team – High level Results

Presentation to People & Culture Committee

9th September
17th September

Staff Temperature Check Results Shared with Divisional
Management, JSCC and Staff

18th September

“You Said, We Did” Communication Campaign in run up to 2019
NHS staff survey

20th September

Staff Survey Planning Discussion with JSCC

NHS Annual Staff Survey

10

3rd October

October – November
2019
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Strategic Objective 3 - We will be a centre of excellence for research, education and innovation
Threat 3.5

Operational pressures, demands of financial challenge and enhanced regulatory scrutiny limits ability to maintain
commitments to education, mandatory training, and appraisal

Desired outcome or deliverable
We are able to achieve our commitments to education, mandatory training and appraisal
Associated indicators or measures of success
1. There is engaging and accessible CPD and professional education in place, relevant to all staff
2. Mandatory training rates
3. Appropriate appraisal rates
4. Positive staff feedback on quality of training & development
5. Access to mandatory training is facilitated
Key controls, inputs & actions
(policies / procedures / structures etc)











Remote access to e-learning
Oversight of Workforce & Education Sub-board
Oversight of Divisional Performance Committee
Monthly reports to MB, TB and public through
Workforce section of IPR
HMB review of mandatory training structure &
arrangements (Sept 2017)
Workforce & Education Strategy approved by TB (Dec
’17)
Recruitment of Chief Nurse joint endeavour with UEA
(March ’18)
Creation of People & Culture Committee (Dec ’18)
Mandatory Training improvement actions reviewed by
P&C (Sept ’19)

A
↗

Sources of assurance (+ve)
(i.e. evidence that the controls are effective – e.g.
reports from assurance committees, surveys, internal
or external audits and reports)

Gaps in control/assurance (-ve)
(concerns or evidence that existing controls are
not wholly effective)

 GMC Junior Doctor survey reports NNUH as one of
most popular placements in Eastern Region (July
17)
 Teaching at UEA achieves Gold Ranking in Teaching
Excellence Framework (August 17)
 IA review of mandatory training processes (August
17) – reasonable assurance
 A&E MCA training rates improved (April ’17)
 Guardian of Safe Working Hours – report to HMB
(May ’18)
 +ve UEA Complete University Guide results for
non-medical education (April ’18)
 Achievement of mandatory training target 90%
(July ’19)



Any additional actions planned or required:
1. Review of education facilities to form part of developing Estates Strategy
Board Assurance Framework (Sept 2019)

Review Process and Dates:
Board of Directors 28.9.18
Audit Cmttee: 12.12.18, 13.03.19 & 11.09.19
People & Culture Cmtee:19.12.18 &
17.09.19
Management Board: 5.3.19

How assured is
the Board that
controls are
adequate &
effective?

Timescale
Oct ‘19

Lead
SH






Negative staff survey feedback on quality of
some training.
CQC requires improvement in mandatory
training as a ‘must do’ (August 17)
CQC Warning Notice references elements of
Mandatory training (Dec ‘17)
CQC Report references failure to achieve
Mandatory Training target in evidence for
Inadequate rating (June ’18)
Pre-Board visit highlights inadequacy of
some education facilities (June ’19)

Update
Scheduled for Board Strategy session Oct ‘19
20
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Strategic Objective: 1: We will be a provider of high quality health and care services to our local population
Threat 1.6

How assured is
the Board that
controls are
adequate &
effective?

Potential deficit in staff motivation, engagement & resilience may impact on quality of care

Desired outcome or deliverable:
High levels of staff morale, engagement and well-being are achieved
Associated indicators or measures of success
1. We have a clear understanding and action plans for areas of most concern
revealed by Staff Survey
2. There is clear evidence of action and change in response to the staff survey
3. Development of a staff engagement culture
4. Recruitment & retention performance
5. Responsive & kind local managers and improved staff feedback

Review Process and Dates:
Board of Directors 28.9.18 & 31.5.19
Quality & Safety Cmttee: 29.11.18, 16.01.19 & 12.03.19
Audit Cmttee: 12.12.18, 13.03.19 & 11.09.19
People & Culture Cmtee: 12.02.19, 14.05.19. 17.09.19
Management Board: 19.2.19 & 5.3.19

Key controls, inputs & actions
(policies / procedures / structures etc)













Sources of assurance (+ve)
(i.e. evidence that the controls are effective – e.g. reports
from assurance committees, surveys, internal or external
audits and reports)
Viewpoint & CEO communications
 IPR reports staff related metrics monthly
Health & Well-being Strategy approved (July 2017)
 IA review of Spine of Decision Making (April 17 –
‘substantial assurance’)
Workforce & Education Strategy approved by TB (Dec ‘17)
 IA review of Sickness & Absence (July ’17 – ‘reasonable
Kings Fund review in response to Staff Survey (May ’18)
assurance’)
Leading with PRIDE programme launched (Sept ’18)]
 PWC independent review of leadership & governance
Clinical team leadership programme commissioned (Nov ’18)
gives positive feedback on divisional development and
Full-time FTSU Guardian recruited (Nov ’18)
cultural change in the Trust (Nov ’17)
Monthly Speak-up reporting initiated to HMB & TB (Nov ‘18)
 People & Culture Cmtee reviews progress against Kings
People & Culture Committee established (Dec ’18)
Fund Actions and W&E Strategy priorities for 2019/20
Additional ‘unconscious bias’ training to be initiated following
(Feb ’19)
P&C review of WRES (Feb ’19)

Staff survey actions reviewed by Trust Board (May ’19).
P&C review of vacancies & recruitment (May ’19)

Any additional actions planned or required:
1. Overview of cultural change initiatives to be considered by P&C

Board Assurance Framework (Sept 2019)

Timescale
Nov ‘19

Lead

R

A
↔

Gaps in control/assurance (-ve)
(concerns or evidence that
existing controls are not wholly
effective)
 Concern raised by CQC about
arrangements for staff to Speak
Up or raise concerns (March
’18)
 Negative CQC Well-led report
(June ’18)
 Inconsistent
Medical
Engagement survey feedback
(Feb ’19)
 ‘Temperature check’ survey
indicates that there is still
progress to make in improving
staff perception of work in the
Trust (Sept ’19)
Update

PJ

9
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Strategic Objective: 4: We will be a leader in the design and delivery of health and social care services in Norfolk
Threat 4.2

We operate in a high risk environment – our reputation is susceptible to ‘events’ (we need proactive reputational
management, internal & external comms, Membership and brand management)

Desired outcome or deliverable:
We have a resilient high-quality reputation capable of withstanding untoward events
Associated indicators or measures of success
1. Positive Patient Feedback
2. Growing and engaged Membership
3. Development of a staff engagement culture
4. Appropriate public and patient involvement
5. Thriving Trust charity with growing visibility and impact

Review Process and Dates:
Board of Directors 28.9.2018
Audit Cmttee: 12.12.18, 13.03.19 & 11.09.19
People & Culture Committee: 14.12.18 & 16.09.19
Management Board: 5.3.19

How assured is
the Board that
controls are
adequate &
effective?
A
↔

Key controls, inputs & actions
(policies / procedures / structures etc)











Sources of assurance (+ve)
Gaps in control/assurance (-ve)
(i.e. evidence that the controls are effective – e.g.
(concerns or evidence that existing
reports from assurance committees, surveys,
controls are not wholly effective)
internal or external audits and reports)
PEEG Governance Structure oversees patient and public involvement  Regular reports through IPR on patient  Kings Fund report on OD notes size
experience
of challenge for Trust to make
PRIDE signage implemented (Aug 2017)
further improvements in culture of
Enhanced ToRs for Capital & Estates Committee approved by HMB  Kings Fund report on OD notes improvements
Trust (May ’18)
in
culture
of
Trust
over
last
two
years
(May
(Sept 17)
’18)
 Immaturity
of
patient/public
Charitable Funds Committee agrees annual budget and plan for
engagement processes rated 15 on
 Charity Annual Report (2018/19) documents
Charity (Feb ’19)
CRR (Jan ’19)
increase in profile of Charity together with
Kings Fund action plan reviewed by TB (June ’18)
increase
in
income
and
expenditure
plans

‘Temperature
check’
survey
Leading with PRIDE programme (Oct ’18)
(Sept
’19)
indicates
that
there
is
still
progress
Lead for Patient Engagement appointed (March 19)
to make in improving staff
 FTSU update to P&C (Sept ‘19) demonstrates
Patient Panel established (July ’19)
perception of work in the Trust
increased
use
of
the
system
by
staff
Ongoing cycle of patient reflections to the Trust Board established
(Sept ’19)
(Sept ’19)

Any additional actions planned or required:
1. Plans in development for public-facing charity accommodation
2. Overview of cultural change initiatives to be considered by P&C

Board Assurance Framework (Sept 2019)

Timescale

Lead

Oct ‘19
Nov ‘19

SH
PJ

Update
For progression by Estates Team & review by Charity Committee (Oct ‘19)
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Integrated
Performance Report
September 2019 (August 2019 data)
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Finance - Lead Director John Hennessey

Executive Summary
• The reported deficit for the year to date at month 5 is £18.3m which is £2.9m behind budget. In month there was a deficit of £4.0m which was £2.0m behind
budget.
• Clinical Income Excluding adjustments for the NHSE Specialised block (£1.6m) and pass through payments (£1.0m) the income based on actual activity to
date is £2.2m behind budget. Electives are down £3.2m with activity down 21.8%. Non electives are down £1.3m with activity down 2.4%. Day-cases are up
£0.4m with activity up 5.0%. A&E up £0.3m with activity up 3.3%. Spire is £1.0m more than budget. Reported YTD income is £0.4m ahead of budget
excluding non tariff drugs.
• Pay is overspent for the year to date by £2.3m (1.5%). Key areas of overspend are Medicine £1.0m, Urgent & Emergency Care £1.0m and Surgery £0.2m.
In all areas the overspend is being driven by temporary staffing costs i.e. locums, bank, agency, overtime. In month pay was overspent by £0.6m.
• Non Pay is underspent by £0.1m year to date, however there is an adverse movement of £0.3m in month due to high costs of non clinical supplies .
• The CIP Target is £26.6m. The budget for M5 YTD was £6.81m. Of this £0.79m was not achieved. FIP Board approved plan is £7.59m YTD.
• Financial Recovery Plan: At month 5 we are behind the financial recovery target by £2.1m. Of this, £0.7m is because income is less than the recovery target
and £1.4m is because expenditure is greater than the recovery target.
SUMMARY INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

Clinical Income excluding NT Drugs
NT Drugs
Other Income
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME
Pay Costs
Drugs
Other Non Pay Costs
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
EBITDA
Depreciation
Finance Costs
Other - PDC, Disposals & Interest Income
(Deficit)/surplus after tax excluding Donated Additions

In Month
Actual
Budget
£m
£m
39.1
39.6
5.2
5.9
8.5
9.4
52.8
54.9
(31.6)
(31.0)
(6.2)
(7.0)
(15.5)
(15.2)
(53.3)
(53.2)
(0.5)
1.7
(0.7)
(0.8)
(2.8)
(2.9)
0.0
0.0
(4.0)
(2.0)

Variance
(adv)/fav
£m
(0.5)
(0.7)
(0.9)
(2.1)
(0.6)
0.8
(0.3)
(0.1)
(2.2)
0.1
0.1
0.0
(2.0)

Year to Date
Full Year Forecast
Variance
Variance
Actual
Budget (adv)/fav Forecast Budget (adv)/fav
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
198.5
198.1
0.4
478.6
478.6
0.0
27.5
29.5
(2.0)
70.7
70.7
0.0
42.9
44.7
(1.8)
118.1
118.1
0.0
268.9
272.3
(3.4)
667.4
667.4
0.0
(158.8)
(156.4)
(2.4)
(374.1)
(374.1)
0.0
(32.2)
(34.9)
2.7
(83.8)
(83.8)
0.0
(78.1)
(78.0)
(0.1)
(184.9)
(184.9)
0.0
(269.1)
(269.3)
0.2
(642.8)
(642.8)
0.0
(0.2)
3.0
(3.2)
24.6
24.6
0.0
(4.1)
(4.1)
0.0
(10.6)
(10.6)
0.0
(14.1)
(14.3)
0.2
(35.6)
(35.6)
0.0
0.1
0.0
0.1
0.1
0.1
0.0
(18.3)
(15.4)
(2.9)
(21.5)
(21.5)
0.0
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Income and Expenditure Summary as at M5 - Aug 2019
The reported I&E position for M5 is a deficit of £4.0m, against budget of
£2.0m. This is a £2.0m adverse variance in month (adverse variance of
£2.9m YTD).
The key in month variances are Clinical Income £0.5m adverse, Pay
£0.5m adverse, Non Clinical Supplies £0.3k adverse

Summary of I&E Indicators
Income and Expenditure

In month (deficit) / surplus

Actual /
Forecast
£'000

Budget /
Target
£'000

Variance
to Budget
(adv) / fav
£'000

Direction
of travel
(variance)

RAG

(4,060)

(2,045)

(2,015)

Red

YTD (deficit) / surplus

(18,284)

(15,373)

(2,911)

Red

Forecast (deficit) / surplus

(21,453)

(21,453)

NHS Clinical Income (exc Drugs) YTD

198,530

198,155

42,875

44,682

(1,807)

Red

(158,750)

(156,437)

(2,313)

Red

(78,089)

(77,988)

(101)

Amber

Net Drugs YTD

(4,774)

(5,454)

680

Green

Non Opex YTD

(18,076)

(18,331)

255

Green

CIP Target YTD

6,068

6,856

(788)

Red

Other Income YTD
Pay YTD
Non Pay (exc Drugs) YTD

Green

375

Green

Other Indicators
Cash at Bank
Borrowings

Green
Amber
Red

4,959
(139,888)

Criteria:
Favourable or nil variance
Adverse Variance less than £200k
Adverse Variance more than £201k

1,155
(137,942)

3,804

Green

(1,946)

Red

In month improvement and YTD favourable
In month improvement and YTD adverse
No change
In month deterioration and YTD favourable
In month deterioration and YTD adverse
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Income Analysis

The chart below sets out the monthly phasing of the clinical income budget for
2019/20. This phasing is in line with activity phasing which is how the income is
recognised. The phasing is responsive to actual days and working days, hence
the monthly variation.

Total Elective, inc. Day Cases

Activity
10,000
9,500
9,000

8,500
8,000
7,500
7,000
6,500

6,000
Apr

2019-20 phasing of clinical income £

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

1920 Budget

Sep

Oct

Nov

1920 Actual

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

1819 Actual

42,000
Non-Elective

Activity
7,000

40,000

6,000

38,000

5,000
4,000

36,000

3,000

2,000

34,000

1,000

32,000

0
Apr

30,000

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

1920 Budget

Apr May Jun

Jul

1819 Actual

Aug Sep

Oct Nov Dec

1920 Budget

Jan

Sep

Oct

Nov

1920 Actual

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

1819 Actual

Feb Mar

1920 Actual

Outpatients

Activity
75,000
70,000

The income position was behind of budget for August by £0.5m, with £0.2k
upside due to refresh from Month 4 Day 4 Income to Final Contract Monitoring
leaving c. £0.7 underperformance before CIP’s. Surgery underperformance
excl. CIP (£0.8m) across both Elective and Non Elective.

Income (£'000s)
Daycase (inc. Reg Day Attd)
Elective
Non Elective
Marginal Rate Reduction
Accident & Emergency
Outpatients
CQUIN
C&V
Other
Total

Current month
Year to date
Budget
Actual
Variance Budget
Actual
Variance
4,207
4,355
148
21,352
22,063
711
3,943
3,108
-835
19,856
17,033
-2,824
13,523
13,302
-220
67,538
66,247
-1,292
-758
-758
0
-3,792
-3,792
0
1,795
1,858
63
8,790
9,117
327
7,025
6,590
-434
35,558
35,263
-294
426
413
-13
2,137
2,188
51
5,960
5,952
-7
29,556
29,700
143
3,458
4,238
780
17,160
20,711
3,552
39,579
39,059
-520
198,155
198,530
375

65,000
60,000
55,000

50,000
45,000
40,000
Apr

May

Jun

Jul

1920 Budget

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

1920 Actual

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

1819 Actual

A&E Attendances

Activity
14,000
13,000
12,000
11,000
10,000

9,000
8,000
7,000
Apr

May

Jun

1920 Budget

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

1920 Actual

Nov

Dec

Jan
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£350

£700

£300

£600
Income per spell

Income per spell

Total Income Analysis (exc. Other)

£250
£200
£150
£100

£500
£400
£300
£200
£100

£50

£0

£0
Apr May Jun

Jul

Aug Sep

Oct Nov Dec Jan

Apr May Jun

Feb Mar

Jul

Aug Sep

Oct Nov Dec

Jan

2019/20 Budget

2019/20 Actual

2019/20 Budget

2019/20 Actual

2018/19 Actual

2017/18 Actual

2018/19 Actual

2017/18 Actual

£2,500
Income per spell

£4,000
£3,500
£3,000
£2,500
£2,000
£1,500
£1,000
£500
£0

Feb Mar

Non Elective Analysis (exc. Marginal Rate)

Elective Analysis
Income per spell

Day Case Analysis

£2,000
£1,500

£1,000
£500
£0

Apr May Jun

Jul

Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Apr May Jun

Jul

Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

2019/20 Budget

2019/20 Actual

2019/20 Budget

2018/19 Actual

2017/18 Actual

2018/19 Actual

2019/20 Actual
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Pay Analysis
Monthly Expenditure (£)
As at August 2019

Aug-19
£'000
31,038

Jul-19
£'000
31,217

Jun-19
£'000
31,065

May-19
£'000
31,220

Apr-19
£'000
31,895

Mar-19
£'000
28,217

27,549

27,302

27,147

27,584

28,332

25,368

279

456

322

511

363

373

567

531

797

443

602

813

Budgeted costs in month
Actuals:
Substantive staff
Medical External Locum Staff*
Medical Internal Locum Staff
Additional Medical Sessions
Nursing Agency Staff*
Nursing Bank Staff
Other Agency (AHPs/A&C)*
Other Bank (AHPs/A&C)
Overtime
On Call
Total temporary expenditure
Total Pay costs
Variance Fav / (Adv)
Monthly Movement Increase/(Decrease)

427

422

470

449

431

584

676
1,122
222
179
325
210

570
1,032
362
165
392
203

648
1,034
198
147
445
198

659
992
218
142
451
180

696
949
259
126
762
200

791
992
342
157
592
213

4,008
31,557
(518)
121

4,134
31,436
(218)
29

4,260
31,407
(342)
(223)

4,046
31,630
(410)
(1,090)

4,388
32,720
(825)
2,495

Temp Staff costs % of Total Pay
Memo: Total agency spend in month*

13%
1,177

13%
1,388

14%
1,168

13%
1,389

13%
1,318

Substantive Staff Growth over
12 month period
Staff Group
A&C
AHP
Apprentices
Medical
Midwives
Nursing
Other
Science, Professional Technical
Grand Total

Aug-18
WTE
1,383
579
87
1,026
208
2,729
219
681
6,911

Aug-19
WTE
1,511
610
71
1,128
201
3,009
248
671
7,449

12 month
12 month
Substantive Substantive
Increase
Increase %
WTE
%
128
9.2%
31
5.3%
(16)
(18.2%)
103
10.0%
(7)
(3.1%)
280
10.3%
28
13.0%
(10)
(1.5%)
537
7.8%

4,857
30,225
(2,008)

Data taken from the workforce return as agreed with
deputy workforce director each month.
Actuals taken from NHSI return which is generated
from the ledger.
Employed substantive provided by payroll. This is
converted into WTE that are populated in the ledger,
and reported to NHSI, via the workforce return.
sourced from payroll.
The table below represent the substantive WTE
movement in the last 12 month’s.

Jul-19 Includes £267k of 18/19 accrual releases, split
as follows:
16% • Agency £181k
1,506 • Internal Locums £44k
• External Locums £42k

Premium Pay by Division
(Excl. On Call)
Aug-19
Jul-19 May-19
Apr-19
Mar-19
Feb-19
Division
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000
Medicine
1,136
1,198
1,178
1,176
1,212
1,370
Emergency & Urgent Care
606
733
822
602
691
608
Surgery
1,136
1,208
1,195
1,230
1,364
1,639
Women & Childrens
278
352
377
351
355
381
Clinical Support
479
512
385
382
460
520
Services
158
191
101
122
104
122
R&D Projects
6
3
5
4
2
4
Total
3,798
4,197
4,062
3,866
4,188
4,644
18/19 Balance Sheet accrual releases of £267k excluded from Divisional Breakdown
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CIP Analysis

FY19/20 YTD CIP Performance
• The Trust has delivered £6.1m of CIPs against a FIP Board approved plan of £7.6m, an
under-performance of £1.5m arising through adverse performance in:
• Clinical income initiatives, particularly within the surgical specialties and
theatre productivity; and
• Under-recovery of private patient income against plan. It is anticipated that the
current adverse variance can be recovered and may just be a timing
difference between planned receipt and actual receipt.
•

The £6.1m of YTD delivery represents an underperformance of £0.8m against the
annual plan of £6.9m.

•

20.0
15.0

0.0

FY19/20 Performance by Division
CIP Delivery
Number of
YTD
FIP
Board
schemes 'In
YTD Actual YTD Variance
Approved Plan
Delivery'
£'000
£'000
£'000
2,204.2
1,981.1
(223.0)
21
1,233.7

(739.9)

3.000

Women & Children's

24

615.3

631.7

16.5

2.500

Clinical Support Services

29

1,726.1

1,241.9

(484.2)

2.000

Emergency & Urgent Care

2

38.2

36.9

(1.3)

1.500

Corporate

10

1,034.0

943.0

(91.0)

1.000

Cross-Divisional*

6

-

-

-

7,591.4

6,068.4

(1,523.0)

6,861.2

6,861.2

730.2

(792.8)

*Cross-divisional plan and actuals have been allocated to the relevant divisions

Target

Identified Schemes @
13/09/2019
Gateway 2

PMO RAG Adjusted
Forecast Delivery
Gateway 1

FIP Approved
Plan YTD
£'000
3,064.4
902.0
2,077.1
1,478.2
69.8
7,591.4

YTD Delivered CIP

Pipeline

Actual YTD
£'000
2,488.8
794.8
2,075.5
701.7
7.7
6,068.4

Variance
£'000
(575.6)
(107.2)
(1.6)
(776.4)
(62.1)
(1,523.0)

*Information is shown as the savings identified net of any costs associated with the delivery of clinical
income initiatives.

1,973.7

Variance to Annual Plan

6.1

Clinical Income
Pay*
Non-pay*
Other Income*
Non-Opex

25

YTD per Annual Plan

17.3

Category

Surgery

117

24.7

Target

A detailed review of all clinical income initiatives, particularly within surgery and medicine
need to be performed to ensure an accurate revised forecast plan is identified and
included within the CIP plan.

Medicine

26.6

10.0

The risk adjusted forecast delivery for FY19/20 is currently calculated as £17.4m based
on the latest forecast financial performance of in delivery schemes, progress against
milestone delivery and performance against quality and performance indicators.

Division

2.3
1.6

25.0

5.0

FY19/20 CIP Plan Development
• To date £28.5m of opportunity has been identified to be developed through the Trust’s
governance gateway process, of which £24.7m has been approved through Gateway 2.
•

FY19/20 CIP Identified Position

30.0

FY19/20 Monthly CIP Phasing

0.500
0.000
Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19

Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20

Annual Plan (revised)
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Summary by Division
Medicine
Clinical Income - M05 overachieved by £273k - £337k prior month catch-up, (£64k)
underachievement in month, mainly due to a decrease in in elective income in
Cardiology and Gastroenterology, along with a reduction in outpatient income across all
specialties. This is partly mitigated by an increase in day case income in Cardiology
and Haematology. Year to date overachieved by £1,085k due to an overachievement in
day case and non-elective activity over the reduction in elective activity.
Other Income - M05 drugs income underachieved by (£557k), offset by an overspend
on drugs. YTD drugs income underachievement (£1,609k). Other income (£14k) in
month, (£4k) YTD.
Pay - M05 overspend of (£196k). Overspending in Oncology (£44k) driven by nursing
premium pay and locum SHO costs. Neurosciences (£38k) driven by external locum
consultant and internal locum Junior Doctor expenditure in Stroke. Respiratory (£33k)
driven by locum junior doctor expenditure and not meeting the expected level of
vacancy. Cardiology (£30k) driven by an additional bank nursing costs and external
locum SHO expenditure.
Non-Pay - M05 drugs cost underspent by £593k, offset by an underachievement on
drugs income, YTD drugs underspent £1,907k. M05 clinical supplies (£44k), increase in
Cardiology med & surg. and stent usage in EP, PCI and Pacing, (£379k) YTD. Other
small overspends of £82k in M05 and (£188k) YTD.
Emergency and Urgent care
Clinical Income – Over performance of £54k due to 3.1% increase in activity offset by
£40k prior month catch up
Pay – Overspent by £142k due to £125k overspend on ED Locums and £90k overspend
in ED Nursing, of which Agency: £110k. Offset by vacancies across the Integrated
Discharge team
Non-Pay – small underspend of £25k offset by Other Income

DIRECTORATES INCOME &
EXPENDITURE
MEDICINE
Total Income
Pay Costs
Non-Pay Costs
Total Expenditure
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)
EMERGENCY & URGENT CARE
Total Income
Pay Costs
Non-Pay Costs
Total Expenditure
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)
SURGERY
Total Income
Pay Costs
Non-Pay Costs
Total Expenditure
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

Actual
£k

Aug-19
Budget
£k

Variance
F/(A)
£k

Actual
£k

Year to date
Budget
£k

19,776
(8,733)
(6,902)
(15,635)

20,074
(8,537)
(7,533)
(16,071)

(298)
(196)
631
435

99,627
(43,621)
(36,332)
(79,953)

100,447
(42,641)
(37,672)
(80,313)

(820)
(980)
1,340
360

4,141

4,003

138

19,674

20,134

(460)

1,812
(2,035)
(346)
(2,381)

1,784
(1,893)
(321)
(2,214)

28
(142)
(25)
(167)

9,107
(10,526)
(1,717)
(12,243)

8,765
(9,523)
(1,660)
(11,183)

342
(1,003)
(57)
(1,060)

(569)

(430)

(139)

(3,136)

(2,418)

(718)

14,255
(9,242)
(4,149)
(13,391)

15,258
(9,158)
(4,213)
(13,371)

(1,003)
(84)
64
(20)

73,089
(46,301)
(21,128)
(67,429)

76,227
(46,100)
(20,866)
(66,966)

(3,138)
(201)
(262)
(463)

864

1,887

(1,023)

5,660

9,261

(3,601)

Variance
F/(A)
£k

Surgery
Clinical Income - M05 underachieved by £1m in; General Surgery (£316k), T&O (£477k), Vascular (£144k). YTD clinical income is underachieving by £2.5m - specialties are General
Surgery (£1,249k), Vascular (£685k), T&O (£1,050k) & Plastics (£320k).
Pay - The Division continues to overspend YTD (£202k). Overspending specialties include; Urology (£188k) & Vascular (£230k) which are running with fewer vacancies than budgeted &
Plastics (£293k) where locum costs have overspent month. Unembedded CIPs in Divisional Management are creating an adverse variance of £94k/£468k YTD.
The Division has a Vacancy Factor for the month/YTD of £704k/£4,211k, substantive vacancies totalled £758k/£4,066k. The underspend on premium pay YTD is £411k.
Non-Pay - The YTD overspend on Non-Pay (£270k) is the result of additional Spire costs (offset through income). The overspend in the month relating to Spire is £187k. The total overspend
on Spire YTD now totals £1,009k. Non-Pay, net of Spire, is underspent for the YTD (£739k).
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Summary by Division continued
Women’s and Children’s
Clinical Income - £531k underachieved YTD driven by Paediatric non elective activity levels.
There are two main reasons for this, firstly a higher proportion of children are now going
through ED instead of coming straight to CAU and secondly there was an additional % of
growth added to the CAU plan to align to the BCG forecast which hasn't materialised.
Pay - underspent YTD £56k, Pay costs continue to be down in M5, driven by vacancies within
paediatric nursing. NQ's will commence Sept/Oct 19.
Non Pay - Overspent YTD by £257k. In M5 we have seen an underspend of £65k driven by a
reduction in insulin pumps in month as well as drugs costs being down in month
Clinical Support
Clinical Income - £130k underachieved YTD. predominantly relating to direct access EPA
work in M5. YTD position includes £843k of CIP’s
Other Income - £319k underachieved YTD. Drugs are underachieved by £284k on Pharmacy
drugs (offset by costs). Underachievement in private work in the Blood Sciences.
Pay - £270k Overspent YTD. £118k overspent in EPA, due to Agency staff required to cover
vacancies. £114k in Cell Path due to Agency in the Histology Lab. £142k in Imaging, mainly
agency to ensure DM01 targets can be maintained (particularly in MRI)
Non-Pay - £319k underspent YTD. Underspend on Drugs in Pharmacy (£393k). £90k
overspend in reagents due to increases in trust work.
Services
Other Income - (£84k) variance in Cancer Management which is offset in the Pay Variance
below. Workplace Health & Wellbeing under achieving by (60k) due to a delay in new
contracts starting which is offset by Attain invoice which is now being funded by the STP
Pay - Underspend driven by £84k variance in Cancer Management which is offset in the
Income Variance above. £86.5k Finance, £74k Nurse Management & £60k Planning &
Performance due to delays in recruitment/carrying vacancies. Facilities underspend of £45k
due to posts being capitalised.
Non-Pay (£162k) Legal Settlement paid via solicitors in July. Overspends in Facilities due to
higher increase in rates/rent offset by underspends on Bad Debt Provision

Actual
£k

Aug-19
Budget
£k

Variance
F/(A)
£k

Actual
£k

Year to date
Budget
£k

5,295
(3,499)
(513)
(4,012)

5,713
(3,529)
(578)
(4,106)

(418)
30
65
95

27,457
(17,692)
(2,983)
(20,675)

28,004
(17,781)
(2,726)
(20,507)

(547)
89
(257)
(168)

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

1,284

1,607

(323)

6,782

7,497

(715)

CLINICAL SUPPORT
Total Income
Pay Costs
Non-Pay Costs
Total Expenditure

4,002
(5,541)
(2,724)
(8,265)

4,279
(5,438)
(2,639)
(8,077)

(277)
(103)
(85)
(187)

20,889
(27,528)
(12,919)
(40,447)

21,337
(27,258)
(13,237)
(40,495)

(448)
(270)
318
48

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

(4,263)

(3,799)

(464)

(19,558)

(19,158)

(400)

SERVICES
Total Income
Pay Costs
Non-Pay Costs
Total Expenditure

575
(2,066)
(5,343)
(7,409)

642
(2,243)
(5,021)
(7,264)

(67)
177
(322)
(145)

3,147
(10,183)
(26,940)
(37,123)

3,214
(10,542)
(26,694)
(37,236)

(67)
359
(246)
113

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

(6,834)

(6,622)

(212)

(33,976)

(34,022)

46

OTHER inc. NON OPEX
Total Income
Pay Costs
Non-Pay Costs
Total Expenditure

7,183
(441)
(5,424)
(5,865)

7,196
(240)
(5,647)
(5,888)

(13)
(201)
223
22

35,668
(2,899)
(26,499)
(29,398)

34,343
(2,592)
(28,419)
(31,011)

1,325
(307)
1,920
1,613

1,318

1,309

9

6,270

3,332

2,938

TOTAL
Total Income
Pay Costs
Non-Pay Costs
Total Expenditure

52,898
(31,557)
(25,401)
(56,958)

54,946
(31,038)
(25,953)
(56,991)

(2,048)
(519)
552
33

268,984
(158,750)
(128,518)
(287,268)

272,338
(156,437)
(131,274)
(287,711)

(3,354)
(2,313)
2,756
443

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

(4,060)

(2,045)

(2,015)

(18,284)

(15,373)

(2,911)

DIRECTORATES INCOME & EXPENDITURE
WOMENS & CHILDREN
Total Income
Pay Costs
Non-Pay Costs
Total Expenditure

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

Other – YTD
Income – M05 adverse variance of £17k. YTD £1.5m favourable due to Clinical Income CIP de risk
Pay - M05 adverse variance of £200k due to unallocated Pay CIP of £450k, offset by £150km of delayed service developments. YTD £300k adverse
Non-Pay - M05 favourable variance of £225k, being the release of contingency £360k. YTD £1.9m, contingency £1.7, R&D £450k,
Non-Opex - M05 favourable variance of £72k, being Contingent Rent £40k from RPI being less than assumed & depreciation of £22k. YTD £255k of which Contingent rent £200k
93

Variance
F/(A)
£k

August 2019

Finance - Lead Director John Hennessey

Core Slide 46
Capital Progress Report

The capital plan for 2019/20 as submitted to NHSI on the 15 th
July 2019 is £27.305m. This is made up as follows:
- New loan funding £15.8m
- IRU approved loan funding £6.8m
- Internally funded schemes £2.4m
- Charitably funded schemes £2.3m
The total updated 5 year capital plan is £188.9m.
The capital expenditure for the year to date is £4.9m against a
plan of £8.9m being a variance of £4.0m.
A drawdown of £1.0m has been made in August against the
approved IRU loan of £7m. Total drawdown of £1.3m.
An application for capital support has been made to
NHSI/DHSC which is currently in the process of being
reviewed.
Capital expenditure has been overcommitted by 20%
nationally and all NHS organisations are required to reduce
their programmes. The Trust has agreed to reduce its capital
programme by £5.6m from £32.950m to £27.305m.

Apr

Apr

May

May

Jun

Jun

July

July

Aug

July

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Plan

Actual

Plan

Actual

Plan

Actual

Plan

Actual

Plan

Actual

Plan

Plan

Plan

Plan

Plan

Plan

Plan

Plan

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

Quadram Institute

TOTAL

271

271

0

0

0

0

271

271

0

0

0

271

0

0

270

0

0

1,083

Interventional Radiology (IRU)

0

0

360

0

726

18

891

234

882

610

660

885

1,062

629

250

89

342

6,776

Nuclear Medicine - Tranche 1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

2,273

0

0

0

0

2,273

IT upgrades and urgent infrastructure investment

0

0

0

0

0

0

2,664

1,315

0

0

370

470

370

370

370

370

150

5,134

PDC funded Projects

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

251

453

252

84

246

140

212

0

1,227

556

1,363

924

924

1,053

1,145

1,175

923

9,695

0

148

0

238

0

38

359

225

250

292

Other Schemes
Charitably Funded Schemes
Total Plan by Month
Actual to Date

522

612
872

972
322

4,397
196

2,359
2,045

1,458

125

25

50

50

261

2,518

2,575

4,679

2,102

2,296

612
94

2,246

612

2,344

2,027

27,305
4,893
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Statement of Financial Position at 31st August 2019
Non-Current Assets
Opening Balance
as at 1 April 2019
£'000
Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Total non-current assets

Plan
31 March 2020
£'000

Plan YTD
31 August 2019
£'000

Actual YTD
31 August 2019
£'000

Variance YTD
31 August 2019
£'000

232,609
78,154
0
310,763

256,529
84,918
0
341,447

239,516
80,830
0
320,346

233,431
80,853
0
314,284

(6,085)
23
0
(6,062)

10,438
28,845
0
7,461
46,744

10,574
33,505
0
1,155
45,234

10,574
27,431
0
1,155
39,160

10,812
40,400
0
4,959
56,171

238
12,969
0
3,804
17,011

Trade and other payables
Borrowing repayable within 1 year
Current provisions
Deferred Income
Total current liabilities
Total assets less current liabilities

(68,246)
(21,233)
(282)
(5,851)
(95,612)
261,895

(64,629)
(52,819)
(307)
(4,764)
(122,519)
264,162

(62,701)
(27,605)
(307)
(4,764)
(95,377)
264,129

(71,383)
(27,605)
(281)
(5,915)
(105,184)
265,271

(8,682)
0
26
(1,151)
(9,807)
1,142

Borrowings - PFI & Finance Lease
Borrowings - Revenue Support
Borrowings - Capital Support
Provisions
Deferred Income
Total non-current liabilities
Total assets employed

(190,764)
(89,871)
(224)
(2,131)
(5,875)
(288,865)
(26,970)

(187,406)
(87,991)
(29,479)
(1,702)
(4,755)
(311,333)
(47,171)

(189,396)
(101,695)
(8,642)
(1,812)
(4,825)
(306,370)
(42,241)

(189,502)
(111,025)
(1,258)
(2,066)
(5,733)
(309,584)
(44,313)

(106)
(9,330)
7,384
(254)
(908)
(3,214)
(2,072)

31,909
(73,852)
14,973
(26,970)

31,881
(94,025)
14,973
(47,171)

31,881
(89,095)
14,973
(42,241)

31,909
(91,195)
14,973
(44,313)

28
(2,100)
0
(2,072)

Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Non-current assets for sale
cash and cash equivalents
Total Current assets

Financed by
Public dividend capital
Retained Earnings (Accumulated Losses)
Revaluation reserve
Total Taxpayers' and others' equity

There is some slippage on the capital programme primarily
due to a delay in receiving capital support from DHSC of
£7.4m YTD.

Trade and Other Receivables
This balance is £13.0m higher than plan YTD. £6.9m relates
to PSF & FRF yet to be received as cash. The remainder is
various - key driver is timing.

Cash
Cash is £3.8m higher than plan at the end of August due to
short term timing differences and operational performance.
Loan drawdowns continue to be delayed as long as possible.

Trade and other payables
This is £8.7m higher than plan YTD.
Increased levels of general trade payables and accruals –
timing difference.

Deferred Income
This balance is £2.1m higher than plan YTD. These are small
timing differences.

Borrowings
Total overall support borrowings are £1.9m higher than plan.
In year revenue borrowings are £27.5m against a YTD plan of
£18.2m. Being £9.3m higher than plan.
In year capital borrowings are £1.0m against a YTD plan of
£8.4m. Being £7.4m lower than plan. The Trust has made an
application to NHSI/DHSC for capital support.
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•

The graph shows the cash levels since the end of March 2019. Short term
timing differences drive the difference between actual and plan.

•

The Trust is required to keep a minimum balance of £1 million, hence the
closing cash plan every month is circa £1m.

•

The future cash loan requirements on current projections are: £4.141m in
September (received) and £2.455m in October.

•

Without the revenue support of £2.455m in October and additional
support in November, the cash position at the end of November is
forecast to be -£7.7m.

•

The borrowings of £139.9m at the end of August 2019 comprise: £16m in
2016/17, £36.4m in 2017/18, £58.9m in 2018/19 & £28.6m in 2019/20.
This includes a capital loan of £0.2m drawn down in March 19 and £1.0m
in August 2019.

•

The interest rates are: 3.5% on £70.8m. 1.5% on the remainder of
£69.1m.

NOTE:
• The plan for 2019/20 assumes in year borrowings of £29.3m for revenue.
At the start of the year it was £111.3m, bringing total forecast revenue
borrowings to £141m.
• Capital Borrowings are planned to be £22.5m following the latest capital
plan submission.
• The Trust Board approved borrowing ‘limit’ is £150m revenue and £25m
capital.
• The need for the funds is driven by our operational performance.
Cum. Borrowings-Plan
Cum. Borrowings-Actual
Variance - (Adverse) / Favourable

Opening
M01
M02
M03
M04
M05
M06
M07
M08
M09
M10
M11
M12
111,328 117,835 123,716 131,478 134,332 137,942 144,441 147,849 150,893 158,021 161,091 164,448 170,289
111,328 115,964 122,186 124,280 132,928 139,888
0
1,871
1,530
7,198
1,404 (1,946)
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Appendix 1

Income Statement Comparison - for the Month of August

For the month
Budget Prior year
£'000
£'000
£'000

Actual
INCOME
NHS clinical income
Clinical Income
Clinical Income - Spire Contract
NT Drugs
Total NHS clinical income

Variances Fav / (Adv)
To prior year
To Budget
£'000
%
£'000
%

38,223
836
5,198
44,257

38,930
649
5,893
45,472

36,757
607
5,923
43,287

(707)
187
(695)
(1,215)

(2%)
29%
(12%)
(3%)

1,466
229
(725)
970

4%
38%
(12%)
2%

196
210
406

318
110
428

169
233
402

(122)
100
(22)

(38%)
91%
(5%)

27
(23)
4

16%
(10%)
1%

1,653
1,857
2,394
2,316
8,220

1,809
1,976
2,394
2,860
9,039

1,633
1,928

(156)
(119)
(544)
(819)

20
(71)
2,394
(2,077)
266

1%
(4%)

4,393
7,954

(9%)
(6%)
0%
(19%)
(9%)

(47%)
3%

52,883

54,939

51,643

(2,056)

(4%)

1,240

2%

EXPENDITURE
Employee benefit expenses
Drugs
Clinical supplies
Non clinical supplies
PFI operating expenses

(31,557)
(6,181)
(5,458)
(7,970)
(2,120)

(31,038)
(6,984)
(5,442)
(7,683)
(2,108)

(30,654)
(6,936)
(5,285)
(7,598)
(1,802)

(519)
803
(16)
(287)
(12)

(2%)
11%
(0%)
(4%)
(1%)

(903)
755
(173)
(372)
(318)

(3%)
11%
(3%)
(5%)
(18%)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

(53,286)

(53,255)

(52,275)

(31)

(0%)

(1,011)

(2%)

(403)

1,684

(632)

(2,087)

(124%)

229

(36%)

15

9

(50%)
100%
114%

67%

9

5
3
8

6

15

10
(3)
7

6

67%

Non NHS clinical income
Private patients
Other - RTA
Total Non NHS clinical income
Other Income
R&D
Education & Training
PSF / FRF / MRET Income
Other non patient care income
Total other Income
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME

Profit/(loss) from operations
Non-operating income
Interest
Profit/(loss) on asset disposals
Total non-operating income
Non-operating expenses
Interest on PFI and Finance leases
Interest on Non Commercial Borrowing
Depreciation
PDC
Other - Contingent Rent
Total non operating expenses

(1,409)
(296)
(822)

(1,409)
(298)
(844)

(1,428)
(147)
(855)

2
22

0%
1%
3%

19
(149)
33

(1%)
101%
(4%)

(1,145)
(3,672)

(1,185)
(3,736)

(1,078)
(3,508)

40
64

3%
2%

(67)
(164)

6%
5%

Surplus (deficit) after tax from continuing operations

(4,060)

(2,045)

(4,131)

(2,015)

(99%)

71

2%

292

105

187

178%

292

(3,768)

(1,940)

(4,131)

(1,828)

(94%)

363

31
21

31
21

31
22

Memo:
Donated Asset Additions
Surplus (deficit) after tax and Donated Asset Additions

9%

Notes:
Calendar Days
Working Days
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Income Statement Comparison - Year to 31 August 2019

Year to date
Annual Plan
£'000
INCOME
NHS clinical income
Clinical Income
Clinical Income - Spire Contract
NT Drugs
Total NHS clinical income

Variances Fav / (Adv)

Actual

Budget

Prior year

£'000

£'000

£'000

To Budget
£'000

To prior year

%

£'000

%

6%
29%
(2%) January
6% February
March
April
64% May
(34%) June
10% July
August
September
2% October
(1%) November
December
(4%) January
33% February
March
9% April

470,145
8,409
70,716
549,270

194,275
4,255
27,465
225,995

194,909
3,246
29,466
227,621

182,672
3,304
27,992
213,968

(634)
1,009
(2,001)
(1,626)

(0%)
31%
(7%)
(1%)

11,603
951
(527)
12,027

3,913
1,560
5,473

890
444
1,334

1,388
549
1,937

543
668
1,211

(498)
(105)
(603)

(36%)
(19%)
(31%)

347
(224)
123

Other Income
R&D
Education & Training
PSF / FRF / MRET Income
Other non patient care income
Total other Income

21,700
23,703
33,649
33,808
112,860

8,685
9,660
10,745
12,451
41,541

9,042
9,877
10,745
13,081
42,745

8,489
9,730

(357)
(217)

12,965
31,184

(630)
(1,204)

(4%)
(2%)
0%
(5%)
(3%)

196
(70)
10,745
(514)
10,357

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME

667,603

268,870

272,303

246,363

(3,433)

(1%)

22,507

Non NHS clinical income
Private patients
Other - RTA
Total Non NHS clinical income

EXPENDITURE
Employee benefit expenses
Drugs
Clinical supplies
Non clinical supplies
PFI operating expenses

(374,007)
(83,808)
(65,743)
(93,934)
(25,386)

(158,750) (156,437)
(32,239) (34,920)
(28,053) (27,652)
(39,501) (39,795)
(10,535) (10,541)

(146,138)
(33,368)
(26,822)
(37,114)
(8,941)

(2,313)
2,681
(401)
294
6

(1%)
8%
(1%)
1%
0%

(12,612)
1,129
(1,231)
(2,387)
(1,594)

(9%)
3%
(5%)
(6%)
(18%)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

(642,878)

(269,078) (269,345)

(252,383)

267

0%

(16,695)

(7%)

Profit/(loss) from operations
Non-operating income
Interest
Profit/(loss) on asset disposals
Total non-operating income

24,725

(208)

2,958

(6,020)

(3,166)

(107%)

5,812

(97%)

120
(36)
84

82
32
114

50
(15)
35

49
9
58

32
47
79

(64%)
313%
226%

33
23
56

67%
256%
97%

Non-operating expenses
Interest on PFI and Finance leases
Interest on Non Commercial Borrowing
Depreciation
PDC
Other - Contingent Rent
Total non operating expenses

(16,841)
(3,971)
(10,649)

(7,043)
(1,359)
(4,062)

(7,043)
(1,289)
(4,108)

(7,142)
(607)
(4,279)

(70)
46

0%
(5%)
1%

99
(752)
217

(1%)
124%
(5%)

(14,802)
(46,263)

(5,726)
(18,190)

(5,926)
(18,366)

(5,391)
(17,419)

200
176

3%
1%

(335)
(771)

6%
4%

Surplus (deficit) after tax from continuing operations

(21,454)

(18,284)

(15,373)

(23,381)

(2,911)

(19%)

5,097

22%

Memo:
Donated Asset Additions
Surplus (deficit) after tax and Donated Asset Additions

1,280

941

130

366

811

624%

575

157%

(20,174)

(17,343)

(15,243)

(23,015)

(2,100)

(14%)

5,672

25%

(2,100)
(811)
(6)
(2,917)

(14%)
624%
(2%)
(19%)
0%
706%

5,672
(575)
(37)
5,060
(19,383)
24,443

(25%)
157%
(11%)
(22%)
(495%)
(91%)

The table below shows the position on a control total basis. The Trust is obliged to report against this on a monthly basis to NHSI.
Deficit on a control total basis - reportable to NHSI:
Surplus (deficit) after tax and Donated Asset Additions
(20,174)
(17,343) (15,243)
(23,015)
Remove: Donated Asset Additions
(1,280)
(941)
(130)
(366)
Add back: Donated Depreciation
763
312
318
349
Adjusted financial performance surplus/(deficit)
(20,691)
(17,972) (15,055)
(23,032)
CONTROL TOTAL
(21,691)
(15,468) (15,468)
3,915
Performance against control total
1,000
(2,504)
413
(26,947)

(2,917)

Notes:
Calendar Days
Working Days

153
105

153
105

153
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REPORT TO THE TRUST BOARD IN ITS CAPACITY AS CORPORATE TRUSTEE
Date

27 September 2019

Title

N&N Hospitals Charity (Charity no : 1048170) Annual Report & Accounts (2018/19)

Author & Exec
lead

Mrs Julie Cooper (Charity Accountant)
John Paul Garside (Board Secretary) – Exec Lead for Charitable Funds

Purpose

For Approval

1.
1.1

Background & Context
The Annual Report and Accounts for the Charitable Fund for the year ended 31 March 2019 have
been prepared in accordance with relevant guidance and they have been subject to audit by
KPMG (as the Trust’s External Auditor). They were reviewed by the Audit Committee at its
meeting on 11 September 2019, with the conclusion that they should be recommended to the
Board for approval.

2.
2.1

Key Issues/Actions/Risks
The Report to Management from KPMG is attached and confirms an unqualified audit opinion
(pg 3). The attached Letter of Representation to KPMG was also reviewed by the Audit
Committee and is also recommended to the Board for approval.

2.2

The Annual Report and Accounts are accompanied by a summary ‘Year at a Glance’, to be used
in further raising awareness of the Charity and to assist in ongoing fundraising:
 income of £3.7m was received, which was ahead of Plan (£2m) and up from £1.8m in
2017/18;
 expenditure on charitable activities was £2.33m (with outstanding commitments of £3m);
 of every £1 donated to the Charity, 97p is spent on charitable activities
 examples are given of the grants awarded by the Charity during the year.

2.3

Extensive work has been undertaken during the year to develop the Charity, overseen by the
Charitable Funds Committee, including:
 establishing the Charity budget with income and spending targets with a view to enhancing
the sustainability of the Charity and its impact on patients and staff;
 working with clinical and managerial teams to identify funding priorities and expenditure
plans and selecting the Boudicca Breast Unit appeal as the Charity’s Appeal of the Year;
 reviewing the Charity Investment Policy to ensure an appropriate balance between
investment return, ethical considerations and mitigation of investment risks;
 overseeing development of plans for major projects, such as refurbishment of the Cromer
Hospital Davison Unit;
 reviewing and strengthening the Trust’s governance and reporting arrangements including
simplification of our sub-fund structure, delegated authority and grant approval
arrangements.

Recommendation:
In its capacity as Corporate Trustee the Board is recommended to:
 note the ongoing work to develop the Charity;
 approve the audited Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19;
 approve the associated Letter of Representation to the auditors.
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Our Year at a Glance
2018/19
“The Charity is pleased to be able to report another successful year having allocated
£2.3m of grant funding to support better care and services for patients.
The Charity is growing in strength and we have ambitious aspirations for the future. We
are very grateful to all the fundraisers and donors who have supported the Charity and
without whom none of this would be possible. To all of them, we take this opportunity to
say a heartfelt thank you.”
Mark Jeffries –
Chair of N&N Hospitals Charitable Funds Committee

Registered Charity no: 1048170
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2018/19 - Our year at a glance
This year we:
Put 97p from every £1 donated to us
towards charitable activities

Launched the Boudicca Breast Unit Appeal

Celebrated 165 years of the
Jenny Lind Children’s Hospital

To find out more, or to make a donation, please visit our website at

nnuhcharity.org.uk
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2018/19 - Our year at a glance
This year we:

spent £2.3m
to benefit
patients
funded the purchase
of state of the art
medical equipment

raised a total of £3.7m,

invested £138k
in research
projects
approved 446
grants to
support
additional staff
training

of which £3.3m was voluntary
income
Some examples of projects funded by the Charity this year:
- £64k for an additional Plasma Apheresis system for use with patients with blood
cancer;
- £62k funding for a 3 year PhD studentship at the University of East Anglia
investigating Neurodegeneration in patients with Glaucoma;

- Purchase of an additional 10 palliative care syringe drivers for our palliative care
service.
- £51k for an additional echocardiogram ultrasound scanner for paediatric cardiology
patients.

- £49k for two new incubators for the Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU), to provide
additional capacity for babies needing Level 3 specialist intensive care
- £17k to fund a Diabetes Transition Co-ordinator for Young People moving from
paediatric care to adult care

To find out more, or to make a donation, please visit our website at

nnuhcharity.org.uk
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Our plans for the future
In the last two years we have increased spending by the Charity but we have
also raised funds to support major projects in the years ahead. Our five-year
expenditure programme is focussed on ensuring that our charitable funds are
worked to maximum effect, with an underlying aim of increasing profile and
impact for the benefit of staff and patients.
We are developing a series of ambitious projects aimed at diversifying income
streams whilst also providing benefit to the patients and staff of the Trust. In
the year ahead we aim to:
 Complete the Boudicca Breast Unit, to provide a one-stop service for
patients with suspected cancer
 Develop public facing accommodation for the Charity on the NNUH site. This
will improve access to the Charity Team and enable connections to be made
with patients, visitors and staff
 Continue to provide funding to the NNUH for:
o new, improved and additional life-saving technology;
o additional staff development and training;
o innovative ways to improve the environment for patients;
o ground-breaking research
We are only able to support the NNUH with the generous help of our donors,
who run long distances, abseil down buildings, run fundraising events, leave us a
legacy in their wills, or simply make a donation to say thank you for the excellent
care they have received in one of the Trust’s hospitals.
To everyone who has helped us we would like to say a big

103

Annual Report & Accounts
2018/19

Registered Charity no: 1048170
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2018/19 - Our year at a glance
For every £1 donated to us in
2018/19, 97p was put towards
charitable activities

Launched the Boudicca Breast Unit Appeal

Celebrated 165 years of the
Jenny Lind Children’s Hospital

Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund
Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19
Page 2

106

Annual Report
In 2018/19 we:

spent £2.3m
to benefit
patients
funded the purchase
of state of the art
medical equipment

having raised a total of £3.7m,

invested £138k
in research
projects
approved 446
grants to
support
additional staff
training

of which £3.3m was voluntary
income
Some examples of projects funded by the Charity this year:
- £64k for an additional Plasma Apheresis system for use with patients with blood
cancer;
- £62k funding for a 3 year PhD studentship at the University of East Anglia
investigating Neurodegeneration in patients with Glaucoma;

- Purchase of an additional 10 palliative care syringe drivers for our palliative care
service.
- £51k for an additional echocardiogram ultrasound scanner for paediatric cardiology
patients.

- £49k for two new incubators for the Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU), to provide
additional capacity for babies needing Level 3 specialist intensive care
- £17k to fund a Diabetes Transition Co-ordinator for Young People moving from
paediatric care to adult care
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Annual Report
Foreword from the Corporate Trustee
Welcome to the 2018/19 Annual Report and Accounts for the N&N Hospitals Charity.
The Charity is pleased to be able to report another successful year having allocated £2.3m of grant
funding to support better care and services for patients. In the last two years we have increased
spending by the Charity but we have also raised funds to support major projects in the years ahead.
Through donations, events, grants, investments and online giving we raised £3.7m in 2018/19. This
is in accordance with our plans and budget for the Charity with an underlying aim of increasing its
profile and impact for the benefit of staff and patients. Our five-year expenditure programme is
focussed on ensuring that our charitable funds are worked to maximum effect.
The Charity is overseen by the Board of Directors of the Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals
NHS Foundation Trust acting in its capacity as Corporate Trustee. The Board has established a
Charitable Funds Committee which has been active in supporting and encouraging development of
the Charity during 2018/19.
Work undertaken by the Committee during the year has included:








establishing the Charity budget with income and spending targets with a view to enhancing the
sustainability of the Charity and its impact on patients and staff;
working with clinical and managerial teams to identify funding priorities and expenditure plans
selecting the Boudicca Breast Unit appeal as the Charity’s Appeal of the Year;
reviewing the Charity Investment Policy to ensure an appropriate balance between investment
return, ethical considerations and mitigation of investment risks;
overseeing development of plans for major projects, such as refurbishment of the Cromer
Hospital Davison Unit;
reviewing and strengthening the Trust’s governance and reporting processes including
simplification of our sub-fund structure, delegated authority and grant approval arrangements;
assigning responsibility for the executive leadership of the Charity Team to the Trust’s
Company Secretary, John Paul Garside.

We aim to provide efficient and economic stewardship of the Charity’s resources and ensure that
donations are used effectively for the benefit of patients and staff. As you will see from the detail in
this report, 97p of every £1 donated to the Charity is applied to charitable activities.
We are delighted that the N&N Hospitals Charity has been able to make such a difference to the
Trust’s patients and staff over the last year. The Charity is growing in strength and we have ambitious
aspirations for the future. We are very grateful to all the fundraisers and donors who have supported
the Charity and without whom none of this would be possible. To all of them, we take this opportunity
to say a heartfelt thank you.

Mark Jeffries
Chair of Charitable Funds Committee

Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund
Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19
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About the N&N Hospitals Charity
The Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Funds (known as N&N
Hospitals Charity and referred to in this report as “the Charity”) is registered with the Charity
Commission (registration number 1048170). By securing donations, legacies and sponsorship, the
Charity provides support for additional equipment and projects above and beyond what is available
through normal NHS funding. In this way we make a real difference for patients, families and staff and
support the Trust to achieve its vision of providing every patient with the care we want for those we love
the most.

Our charitable objectives
The Objects of the Charity specify:
‘The trustees shall hold the trust fund upon trust to apply the income, and at their discretion, so
far as may be permissible, the capital, for any charitable purpose or purposes relating to the
National Health Service’
In accordance with these Objects the Charity:
 funds new and additional services where the NHS has no obligation to do so;
 enhances services above the level provided by statutory funds; and
 supports innovative services and research, pump-priming new initiatives and supplementing other
funding sources.

Our mission
By raising new funds, and with careful management of our existing assets, the Charity provides a
public benefit by making grants to support relevant research, staff education and enhanced services to
patients.
Grants are made in accordance with charity law. In making grants, we endeavour to reflect the wishes
of patients and staff by directing funds towards areas they tell us are most in need. During the year
2018/19, 1249 grant applications were approved by the Charity, and grant expenditure totalling £2.3m
was made. When considering where to focus our support, our corporate trustee’s board and, the
members of the Charitable Funds Committee have regard to the Charity Commission’s guidance on
public benefit.

Our hospitals
The Norfolk & Norwich University Hospital (N&N) is a 1200 bed teaching hospital offering arrange
of specialist and tertiary services and state-of-the-art facilities. It works closely with the University of
East Anglia’s Faculty of Medicine and Health Sciences to train health professionals and undertake
clinical research.
The Jenny Lind Children’s Hospital is part of the Norfolk & Norwich University Hospital, and is
focussed on services for children and young people. First established in 1854, the Jenny Lind is one of
the longest established children’s hospitals in the country.
The Cromer and District Hospital serves the population of North Norfolk and beyond, with many
outreach services provided from Norwich-based clinical teams. The Hospital was rebuilt in 2012 using
charitable funds including extremely generous legacy donations. The Hospital provides a Minor
Injuries Unit and a wide range of outpatient and day-case services, including surgery and
chemotherapy.
Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund
Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19
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Key Priorities

The Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals Trust plays a key role in the lives of local residents,
from the excitement of new lives starting, to the sadness of saying goodbye to loved ones. The
Charity’s aim in the coming years is to increase its capacity to provide an enhanced level of support
to patients and staff on a sustainable basis. There is potential to grow the Charity and for it to
become a local charity of choice.
2018/19 saw work continue on raising the profile of the Charity both within the Trust and in the wider
community. The launch of the Boudicca Breast Unit Appeal, and its selection as our Appeal of the
Year, started with an event hosted at the Forum in Norwich. This has been a high profile Appeal and
has led to the involvement of many members of the local community working together to raise funds
to create a bespoke Breast Unit at the Norfolk & Norwich Hospital. Fundraising events associated
with the Appeal have included:
-

abseiling down the Norwich Forum – including Clive Lewis MP and Becky Jago TV presenter

-

a launch party at the refurbished and renamed Boudicca Hotel, Caistor St Edmund

-

the involvement of corporate sponsors (such as Whittlingham Sports Club and Desira Group)

-

support of the Norwich Rotary Clubs

We are working with the Trust Estates Team to establish public facing accommodation for the Charity
on the NNUH site, to improve access to the Charity Team, enable connections to be made with
patients, visitors and staff and enhance the visibility of the Charity.
We have a target to increase our income on a sustainable basis to at least £5m per annum from
2021/22 and are developing a series of ambitious projects aimed at diversifying income streams
whilst also proving benefit to the patients and staff of the Trust.

If you would like to help us by raising funds for the Charity, then please visit nnuh.org.uk or contact
our fundraising team at fundraising@nnuh.nhs.uk, or on 01603 287107.
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What our supporters have achieved
These are just a few stories about the amazing support the Charity have been given by patients, friends,
family, staff and the local community. There are many more unsung heroes out there, and we thank
each and every one of you for everything you have done.
NNUH physiotherapists Lewis Weatherburn and Jonathan Littlewood have raised more
than £6,000 for the Boudicca Breast Cancer Appeal. The pair held a cake sale, a quiz
and burger night, a charity ball at Sprowston Manor Hotel, and ran the West Highland
Way. Their enthusiasm and commitment to support the Charity has been extraordinary.
Terry Bennett and daughter Kim Coates have raised £2,300 for
the Boudicca Appeal, with Terry dyeing his hair pink to raise
money and raise awareness of the appeal. Terry is continuing
to fundraise throughout the summer.
More than £500 has been raised for Mulbarton Ward’s charitable fund by
Kelly Thurgood who completed the London Marathon in April. The ward
treated her friend Danny after he was diagnosed with Acute
Lymphoblastic Leukaemia and underwent chemotherapy before having
a recent stem cell transplant.
Former NNUH nurse Lindsay Dowding has published a book with half the sales proceeds
going to the hospital’s stroke unit where she was treated in 2017. Lindsay’s book, Charlie
the Horse, Owl and the Planning Application, was illustrated by artist Lynn Rutherford, who
also received treatment from the stroke team at NNUH.

Messages of support
It is a great pleasure to see and read the amazing messages of
support and thanks that have been posted on social media, sent
to us in letters, or entered onto our online giving pages for
supporters walking, running, climbing, cycling, swimming,
‘paddling and plodding’!
Messages celebrating new lives, remembering loved ones,
thanking staff for the excellent care they provide, or just offering
support for the work carried out by our hospitals. All of these
messages inspire the Charity’s supporters to do even more to
help our patients.
£93,500 was donated online in 2018/19 (£65,000 in 2017/18), so
a huge thankyou to everyone who donated and supported the
work we can do for patients and staff.
If you feel inspired to help us by raising funds, please visit nnuh.org.uk or contact our fundraising team
at fundraising@nnuh.nhs.uk or on 01603 287107.
Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund
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The work and impact of the Charity
It is difficult to represent the impact of the Charity, as it touches so many people and diverse aspects of
the work of the Trust. Below are a few examples of the various ways in which charitable grants have
improved experience for patients, funded new and better equipment, and supported research, and staff
education. Some of our grants are for millions of pounds, whereas others are for much smaller sums –
donations of all sizes can make a real difference:

Patients and their families
Artwork in the Paediatric Ultrasound room
About 50 children each week visit the Ultrasound
department. Many of them are very scared and anxious
about coming into hospital and an unfamiliar clinical
environment.
Staff proposed that we should install some artwork to
create an environment that is friendly and welcoming, and
to change the feel of the department.
Since installation in November 2018, the artwork has had
a positive impact on the Trust’s younger patients and
provides a distraction for children who may be worried by

.

their procedure. Parents have commented positively, often likening the pictures to seaside holidays on
the Norfolk coast.

Main Theatres relatives’ room
To improve the waiting area used by relatives of patients
undergoing surgery in the Main Theatres the Charity asked
supporters to purchase items from our Amazon Wishlist to help
enhance the environment.
Our very kind donors have purchased a radio, books and
pictures, together with equipment for preparing refreshments –
small touches to comfort and support anxious families whilst

.

they wait for a loved-one.
Please visit our website at nnuh.org.uk for information on
accessing our Amazon Wishlist.
Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund
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Technology and equipment
Rheumatology ultrasound machine
Giant Cell Arteritis is a condition that can cause sight loss, and represents a rheumatology
emergency. Symptoms are often vague, and diagnosis sometimes has to be made with the help of a
biopsy. This means that potentially frail patients have to have a surgical procedure to remove a piece
of artery from their scalp by a surgeon, usually within a short timeframe, resulting in surgeon’s lists
being overbooked.
Working with international experts, one of the Trust’s rheumatologists,
Dr Chetan Mukhtyar, has validated the use of ultrasound for
diagnosing this condition. This means that patients can ‘simply
have an ultrasound scan rather than a biopsy’.
This process has avoided over 300 patients from needing a biopsy.
To facilitate a further reduction in the number of biopsies required,
the Charity has purchased a new ultrasound machine for the
rheumatology department, with better resolution and a dedicated probe for
doing this scanning work.

.

At the time the machine was purchased Dr Mukhtyar was the only rheumatologist in Norfolk, Suffolk
and Cambridgeshire offering this ‘fast-track’ diagnostic service, and the Charity was delighted to
support the NNUH in being ahead of the rest of the UK in providing this service.

Upgraded Multi-Disciplinary Teams (MDT) room equipment
A grant of £186k was provided to fund improvements in the equipment used in link-ups with other
hospitals via video conferencing. The new equipment provides much higher quality images as well as
improvements to audio systems. Use of MDTs to guide clinical care is best practice, enabling sharing
of information and specialist expertise between teams, to allow clinicians to discuss treatment
pathways, particularly for cancer patients.

Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund
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Antenatal Screening

Amongst the equipment funded by the Charity during
2018/19 were two new ultrasound machines, used
to screen pregnant women to monitor fetal
development and growth
The improved image quality on the new
machines gives sonographers a clearer view
of the anatomy, enabling better images and
reducing the number of patients who need to
be recalled at a later stage for further checks.
The ergonomics of the new machines have
also allowed sonographers to adjust their

.

scanning position, improving the comfort for staff.

Hoverjack lifting system
To assist staff in recovering patients who may have fallen to the floor, a £7k grant
was provided to purchase a Hoverjack lifting system.

Not only does this

equipment reduce the number of staff needed to lift a patient, it improves the
effect on patients’ dignity and wellbeing of being lifted to a bed.
The system has also been used to transfer bariatric patients from bed to bed, and
both staff and patients have expressed their surprise at the ease and comfort the

.

equipment provided.

Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund
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Research
Research and innovation is at the heart of improving healthcare. Medicine is
always developing thanks to the incredible work of scientists and
researchers, including many at our hospitals, and there is good evidence
that patients receive better care at research-active institutions.

The

Charity has been proud to support the development of research at the
Trust, particularly in association with other partners on the Norwich
Research Park.

.

Examples of researchers supported by the Charity in 2018/19 include:

Senior Research Fellow Funding
Delivering innovative new treatments to improve patient care has been
accelerated following the announcement of the first joint appointment between
the Norfolk and Norwich University Hospital (NNUH) and the Quadram
Institute. This appointment has been supported with a 3-year £57k grant from
the N&N Hospitals Charity.
Dr Ngozi Elumogo was appointed as a Senior Research Fellow in Translational

.

Medicine, where she will promote collaborative working between researchers and clinicians. Dr
Elumogo will be bringing years of experience to this collaborative research role, having spent the past
16 years as a Consultant Microbiologist both at NNUH and the James Paget University Hospital
(JPUH), with the last eight years as Director of Infection Prevention and Control at NNUH. Having
clinical expertise alongside academic research at the Quadram Institute will drive the translation of new
knowledge into evidence-based strategies to maximise health and reduce the impact of disease and
infection.

Post-CCT Rheumatology Fellow Funding – working with UEA
Amongst the research supported by the Charity is that which is carried out by Dr Edwin
Lim in the Rheumatology Department at NNUH. This involves a type of arthritis
called Axial Spondyloararthritis (axSpA), which can sometimes be associated with
Inflammatory Bowel Disease (IBD). The arthritis causes inflammation in the spine
that can result in back pain, stiffness, reduced range of

.

movement and fatigue.

Dr Lim’s research degree project aims to look at the hidden burden of axSpA in patients with known
IBD. Further study of these participants’ characteristics will help doctors develop a tool to guide the
onward management of future patients with IBD, reduce the time to diagnosis, and enable earlier
access to appropriate treatments.
Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund
Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19
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Investing in staff
The N&N Hospitals Charity helps fund initiatives to develop the skills and
well-being of staff, helping them further their knowledge and enabling
them to provide even better care for patients.
In 2018/19 446 grants were approved, enabling members of the Trust
staff to access additional training relating to their roles.
In addition, funding was provided to purchase new furniture for the library,
providing a place for staff to study away from the noise of the hospital.

.

Staff members have commented that ‘the new resources make it even more comfortable and calming
than before’.
Providing funding to increase staff knowledge and confidence has a clear, positive impact on the
service that can be provided to patients at our hospitals and in the community.

Additional Cycle Racks
Feedback from staff and patients/visitors was that they wanted
improved provision to help cycling to the hospital. This was also
consistent with the Trust’s Health and Wellbeing policy and
health-promotion messages. The Charity was pleased to work
with a local supplier to source additional bicycle racks, which
were installed in Spring 2019. These have proved to be popular,
with a large number of cyclists seen to be using them each day.

.
We receive many donations with letters
thanking staff for the excellent care they
have provided.

It is tremendous that the

Charity can help to enhance the facilities and
support available for staff so that they can
continue to provide excellent care and we
thank our supporters sincerely for helping us
to do so.

Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund
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Financial Review
The following key figures are taken from the 2018/19 Accounts which carry an ‘unqualified audit’
report:

Funds received in the year (£3.7m)
Donations received (£703k)

Legacy donations (£2.6m)

The Charity was very privileged to continue

Income

receiving such a high level of voluntary

contribution to the Charity this year, totalling

donations from across the community, totalling

£2.6m in 2018/19 (£897k in 2017/18).

£703k (£632k in the previous year). We

donations represent a significant income stream

thankfully acknowledge all donations that are

for the Charity and make a huge difference to our

received from members of the public, including

ability to plan support for larger items of

grateful patients and relatives, groups and

equipment and bigger projects to advance the

organisations and from our corporate sponsors

Objects of the Charity.

from

legacies

made

an

important
Legacy

and supporters.

Other income (Total £91k)
Many departments in the Trust organise courses and
conferences enabling the exchange of information
and best clinical practice. These courses also raise
funds for the Charity. Sales of merchandise such as
pin badges and lanyards generate some receipts as
does sponsorship of study days

Investment income (£241k)
Through application of a formal Investment
Policy, this year the Charity used its funds
to generate a further £241k of investment
income (£209k in 2017/18).

This was

achieved in the form of dividends and
bank interest. The Investment Policy and
performance are regularly monitored by
the

Corporate

Trustee

through

Charitable Funds Committee.

Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund
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Money spent in the year (£2.4m)
Expenditure on Charitable Activities (£2.3m)
The expenditure for the year on charitable activities was £2.3m (£2.7m in the previous year).

In

2018/19 the Charity gave approval to 1249 funding applications in proportions as below:

Examples of such expenditure include:


£36k funding agreed to create a bereavement room in our maternity department;



£22k to purchase three portable ultrasound bladder scanners;



£128k to improve the patient environment within the Colney Centre and associated clinics;



£51k to purchase an ultrasound scanner for the Jenny Lind Children’s Hospital;



£62k for a three year PhD studentship studying Neurodegeneration in patients with Glaucoma

Expenditure on Raising Funds (£109k)
Expenditure on raising funds includes the cost of fundraising staff as well as promotional material, the
purchase of leaflets, donation boxes and envelopes. The Charity’s aim is to keep fundraising costs as
low as possible whilst appropriately promoting the Charity and its work. In this way our supporters
can be confident that the maximum possible portion of their donation is being spent on charitable
activities.
In 2018/19 the Charity launched a major appeal with the aim of raising £800k to fund creation of the
Boudicca Breast Unit at the Norfolk and Norwich University Hospital, ensuring that patients with
suspected breast cancer have access to a one-stop service for diagnostic and imaging services. This
appeal is the Charity’s ‘Appeal of the Year’ for 2019/20, and is funding purchase of equipment as
funds are raised – so that this is available to benefit patients as soon as possible.

Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund
Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19
Page 14

118

Annual Report
Fund balance (£12.5m) and reserves
The Corporate Trustee has set a minimum reserve level of £0.5m, in order to ensure that ongoing
costs for running the Charity can be met, as well as providing a buffer for fluctuations in the value of
investments.
At 31 March 2019 the total funds of the Charity amounted to £12.5m (£10.5m at the end of 2017/18).
Of these:
 £0.5m was held in restricted funds for use in the Jenny Lind Children’s Hospital and at Cromer
Hospital;


£9.3m was held in unrestricted (designated) funds where money has been donated for
particular purposes, but no binding trust has been created. We aim to follow donor’s wishes
on the focus of expenditure when it is practicable to do so;



£2.7m in unrestricted general funds. £1.2m expenditure has been approved (committed) from
these funds, leaving £1.5m in free, unrestricted funds which make up the charity’s reserves
(£1.0m in 2017/18).

The Charitable Funds Accountant works with individual fund advisers to plan expenditure of funds. In
addition, the Charity has established a series of strategic plans for major expenditure of the Charity’s
funds in the years ahead.
Investment policy and performance
The Charity has a formal Investment Policy and Investment Mandate, approved and overseen by its
Charitable Funds Committee.

The objective of this Policy is to ensure that there is a diversified

portfolio of investments (thereby spreading exposure to risk) with an intention to maximise financial
return to the Charity within a ‘medium risk’ investment profile.
The Charity uses professional investment services through Barratt & Cooke who are stockbrokers
regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. At the end of 2018/19 £8.6m of the Charity’s funds
were invested in the diversified portfolio of investments, managed by Barratt & Cooke. In 2018/19
there was no administrative charge for management of the Charity’s investments.
During the year there was a net gain of £769k on investments. This was made up of a realised gain
of £14k from disposal of investments, and an unrealised gain of £755k on the investment portfolio
held at the year end.
Investment performance is reviewed on a monthly basis, and the Investment Manager meets with the
Charitable Funds Committee on an annual basis to discuss performance and strategy.

During

2018/19, Barratt and Cooke were reappointed to provide Investment Manager services to the Charity
for the period to 2022.
Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund
Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19
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Trustee arrangements
The Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (the Trust) is the sole corporate
trustee of the Charity and the Trust’s Board of Directors is tasked with exercising all powers and duties
of the Trust, including the responsibility of corporate trustee. Membership of the Board of Directors is
detailed in the Trust’s Annual Report and Accounts and on its website (www.nnuh.nhs.uk ).
Whilst the Charity may be considered to be ‘under the control’ of the Trust Board, it is not considered to
be financially material to the Trust and it is therefore not consolidated into the Trust’s accounts.
The Board has established a Charitable Funds Committee with formal Terms of Reference.
purpose of the Committee is to:
 provide assurance oversight of the management of the Charity;
 oversee investment of the Charity’s assets;
 assist the Board in meeting its responsibilities as Corporate Trustee;
 support the Corporate Trustee in strategic overview of the Charity.

The

During 2018/19, the members of the Charitable Funds Committee were:
Mark Jeffries
Non-Executive Director and Chair of Charitable Funds Committee
Mark Davies

Chief Executive

John Paul Garside

Board Secretary - Executive Lead for the Charity

John Hennessey

Chief Finance Officer

Simon Hackwell

Director of Strategy

Tim How

Non-Executive Director

Geraldine O’Sullivan

Non-Executive Director (Until May 2018)

The Charitable Funds Committee has been active on behalf of the Corporate Trustee in overseeing
and encouraging development of the Charity during 2018/19. This has involved strengthening the
governance and management arrangements for the Charity, and enhancing its forward planning. Work
undertaken by the Committee during the year has included:
 reviewing and approving the Charity Investment Policy to ensure that there is an appropriate
balance between investment return, ethical considerations and mitigation of investment risks;
 reviewing and strengthening the Trust’s governance and reporting arrangements including
establishment of a Charity Risk Register, simplification of our sub-fund structure, review of
delegated authority and approval arrangements;
 establishing the Charity budget with income and spending targets with a view to enhancing the
sustainability of the Charity and enhancing its impact for patients;
 working with clinical and managerial teams to identify funding priorities and expenditure plans
and selecting the Boudicca Breast Unit appeal as the Charity’s Appeal of the Year;
 overseeing development of plans for major projects such as refurbishment of the Cromer Davison
Unit.
In accordance with the scheme of delegation and standing financial instructions the Trust Board
delegates responsibility for the day to day management of the N&N Hospitals Charity to the Trust’s
Chief Executive and Executive lead for Charitable Funds.
Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund
Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19
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Our staff and advisors
Executive oversight of the Charity is undertaken by John Paul Garside, Board Secretary and Head of
Legal Services for the Trust.
Management and operation of the Charity is carried out by:

Executive Lead for
Charitable Funds

NNUH Chief
Finance Officer

Leadership and Strategic
Planning

Oversight of finance
processes

Charitable Funds
Accountant

Head of Fundraising
Management of Fundraising,
Marketing & Communications

Management of Charity
Finances & Grant Funding

Assistant Charity
Financial Accountant
Day to day finance processes

Fundraising
Co-ordinator

Charity Admin
Apprentice
Grant Application processing &
Fundraising admin

Meeting donors, Website &
Publications

Professional Advisers
Investment managers:

External auditors:

Messrs. Barratt & Cooke
5/6 Opie Street
Norwich
NR1 3DW

KPMG LLP (UK)
Dragonfly House
2 Gilders Way
NR3 1UB

Bankers:
Barclays Corporate Services
Po Box 729
1 Capability Green
Luton
Bedfordshire
LU1 3US

Scottish Widows Bank plc
PO Box 12757
67 Morrison Street
Edinburgh
EH3 8YJ
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Risk Management
As part of the business planning process for the Charity, the Charity management team has considered
the major risks to which the Charity is exposed.

The risk areas assessed were governance and

management, operational risk, financial risk, reputational risk, environmental and external factors, and
compliance risk. The highest risks were determined as:
 Conflict of interest risk (Governance, financial, reputational risk)
The Charity exists to help provide additional resources over and above what the NHS must fund, in
order to benefit patients of the Trust. There is a recognised risk of lack of independence for NHS
Charities and there is an inherent conflict of interest risk due to the dual role of Board of Directors of the
NHS Foundation Trust acting as Corporate Trustee of the Charity.
It is crucial that care is taken to ensure that the Corporate Trustee makes its decisions in the best
interest of the Charity and that the appropriate boundaries are respected between charitable and
exchequer funds and their distinct purposes.
The Corporate Trustee manages this risk by ensuring that there is a clear distinction in Board agendas,
so that it is explicit when the Board is acting as Corporate Trustee, rather than as the Foundation Trust
Board. The Board of Directors, Hospital Management Board and Charitable Funds Committee has
also been provided with guidance from the Charity Commission on maintaining independence in the
management of charitable funds.
Safeguards with regard to independence in the management of the Charity have been enhanced by
strengthened administration arrangements and appointment of the Company Secretary as Executive
Lead for Charitable Funds.
 Fraud or error (Financial, reputational risk)
The Charity manages this risk by employing a CCAB qualified accountant, with charity experience.
Senior managers in the Trust’s Finance Department’s provide financial oversight on behalf of the
Corporate Trustee, ensuring a full system of internal control.
 Failure to achieve the Charity’s full potential (Financial, operational risk)
The Charity is, by definition, subsidiary to the core work of the NHS Foundation Trust.

It will only be

possible for it to achieve its full potential if adequate care is taken to maximise its profile and impact
and public awareness of the Charity is a key asset. New organisational arrangements have been put in
place, with active action planning for the next year, with particular emphasis on raising the profile of the
Charity and publicising the benefit to patients and staff. Use of Gift Aid forms is being increased, to
ensure that all available income is claimed. A new website for the Charity highlights projects that have
been funded at the Trust’s hospitals and we are increasingly aiming to work in collaboration with
partner organisations and sponsors on initiatives such as the Boudicca Breast Cancer Appeal.
Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund
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Related parties
The Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust is the corporate trustee of the
N&N Hospitals Charity and is therefore a related party.

Our relationship with the wider community

The ability of the N&N Hospitals Charity to continue its work is dependent on its ability to maintain
donations from the general public. The N&N Hospitals Charity continues to forge strong relationships
with members of staff of the hospital without whose co-operation the ability to make an effective
contribution would be much diminished.

Volunteers

The Charity pays tribute to:


our volunteers for their time, support, and commitment;



the members of staff who give of their time out of hours in support of the work of the N&N
Hospitals Charity;



our fundraisers who do so much to enrich lives through donations and fundraising activities;



the many external organisations, companies, trusts and foundations that have supported our
work.

Signed on behalf of the trustee:

Name: …………………………………………………………………………….

Date: ………………………………………………………………………………
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Statement of Trustees’ responsibilities in respect of the Trustees’ annual
report and the financial statements
Under the trust deed of the charity and charity law, the trustees are responsible for preparing the
Trustees’ Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations. The trustees have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK
Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland.
The financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
charity and of the excess of income over expenditure for that period.
In preparing these financial statements, generally accepted accounting practice entails that the
trustees:
 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;


make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;



state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards and the Statement of Recommended Practice
have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements;



state whether the financial statements comply with the trust deed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and



assess the charity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern; and



use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the charity or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The trustees are required to act in accordance with the trust deed of the charity, within the framework of
trust law. They are responsible for keeping proper accounting records, sufficient to disclose at any
time, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the charity at that time, and to enable the
trustees to ensure that, where any statements of accounts are prepared by them under section 132(1)
of the Charities Act 2011, those statements of accounts comply with the requirements of regulations
under that provision. They are responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to
safeguard the assets of the charity and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the financial and other information
included on the charity’s website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
These financial statements were approved on 27 September 2019 and signed on behalf of the trustee
by:
Board member ……………………………………………………..Name:………………………………
Date: ……………………..
Board member ……………………………………………………..Name:………………………………
Date: ……………………
Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund
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Independent auditor’s report to the Trustee of Norfolk and Norwich
University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation
Trusts Charitable Fund (“the charity”) for the year ended 31 March 2019 which comprise the statement
of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows and related notes, including the
accounting policies in note 1.
In our opinion the financial statements:




give a true and fair view of the state of the charity’s affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources for the year then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards, including FRS 102
The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Charities Act 2011.

Basis for opinion
We have been appointed as auditor under section 144 of the Charities Act 2011 (or its predecessors)
and report in accordance with regulations made under section 154 of that Act.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities
under, and are independent of the charity in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC
Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate
basis for our opinion.

Brexit other matter paragraph
Uncertainties related to the effects of Brexit are relevant to understanding our audit of the financial
statements. All audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the directors,
such as valuation of investments, recoverability of debtors and related disclosures and the
appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation of the financial statements. All of these
depend on assessments of the future economic environment and the Charities future prospects and
performance.
Brexit is one of the most significant economic events for the UK, and at the date of this report its effects
are subject to unprecedented levels of uncertainty of outcomes, with the full range of possible effects
unknown. We applied a standardised firm-wide approach in response to that uncertainty when
assessing the Charities future prospects and performance. However, no audit should be expected to
predict the unknowable factors

Going concern
The trustees have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend
to liquidate the charity or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the charity’s financial
position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties
that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year
from the date of approval of the financial statements (“the going concern period”).
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We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of
accounting is inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt over the use of that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the financial
statements. In our evaluation of the trustees’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the
charity’s business model, including the impact of Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect the
charity’s financial resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period. We have
nothing to report in these respects.
However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in
outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the
absence of reference to a material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the charity
will continue in operation.

Other information
The trustees are responsible for the other information, which comprises the Trustees’ Annual Report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our
financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the
financial statements or our audit knowledge. We are required to report to you if:


based solely on that work, we have identified material misstatements in the other information; or



in our opinion, the information given in the Trustees’ Annual Report is inconsistent in any material
respect with the financial statements.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Charities Act 2011 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:


the charity has not kept sufficient accounting records; or



the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or



we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Trustees’ responsibilities
As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 20, the trustees are responsible for: the
preparation of financial statements which give a true and fair view; such internal control as they
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the charity’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the charity or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s responsibilities
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an
auditor’s report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
the financial statements.
A fuller description of our responsibilities
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

is

provided

on

the

FRC’s

website

at

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities
This report is made solely to the charity’s trustees as a body, in accordance with section 144 of the
Charities Act 2011 (or its predecessors) and regulations made under section 154 of that Act. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charity’s trustees those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charity and its trustees as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Stephanie Beavis
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
Dragonfly House
2 Gilders Way
Norwich
NR3 1UB
27 September 2019

KPMG LLP is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006
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How to contact us
The charity office and working address of the N&N Hospitals Charity is:
The Charitable Funds Accountant
N&N Hospitals Charity
Floor 6, 20 Rouen Road
Norwich
NR1 1QQ
01603 287495

For fundraising queries please contact:
The Head of Fundraising
N&N Hospitals Charity
Floor 6, 20 Rouen Road
Norwich
NR1 1QQ
01603 287107

The corporate trustee, Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
principal address is:
The Chief Executive
Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
Colney Lane
Norwich
NR4 7UY
01603 286286
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Statement of Financial Activities

The Statement of Financial Activities is a financial report detailing the change in the charity’s net assets
during the financial year.
It provides an analysis of the income received and expenditure by the charity on its activities, and
presents a reconciliation of the movements in a charity’s funds for the reporting period, which runs from
1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019.

Note

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Total Funds

Restricted
Funds

Unrestricted
Funds

Total Funds

2017/18

Restricted
Funds

Unrestricted
Funds

2018/19

£000s

£000s

Income from:
Donations and Legacies
Investments

3,345
241

0
0

3,345
241

1,529
209

0
0

1,529
209

18

0

18

20

0

20

16

0

16

2

0

2

Other Income

57

0

57

11

0

11

Total Income

3,677

0

3,677

1,771

0

1,771

2,112

216

2,328

3,004

(280)

2,724

108

1

109

56

0

56

2,220

217

2,437

3,060

(280)

2,780

769

0

769

(69)

0

(69)

Transfers between funds

7

(7)

0

0

0

0

Net Movement in Funds

2,233

(224)

2,009

(1,358)

280

(1,078)

9,786

688

10,474

11,144

408

11,552

12,019

464

12,483

9,786

688

10,474

3
4

Charitable Activities
Other Trading Activities

5

Expenditure On:
Charitable Activities
Raising Funds

7&8
9

Total Expenditure
Net Gains/(Losses) on Investments

14

Reconciliation of funds
Total Funds Brought Forward
Total Funds Carried Forward

19

The notes on pages 28 to 38 form part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheet
The balance sheet provides a view of the charity’s assets and liabilities and how these are
represented by the different classes of funds held by the charity. The objective of the balance
sheet is to show the resources available to the charity and whether these are available for all
purposes of the charity or have to be used for specific purposes because of legal restrictions
placed on their use.

Note

Fixed Assets
Intangible Assets
Investments
Total Fixed Assets

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Total Funds

Restricted
Funds

Unrestricted
Funds

2017/18
Total Funds

Restricted
Funds

Unrestricted
Funds

2018/19

£000s

£000s

18
8,639
8,657

0
0
0

18
8,639
8,657

17
7,694
7,711

0
0
0

17
7,694
7,711

17

1,563
25
2,100
3,688

0
0
552
552

1,563
25
2,652
4,240

177
25
2,136
2,338

0
0
705
705

177
25
2,841
3,043

18

(326)

(88)

(414)

(263)

(17)

(280)

3,362

464

3,826

2,075

688

2,763

Total Net Assets

12,019

464

12,483

9,786

688

10,474

Total Funds
Restricted
Unrestricted
Unrestricted (designated)
Total Funds

0
2,724
9,295
12,019

464
0
0
464

464
2,724
9,295
12,483

0
2,108
7,678
9,786

688
0
0
688

688
2,108
7,678
10,474

Current Assets
Debtors
Short Term Investments And Deposits
Cash At Bank And In Hand
Total Current Assets
Creditors
Creditors:Amounts Falling Due Within
One Year

13
15

16

Net Current Assets

19

The financial statements on pages 25 to 38 were approved by the Board of the Trustee on 27
September 2019 and signed on its behalf by:
Signed:
Name:
Date:
Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund
Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19
Page 26

130

Statement of Cash Flows
The Statement of Cash Flows aims to show how changes in balance sheet accounts and income
affect cash and cash equivalents, and breaks the analysis down to operating, investing and financing
activities. The cash flow statement is concerned with the flow of cash in and out of the charity during
the financial year, which runs from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019.

Note

2018/19

2017/18

£000s

£000s

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities

(249)

(1,763)

Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends and interest from investment

4

241

209

Purchase of investments

15

(1,129)

(2,056)

Purchase of intangible fixed assets

13

(5)

(17)

953

729

60

(1,135)

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period

(189)

(2,898)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting
period

2,866

5,764

2,677

2,866

2,009

(1,078)

Proceeds on disposal of investments
Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period

17

Reconciliation of net movement in funds to net cash flow from
operating activities
Net movement in funds (statement of financial activities)
(Gains)/losses on investments

13

(769)

69

Income from investments

4

(241)

(209)

4

0

Amortisation of intangible assets
(Increase)/Decrease in debtors

16

(1,386)

11

Increase/(Decrease) in creditors

18

134

(556)

(249)

(1,763)

Cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities

The notes on pages 28 to 38 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the accounts
1. Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared under the historic cost convention with the exception of
investments, which are included at fair value.
The accounts (financial statements) have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of
Recommended Practice: Accounting and Reporting by Charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102) issued on 16 July 2014 and the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom
and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) and the Charities Act 2011 and UK Generally Accepted Practice as
it applies from 1 January 2015.
The charity is a public benefit entity as defined by FRS 102.
The trustees consider that there are no material uncertainties about the Norfolk and Norwich NHS
Foundation Trust Charitable Funds’ (N&N Hospitals Charity’s) ability to continue as a going concern.
(b) Funds structure
Where there is a legal restriction on the purpose to which a fund may be put, the fund is classified
either as a restricted fund or an endowment fund.
Restricted funds are those where the donor has provided for the donation to be spent in furtherance
of a specified charitable purpose. N&N Hospitals Charity’s restricted funds result from legacies.
Endowment funds arise when the donor has expressly provided that the gift is to be invested and only
the income of the fund may be spent. The N&N Hospitals Charity currently has no endowment funds.
Those funds which are neither endowment nor restricted funds, are unrestricted funds which are sub
analysed between designated (earmarked) funds where the trustees have set aside amounts to be
used for specific purposes or which reflect the non-binding wishes of donors, and unrestricted funds
which are at the trustee’s discretion. Unrestricted funds include the general fund, which represents the
charity’s reserves. The major funds held in each of these categories are disclosed in note 19.
(c) Incoming resources
All incoming resources are recognised once the charity has entitlement to the resources, it is probable
(more likely than not) that the resources will be received, and the monetary value of incoming
resources can be measured with sufficient reliability.
Where there are terms or conditions attached to incoming resources, particularly grants, then these
terms or conditions must be met before the income is recognised, as the entitlement condition will not
be satisfied until that point. Where terms or conditions have not been met or uncertainty exists as to
whether they can be met then the relevant income is not recognised in the year but deferred and
shown on the balance sheet as deferred income.
(d) Incoming resources from legacies
Legacies are accounted for as incoming resources either upon receipt or where the receipt of the
legacy is probable. Receipt is probable when:
• confirmation has been received from the representatives of the estate(s) that probate has been
granted;
• the executors have established that there are sufficient assets in the estate to pay the legacy; and
• all conditions attached to the legacy have been fulfilled or are within the charity’s control.
If there is uncertainty as to the amount of the legacy, and it cannot be reliably estimated, then the
legacy is shown as a contingent asset until all of the conditions for income recognition are met.
Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund
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Notes to the accounts
(e) Resources expended and irrecoverable VAT
All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and is recognised when the following criteria
are met:
• there is a present legal or constructive obligation resulting from a past event
• it is more likely than not that a transfer of benefits (usually a cash payment) will be required in
settlement
• the amount of the obligation can be measured or estimated reliably.
Irrecoverable VAT is charged against the category of resources expended for which it was incurred.
(f) Recognition of expenditure and associated liabilities as a result of grant
Grants payable are payments made to linked, related party, or third party NHS bodies, in furtherance
of the charitable objectives of the funds held on trust, primarily relief of those who are ill.
Grant payments are recognised as expenditure when the conditions for their payment have been met
or where there is a constructive obligation to make a payment.
A constructive obligation arises when:
• We have communicated our intention to award a grant to a recipient who then has a reasonable
expectation that they will receive a grant; or
• We have made a public announcement about a commitment which is specific enough for the
recipient to have a reasonable expectation that they will receive a grant;
The trustee has control over the amount and timing of grant payments and consequently where
approval has been given by the trustee and any of the above criteria have been met then a liability is
recognised. Grants are awarded on condition that the Charity is acknowledged as the funder, and a
report on the impact of expenditure is provided within six months of payment being made. If a grant
has been offered but there is uncertainty as to whether it will be accepted or whether conditions will
be met then no liability is recognised.
(g) Support and governance costs
Support costs are those costs which do not relate directly to a single charitable activity. These
include some staff costs, costs of administration and IT support. Governance costs include audit, and
any other regulatory fees. The analysis of support and governance costs are shown in note 8.
(h) Fundraising costs
The costs of generating funds are those costs attributable to generating income for the charity, other
than those costs incurred in undertaking charitable activities or the costs incurred in undertaking
trading activities in furtherance of the charity’s objects. The costs of generating funds represent
fundraising costs together with the salaries for the charity’s fundraising team and are shown in note 9.
(i) Charitable activities
Costs of charitable activities comprise all costs incurred in the pursuit of the charitable objects of the
charity. These costs, where not wholly attributable, are apportioned between the categories of
charitable expenditure in addition to the direct costs. These are shown in note 7.
(i) Intangible assets
Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance which are capable of being
sold separately from the charity’s business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They
are recognised only where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential
be provided to the charity, and where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the accounts
Intangible fixed assets are amortised at rates calculated to write them down to estimated residual
values on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. Computer software is expected to
have a useful life of 5 years.
(j) Fixed asset investments
Investments are a form of basic financial instrument. Fixed asset investments are initially recognised
at their transaction value and are subsequently measured at their fair value (market value) as at the
balance sheet date. The Statement of Financial Activities includes the net gains and losses arising on
revaluation and disposals throughout the year. Quoted stocks and shares are included in the Balance
Sheet at the current market value quoted by the investment analyst, excluding dividend. Other
investments are included at the trustee’s best estimate of market value.
The main form of financial risk faced by the charity is that of volatility in equity markets and investment
markets due to wider economic conditions, the attitude of investors to investment risk, and changes in
sentiment concerning equities and within particular sectors or sub sectors. Further information on the
N&N Hospitals Charity’s investments can be found in note 15.
(k) Current asset investments
Current asset investments refer to the Charity’s 90 day notice interest bearing savings account.
(l) Debtors
Debtors are amounts owed to the charity. They are measured on the basis of their recoverable
amount.
(m) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and in hand is held to meet the day to day running costs of the charity as they fall due.
Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments, usually in 90 day notice interest bearing
savings accounts.
(n) Creditors
Creditors are amounts owed by the charity. They are measured at the amount that the charity
expects to have to pay to settle the debt. The Charity has no amounts which are owed in more than a
year.
(o) Realised gains and losses
All gains and losses are taken to the Statement of Financial Activities as they arise. Realised gains
and losses on investments are calculated as the difference between sales proceeds and opening
carrying value (purchase date if later). Unrealised gains and losses are calculated as the difference
between the market value at the year end and opening carrying value (or purchase date if later).
(p) Staff costs and pensions
Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (the Trust) fully re-charged the N&N
Hospitals Charity for the members of staff who work for the charity.
Staff members belong to the NHS Pension Scheme which is an unfunded defined benefit scheme
which is accounted for as a defined contribution scheme. The recharge from the Trust includes the
employee contributions to that scheme. For more information on the NHS Pension Scheme refer to
the Trust’s annual report and accounts.
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Notes to the accounts
2. Related party transactions
The Charity has a related party relationship with the Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust. The Trust holds the employment contracts for all Charity staff, provides the Charity
with office accommodation, legal services, finance support and is the responsible Corporate Trustee
for the Charity.
Transactions between the Charity and the Trust during the year were in relation to salary payments
for its staff, income invoiced by the Trust for the Charity, payment of some Charity supplier invoices
that were initially paid by the Trust and refunded by the Charity, and for administrative and
management costs.
The Trust recharged £159,373 to the Charity (2017/18 £123,953) for its staffing and administration
costs. The increase is due to the growth of the fundraising team during 2017/18.
The staff members of the Trust have benefited from payment of £513,907 (2017/18 £547,136) from
the Charity in the form of long service awards, long service retirement awards, the Staff Awards
evening, training events, and staff room refurbishments.
During 2018/19, capital assets to the value of £841,649 (2017/18 £1,657,733) were purchased by the
Charity and donated to the Trust.
None of the members of the Trust board or parties related to them have undertaken any transactions
with the N&N Hospitals Charity, or received any benefit from the charity in payment or kind. Board
members received no honoraria, emoluments or expenses in the year.
At the end of the financial year £132,642 was owed by the Charity to the Trust. (2017/18 £77,222)

3. Income from donations and legacies

£000s

Voluntary Income
General donations
Corporate donations
Legacies
Grants
Total Voluntary Income

571
93
2,642
39
3,345

£000s

£000s

0
0
0
0
0

571
93
2,642
39
3,345
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Total Funds

2017/18
Total Funds

Restricted
Funds

Unrestricted
Funds

2018/19

£000s

522
104
897
6
1,529
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Notes to the accounts
4. Income from investments
2018/19

Investment Income
Interest on deposits
Fixed asset equity investments
Total Investment Income

Unrestricted
Funds

Restricted
Funds

Total Funds

Total Funds

2017/18

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

9
232
241

0
0
0

9
232
241

4
205
209

5. Analysis of other income
2018/19
Unrestricted
Funds

Restricted
Funds

Total Funds

Total Funds

2017/18

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Incoming Resources from Charitable Activities
Training Income
Total Incoming Resources from Charitable Activities

18
18

0
0

18
18

20
20

Activities for Generating Funds
Fundraising events
Lotteries and raffles
Total Activities for Generating Funds

12
4
16

0
0
0

12
4
16

2
0
2

Other Incoming Resources
Other Income
Total Other Incoming Resources

57
57

0
0

57
57

11
11

6. Role of volunteers
Like all charities, the N&N Hospitals Charity is reliant on a team of volunteers for our smooth
running. Our volunteers perform two roles:
• Fund advisors – there are about 400 Trust staff who support the charitable funds committee
when deciding how the charity’s designated funds should be spent. These funds are
designated (or earmarked) by the charitable funds committee to be spent for a particular
purpose or in a particular ward or department. Each fund advisor submits funding requests
and monitors the financial status of their fund.
• Fundraisers – there are many local volunteers who actively fundraise for the N&N Hospitals
Charity by running events.
In accordance with the SORP, due to the absence of any reliable measurement basis, the
contribution of these volunteers is not recognised in the accounts.
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Notes to the accounts
7. Analysis of charitable expenditure
The charity did not undertake any direct charitable activities on its own account during the year.
Charitable expenditure was in the form of grant funding to the Trust to carry out activities or to
purchase equipment that will benefit NHS patients and their families.
2018/19

Charitable Activities
Enhancing the patient environment
Investing in our staff
Life saving equipment & new technology
Research
Total Charitable Activities

Support Costs

Grant funded
activity

Total

Total

2017/18

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

21
22
47
6
96

490
514
1096
132
2,232

511
536
1143
138
2,328

197
582
1854
91
2,724

8. Analysis of support costs and governance costs
Support costs are back-office costs related to the day-to-day running of the charity. Governance costs
are those support costs which relate to the strategic management of the charity.
2018/19
Unrestricted
Funds

Restricted
Funds

Total Funds

Total Funds

2017/18

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Support costs included in Charitable Activities
Charity Staff Costs
Management and Administration Costs
Total Support Costs

61
19
80

0
0
0

61
19
80

40
19
59

Governance Costs included in Charitable Activities
Audit
Staff costs
Other Governance Costs
Total Governance Costs

6
4
6
16

0
0
0
0

6
4
6
16

7
4
14
25

Total Support and Governance Costs

96

0

96

84
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Notes to the accounts
9. Analysis of expenditure on raising funds
2018/19

Cost of Raising Funds
Fundraising staff costs
Fundraising expenditure
Total Costs of Generating Funds

Unrestricted
Funds

Restricted
Funds

Total Funds

Total Funds

2017/18

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

76
32
108

0
1
1

76
33
109

51
5
56

10. Trustee remuneration, benefits and expenses
Members of the Trust board give their time freely and receive no remuneration for the work that they
undertake in relation to the N&N Hospitals Charity. They can claim expenses, however, to reimburse
them for costs that they incur in fulfilling their duties relating to N&N Hospitals Charity – these include
travelling specifically for charitable funds committee meetings and charity specific training events.
No expenses were claimed from the Charity by committee members (2017/18 Nil)

11. Analysis of staff costs
The average number of full time equivalent employees during the year was 3.73 (2017/18 2.28).

Staff Costs
Salaries and Wages
Social Security Costs
Other Pension Costs
Total

2018/19

2017/18

£000s

£000s

114
11
16
141

74
7
10
91

A further recharge of time spent by Finance Department Managers was made by the Trust. This
related to time spent authorising fund requests and payments, reviewing reconciliations and checking
the annual accounts. The amount recharged was £16k (2017/18 £22k).
The N&N Hospitals Charity considers its key management personnel to be the member of the Norfolk
& Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust management board acting on behalf of the
corporate trustee. For 2018/19 this was the Board Secretary. There was no recharge of employment
benefits for key management personnel during 2018/19 or 2017/18.
No employees had emoluments in excess of £60,000 (2017/18 nil)
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Notes to the accounts
12. Auditor’s remuneration
The auditor’s remuneration of £4,820 (2017/18: £4,820) related solely to the audit with no other
additional work being undertaken (2017/18: £nil). These figures are exclusive of VAT, however
because the Charity is not able to reclaim VAT it is included in Note 8 figures.

13. Intangible assets
This relates to the donor database and accounting software which will be amortised over five years.
Intangible Fixed Assets
Opening balance
Additions
Amortisation
Closing balance

2018/19
£000s

2017/18
£000s
17
5
(4)
18

0
17
0
17

14. Analysis of gains/losses on investments
2018/19
£000s
Realised gains
Unrealised gains/(losses)
Total gains/(losses) on investments

2017/18
£000s
14
755
769

33
(102)
(69)

15. Fixed asset investments
Movement in Fixed Asset Investments
Market Value at Start of Financial year
Less: Disposals at Carrying Value
Add: Acquisitions at Cost
Net Gain/(Loss) on Revaluation
Market Value at End of Financial Year
Fixed Asset Investment Split
Cash
Gilts/Fixed Interest
Investment/Unit Trusts
Equities

2018/19

2017/18

£000s
7,694
(940)
1,129
755
8,639

£000s
6,436
(696)
2,056
(102)
7,694

2018/19
2.21%
13.77%
15.71%
68.30%
100%

2017/18
1.77%
15.12%
15.89%
67.22%
100%

All investments are carried at their fair value, and are managed by expert advisors. Cash held by
our asset managers is available on request, and is included in the investment split for
comparison, but is included in the cash and cash equivalents figure on the balance sheet.
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16. Analysis of current debtors

Amounts Falling Due Within One Year
Prepayments
Accrued Income
Other Debtors
Total Debtors Falling Due Within One Year

2018/19

2017/18

£000s

£000s
0
1562
1
1563

13
79
85
177

Accrued income for 2018/19 consists of five legacies, for which the estates have been finalised,
but funds have not yet been received by the Charity.

17. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
2018/19
£000s

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Short term investment
Cash in hand & at bank
Total

2017/18
£000s
25
2,652
2,677

25
2,841
2,841

274
132
2
6
414

2017/18
£000s
199
77
4
0
280

18. Analysis of liabilities
2018/19
£000s

Amounts Falling Due Within One Year
Trade Creditors
Amounts Due to NNUH NHS Foundation Trust
Other Creditors
Accruals
Total

19. Analysis of charitable funds
Individual funds with a balance at 31st March 2019 of over £100,000 are detailed below:
Unrestricted

N&N General Fund
Cromer General Fund
Others (11 funds)
Total
Name of fund
Norfolk and Norwich General
Cromer General

Balance
Apr 2018

Incoming
resources

Resources
expended

Gains and
losses

Balance
Mar 2019

£000s
1,089
548
471
2,108

£000s
749
21
143
913

£000s
684
75
307
1,066

£000s
769
0
0
769

£000s
1,923
494
307
2,724

Description of the purpose of each fund
For the benefit of staff and patients at the Colney site
For the benefit of staff and patients at the Cromer site
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Restricted Funds:
Cromer Building Fund
The Macleod Fund
Cromer Equipment Fund
Total
Name of fund
Cromer Building Fund
The Macleod Fund
Cromer Equipment Fund

Designated Funds
Cromer Legacy Fund
Radiotherapy & Oncology Fund
Marjorie Ann Lockett Fund
Andrew Leslie Kemp Fund
Renal Fund
Orthopaedics Fund
Cardiac Fund
Cromer Building & Equipment Fund
Eye Department Fund
AOS Legacy Fund
Leukemia Childrens Cancer Fund
Kidney Research Fund
Respiratory Medicine Fund
Neurosciences Fund
Laparoscopic Fund
Ear, Nose & Throat Fund
Haematology Fund
Others (280 funds)
Total

Total funds

Balance
Apr 2018

Incoming
resources

Resources
expended

£000s

£000s

£000s

451
135
102
688

0
0
0
0

Transfers
£000s

191
26
0
217

Balance
Mar 2019
£000s

0
(7)
0
(7)

260
102
102
464

Description of the purpose of each fund
For building related work at Cromer Hospital
For the benefit of paediatric patients within the Trust
For medical and surgical equipment at Cromer Hospital

Balance
Apr 2018

Incoming
resources

Resources
expended

£000s

£000s

£000s

Transfers
£000s

Balance
Mar 2019
£000s

0
1,002
568
426
396
323
92
280
38
0
215
204
5
192
189
125
120
3,503
7,678

1,000
168
0
0
10
35
278
2
243
225
1
0
194
1
0
0
3
604
2,764

0
344
(3)
3
6
13
71
0
17
0
6
1
5
0
0
0
2
689
1,154

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
7
7

1,000
826
571
423
400
345
299
282
264
225
210
203
194
193
189
125
121
3,425
9,295

10,474

3,677

2,437

769

12,483
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Name of fund

Description of the purpose of each fund

Cromer Legacy Fund

For the benefit of patients at the Cromer Hospital

Radiotherapy & Oncology Fund

Cause, prevention, treatment, cure & defeat of cancer

Marjorie Ann Lockett Fund

Cause, prevention, treatment, cure & defeat of cancer

Andrew Leslie Kemp Fund

For the provision of dialysis equipment, otherwise for general use

Renal Fund

For the benefit of renal patients

Orthopaedics Fund

For the benefit of orthopaedic patients

Cardiac Fund

For the benefit of cardiology patients

Cromer Building & Equipment Fund

For building or equipment at Cromer Hospital

Eye Department Fund

For the benefit of ophthalmology patients

AOS Legacy Fund

Cause, prevention, treatment, cure & defeat of cancer

Leukemia Childrens Cancer

Cause, prevention, treatment, cure & defeat of cancer in children

Kidney Research Fund
Respiratory Medicine Fund
Neurosciences Fund
Laparoscopic Fund

Cause, prevention, treatment, and cure of renal illness
For the benefit of respiratory medicine patients
For the benefit of neurology patients
For the benefit of surgery patients

Ear, Nose & Throat Fund

For the benefit of ENT patients

Haematology Fund

For the benefit of haematology patients
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This report is made solely to the Trustees of The Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NUS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund (‘the Charity’) in
accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been released to the Trustees on the basis that this report shall not be copied, referred to or
disclosed, in whole (save for the Trustees’ own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent. Matters coming to our attention during our
audit work have been considered so that we might state to the Trustees those matters we are required to state to the Trustees in this report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Charity and its Trustees, for
our work referable to this report, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Please note that that this report is confidential between the Trustees and this firm. Any disclosure of this report beyond what is permitted above will
prejudice this firm’s commercial interests. A request for our consent to any such wider disclosure may result in our agreement to these disclosure
restrictions being lifted in part. If the Trustees receive a request for disclosure of this report under the Freedom of Information Act 2000, having regard
to these actionable disclosure restrictions you must let us know and you must not make a disclosure in response to any such request without our prior
written consent.
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Summary
The purpose of this memorandum is to set out the significant issues that came to our attention during the course of the audit of The Norfolk and Norwich
University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund Norfolk and Norwich Hospitals Charity for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Audit status
Whilst our audit is now substantially complete, the following work is still outstanding and so matters communicated in this Report may change pending
signature of our audit report. We will provide an oral update on the status of our audit at the Audit Committee meeting:
— Completion of journals testing
— Completion of search for unrecorded liabilities testing
— Final Partner Review of the accounts and file
— Update and confirmation of subsequent events
— Receipt of Management Representation Letters

Audit conclusion
We intend to issue an unqualified audit opinion on the accounts following the Board and Audit Committee adopting them and receipt of the management
representations letter.
Accounting and auditing matters
No significant accounting issues arose during the course of our audit.
The financial statements adopted appropriate accounting policies and are in accordance with disclosure requirements of relevant charities legislation, UK
GAAP (FRS 102) and the Statement of Recommended Practice.
We have undertaken our audit procedures as set out in our Audit Plan presented to the Audit Committee in December 2018.
We are required under ISA 260 to communicate to you any matters specifically required by other auditing standards; and any other audit matters of
governance interest.
— We have not identified any other matters to specifically report on that have not been documented elsewhere in this Report.
© 2019 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.
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Summary (cont.)
Audit adjustments
Under UK auditing standards (ISA (UK&I) 260) we are required to provide the Audit Committee with a summary of unadjusted audit differences (including
disclosure misstatements) identified during the course of our audit, other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’, which are not reflected in the financial
statements.
We have not identified any unadjusted audit differences during the audit.
We are also required to report any adjusted audit differences, other than those that are “clearly trivial” to the Audit Committee.
There were no adjusted audit differences identified during the audit.

Recommendations arising from our audit
Our audit approach for the Charity is predominantly substantive. We have not raised any controls recommendations as a result of our work.
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Audit approach and findings
Scepticism

Challenge

We highlight the work conducted and our findings below in respect of the significant audit risks identified in our discussion with you at the audit
planning and strategy stage.
Significant risks

Significant risk area
required by ISAs

Fraud risk from
recognition of
income

Risk

Audit response

Professional standards require
us to make a rebuttable
presumption that the fraud risk
from revenue recognition is a
significant risk.

We reported in our External Audit Plan 2018/19 that we did not consider the fraud risk
over revenue recognition to be significant, and as a result rebut this presumed work. We
have however noted below the procedures performed over revenue.
Our procedures included:
•

A sample test of legacy income received during the year, which we confirmed to cash
receipt or legal correspondence;

•

A sample test of donations received during the year, which we confirmed to cash
receipt;

•

A sample test of income received after year-end to confirm whether recognition should
have occurred in 2018/19.

We have no misstatements or observations to report from our work.

Management
override of control

Professional standards require
us to communicate the fraud risk
from management override of
controls as a significant audit
risk. Management is typically in
a unique position to perpetrate
fraud because of their ability to
manipulate accounting records
that otherwise appear to be
operating effectively.

Our audit methodology incorporates the risk of management override as a default
significant risk for 2018/19. We have not identified any specific additional risks of
management override relating to this audit.
We have undertaken testing of the Charity’s journal entries, significant judgements and
estimates and transactions that are outside of the normal course of business or are
otherwise unusual.
There are no matters to bring to your attention arising from our work in this area.
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Audit approach and findings
Scepticism

Challenge

Fraud
We have a responsibility to consider fraud and we addressed this in our assessment of your controls framework. We reviewed your arrangements for
the prevention and detection of fraud and corruption alongside our audit work. Procedures performed as part of audit testing have not identified any
suspected instances of fraud during the year.
Taxation
We have considered tax risks during the course of our audit work and have no significant matters to raise.
Going Concern
The Charity have prepared its financial statements on a going concern basis. We reviewed the income, expenditure, and levels of funds held by the
Charity. Based on our work we concur with management’s going concern assumption.
Independence
KPMG conforms to the highest governance standards at all times and ensures that any additional services are approved to ensure transparency in our
relationship. ISA 260 ‘Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance’ requires us to communicate at least once a year regarding
all relationships between KPMG and the Charitable Company that may be reasonably thought to have bearing on our independence. Our detailed
independence confirmation is set out in Appendix 2. We have made enquiries and there are no other matters in relation to our independence that have
occurred during the financial year on which we are to report.
Audit Fee
We note that the audit fee for the year was £4,850 excluding VAT (prior year: £4,850 excl. VAT). This is in line with our planned audit fee. No non-audit
fee services have been provided to the Charity during the year.
Other Matters
ISA 260 requires us to communicate ‘audit matters of governance interest that arise from the audit of the financial statements’ to you which includes:
material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit; matters specifically required by other auditing standards to be communicated to
those charged with governance (e.g. issues relating to fraud, compliance with laws and regulations, subsequent events etc.); and other audit matters of
governance interest.
There are no other matters which we wish to draw your attention to.
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Appendix 1

Required communications with the Audit Committee
Type
Our draft
management
representation letter

OK

Response

Type

Response

We have not requested any specific representations in
addition to those areas normally covered by our
standard representation letter for the year ended 31
March 2019.

Significant
difficulties

OK

Modifications to
auditor’s report

OK

None.

There were nil adjusted audit differences.

Adjusted audit
differences

OK

Unadjusted audit
differences

OK

Related parties
OK

The aggregated profit impact of unadjusted audit
differences would be £nil.
There were no significant matters that arose during the
audit in connection with the entity's related parties.

Disagreements
with management
or scope
limitations

OK

Other information
OK

Other matters
warranting attention
by the Audit
Committee
Control deficiencies

Actual or suspected
fraud,
noncompliance with
laws or regulations
or illegal acts
Going concern
assessment[*]

No significant difficulties were encountered during the
audit.

OK

OK

OK

OK

There were no matters to report arising from the audit
that, in our professional judgment, are significant to the
oversight of the financial reporting process.

No deficiencies in internal controls have been identified
as a result of our work.
No actual or suspected fraud involving employees with
significant roles in internal control, or where fraud
results in a material misstatement in the financial
statements were identified during the audit.
There are no significant matters affecting the entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The engagement team had no disagreements with
management and no scope limitations were imposed
by management during the audit.

No material inconsistencies were identified related to
other information in the annual report, Strategic and
Directors’ reports.
The Strategic report is fair, balanced and
comprehensive, and complies with the law.

Breaches of
independence

OK

Accounting
practices
OK

Significant matters
discussed or
subject to
correspond-dence
with management

No matters to report. The engagement team have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence.
Over the course of our audit, we have evaluated the
appropriateness of the Charity‘s accounting policies,
accounting estimates and financial statement
disclosures. In general, we believe these are
appropriate.
No significant matters for discussion were identified
throughout the audit.

OK
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Update on prior year recommendation
There are no recommendations arising from our work in 2018/19. We provide an update on the prior year recommendation below.
Priority rating for recommendations
Priority one: issues that are fundamental and
material to your system of internal control.
We believe that these issues might mean
that you do not meet a system objective or
reduce (mitigate) a risk.
#

Risk

Priority two: issues that have an important
effect on internal controls but do not need
immediate action. You may still meet a
system objective in full or in part or reduce
(mitigate) a risk adequately but the
weakness remains in the system.

Issue, Impact and Recommendation

Priority three: issues that would, if
corrected, improve the internal control in
general but are not vital to the overall
system. These are generally issues of best
practice that we feel would benefit you if
you introduced them.
Management Response / Officer / Due Date

Financial Statements
1

Income designation policy

Agreed

Our audit procedures identified material misclassification of funds as restricted when they had
not met management’s threshold for restriction.

The Charity will prepare a policy as recommended.

We also identified that management does not have a written policy determining when
donations and legacies will be recognised as restricted, unrestricted, or unrestricted –
designated.
It is standard practice in the charities sector to have a written policy of this nature, as it is a
legal obligation to treat restricted donations in accordance with the donors wishes.
We recommend that a written policy is prepared and is approved by the charitable funds
committee.

Responsible Officer: Julie Cooper
Due Date: 31 January 2018
September 2019 update
Fully Implemented
The Charity has clarified the policy for recognising
donations as restricted and our testing has not
identified any classification issues in the current
year.
During the year the policy has been formally
approved and included within the Charity’s
Procedures Manual. As such it is considered that
the recommendation has been fully implemented.
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Appendix 2

Confirmation of Auditor independence
We confirm that, in our professional judgement, KPMG LLP is independent within the meaning of regulatory and professional requirements and
that the objectivity of the Director and audit staff is not impaired.
To the Audit Committee members

■

Instilling professional values

Assessment of our objectivity and independence as auditor of The Norfolk and
Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund (the
Charity)

■

Communications

■

Internal accountability

Professional ethical standards require us to provide to you at the conclusion of the audit ■
Risk management
a written disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-audit services) that
bear on KPMG LLP’s objectivity and independence, the threats to KPMG LLP’s ■
Independent reviews.
independence that these create, any safeguards that have been put in place and why
they address such threats, together with any other information necessary to enable
We are satisfied that our general procedures support our independence and objectivity
KPMG LLP’s objectivity and independence to be assessed.
except for those detailed below where additional safeguards are in place.
This letter is intended to comply with this requirement and facilitate a subsequent
Independence and objectivity considerations relating to the provision of nondiscussion with you on audit independence and addresses:
audit services
■

General procedures to safeguard independence and objectivity;

■

Independence and objectivity considerations relating to the provision of nonIndependence and objectivity considerations relating to other matters
audit services; and

■

Independence and objectivity considerations relating to other matters.

We have not provided any non-audit services to the Charity during the reporting period.

There are no other matters that, in our professional judgment, bear on our
independence which need to be disclosed to the Audit Committee.

General procedures to safeguard independence and objectivity
KPMG LLP is committed to being and being seen to be independent. As part of our
ethics and independence policies, all KPMG LLP directors and staff annually confirm
their compliance with our ethics and independence policies and procedures including in
particular that they have no prohibited shareholdings. Our ethics and independence
policies and procedures are fully consistent with the requirements of the FRC Ethical
Standard.
As a result we have underlying safeguards in place to maintain
independence through:
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Appendix 2

Confirmation of Auditor independence
We confirm that, in our professional judgement, KPMG LLP is independent within the meaning of regulatory and professional requirements and
that the objectivity of the Director and audit staff is not impaired.
Confirmation of audit independence
We confirm that as of the date of this letter, in our professional judgment, KPMG LLP is
independent within the meaning of regulatory and professional requirements and the
objectivity of the director and audit staff is not impaired.
This report is intended solely for the information of the Audit Committee of the Charity
and should not be used for any other purposes.
We would be very happy to discuss the matters identified above (or any other matters
relating to our objectivity and independence) should you wish to do so.

Yours faithfully

KPMG LLP
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KPMG LLP
Dragonfly House
2 Gilders Way
Norwich
NR3 1UB
27 September 2019

Dear Sirs
This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of
Norfolk and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund (“the Charity”), for
the year ended 31 March 2019, for the purpose of expressing an opinion:
i.

ii.

iii.

as to whether these financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the
Charity’s affairs as at year end and of its surplus or deficit for the financial year then
ended;
whether the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (including Charities SORP FRS 102: Statement
of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102)); and
whether the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Charities Act
2011.

These financial statements comprise the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Financial Activities, the
Cash Flow Statement, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.
The Trustees confirm that the Charity is exempt from the requirement to also prepare consolidated
financial statements.
The Trustees confirm that the representations they make in this letter are in accordance with the
definitions set out in the Appendix to this letter.
The Trustees confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as it
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing themselves:
Financial statements
1. The Trustees have fulfilled their responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit
engagement dated 5 April 2018, for the preparation of financial statements that:
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give a true and fair view of the state of the Charity’s affairs as at the end of its financial year
and of its surplus or deficit for that financial year;
have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (“UK GAAP”) (including Charities SORP FRS 102: Statement of Recommended
Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102));; and
have been prepared in accordance with the Charities Act 2011.

i.
ii.

iii.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
2. Measurement methods and significant assumptions used by the Trustees in making
accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.
3. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which section 32 of FRS
102 requires adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.
Information provided
4. The Trustees have provided you with:




access to all information of which they are aware, that is relevant to the preparation of the
financial statements, such as records, documentation and other matters;
additional information that you have requested from the Trustees for the purpose of the audit;
and
unrestricted access to persons within the Charity from whom you determined it necessary to
obtain audit evidence.

5. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
financial statements.
6. The Trustees confirm the following:
i)

The Trustees have disclosed to you the results of their assessment of the risk that the
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

Included in the Appendix to this letter are the definitions of fraud, including misstatements arising
from fraudulent financial reporting and from misappropriation of assets.
ii)
a)




The Trustees have disclosed to you all information in relation to:
Fraud or suspected fraud that it is aware of and that affects the Charity and involves:
management;
employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements;
andallegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the Charity’s financial statements
communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others.
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In respect of the above, the Trustees acknowledge their responsibility for such internal control as
they determines necessary for the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In particular, the Trustees acknowledge their
responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to prevent and
detect fraud and error.
7. The Trustees have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected
non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when
preparing the financial statements.
8. The Trustees have disclosed to you and has appropriately accounted for and/or disclosed in
the financial statements, in accordance with section 21 of FRS 102 all known actual or
possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when preparing the
financial statements.
9. The Trustees have disclosed to you the identity of the Charity’s related parties and all the
related party relationships and transactions of which it is aware. All related party
relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in
accordance with section 33 of FRS 102 .
10. The Trustees confirm that:
a) The financial statements disclose all of the key risk factors, assumptions made and
uncertainties surrounding the charity’s ability to continue as a going concern as required
to provide a true and fair view.
b) No events or circumstances have been identified that may cast significant doubt on the
ability of the Charity to continue as a going concern.
11. At 31 March 2019, the Charity has recognised income of £1,000,000, which relates to legacy
income from Mr De Bootman. The amount of the legacy income has been estimated based
on the estimated estate value less costs to be paid out which are currently uncertain. As
such, the board confirms that they consider the income recognised at 31 March 2019 is
appropriate.
This letter was tabled and agreed at the meeting of the Trustees on 27 September 2019
Yours faithfully,

David White
Chairman
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